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A RAY OF

HOPE

2025 was erwvisioned as the year of economic revival and stability. Yet the deep

scars of the preceding two years continued to weigh heavily on industries,

induding our own. The last 3 years were among the toughest years in Amreli
Steels’history, testing our strength and resolve like never before. Through this
painful period of transition, we made difficult choices and took unprecedented
actions to secure the company’s future. It took immense resilience, unshakeable
determination, and extraordinary belief in our SOLID mission to carry us through.

Today, we see a ray of hope shining ahead. With the darkest days behind us, we
are confident that, if stability endures, Amreli Steels will rise once more to its true
strength and glory.
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VISION

Committed to strengthen the economy and sodiety

MISSION

Be the brand of choice for all stakeholders

Empower people

Transform steel production by applying lean practices and attaining unparalleled efficiency
Enhance our potential to export engineering products

Attain the highest standards of quality, health, safety and environment

Ensure sustainability through sound financial practices and operational excellence



CORE VALUES

RESPECT

= We treat others the way we want to be treated
- Give Respect - Regardiless

= We value diversity and believe in equality

» We value differences of opinions

= We respect the environment

INTEGRITY

= We deliver what we promise

We uphold the highest standards of ethics and honor
We act transparently

We do the right thing

We speak up when our values are compromised

DYNAMISM
= We stay ahead of the curve
= We change the game

- We are innovative and aggressive
» We are decisive and take calculated risks
+ We are agile and move fast

EXCELLENCE

We give our best everyday

We strive to excel in every aspect of our business
We operate outside cur comfort zone

We adapt to best practices

» We believe in continuous improvement

RESILIENCE

« We nevergive up

« Westand tall in adversity

» Weembrace challenges

= Weviewfailures and mistakes as leaming opportunities
+ We will win - if not immediately, then definitely



.

Amreli Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated in 1984 as a private limited
Company and converted into a public unquoted Company in 2009. The Company
enlisted on Pakistan Stock Exchange in December 2015 and is mainly engaged in
manufacturing and sale of steel rebars and billets.

The Company is one of the largest manufacturers of steel reinforcement bars in
Pakistan. The two re-rolling plants situated at S..TE. Karachi and Dhabeji are using one
of the most modern hot rerolling technologies in the industry with a nameplate
capacity of 180,000 metric tons and 425,000 metric tons of rebars per annum

respectively.

Company’s Steel Melt Shop plant in Dhabeji, Sindh is the largest billet manufacturing
facility in Pakistan boasting a nameplate capacity of 600,000 metric tons per year. This
facility aims to bridge the supply-demand gap of Pakistan's steel industry.
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As a pioneer in the Pakistani steel industry, Amreli Steels has led the market not only through advanced technology but also through progressive market
practices. In 2018, the Company introduced the concept of branded products in the steel sector for the first time in Pakistan, This initiative was aimed at
clearly differentiating our product portfolio in a consumer-relevant manner and assisting end-users, many of whom are first-time buyers, in making
informed and confident purchasing decisions.

These product brands were developed under a “Branded House” strategy, with their identities closely aligned to our Corporate Brand, “Amireli Steels”
Following are the product brands of Amrali Steels along with their unique features:

1. Amreli Steels Maxima

= Based on ASTM 615 internaticnal standard

«  Ideal for any type of construction - Residential, commercial, mega, infrastructure projects in selected seismic zones®

«  Yield Strength 60,000 PS| {Minimum)

«  Ultimate Tensile Strength 90,000 P5I

«  Engineered for earthquake resistance in designated seismic zones *

« gonsistent quality throughout the length ensured by Uniform Gauge

«  Produced ina state-of-the-art meltshop and advanced 5th generation Red Ring technology rolling mill for superior construction reinforcement

2. Amreli Steels Xtreme
Based on BS 4443 internaticnal standard
Ideal for Hi-rise buildings
Yield Strength: 72,500 PSI (minimum)
Upto 15% material saving as compared to ASTM 615, grade 60 products when designed in accordance with BS 4443
Safely Weldable
Engineered for earthguake resistance in designated seismic zones *
consistent quality throughout the length ensured by Uniform Gauge
Produced in a state of art meltshop and advanced 5th generation Red Ring techmology rolling mill for superior construction reinforcement

3. Amreli Steels Ultima

«  Based on ASTM 706 international standard

- Engineered for earthguake resistance in all seismic zones Yield Strength: 60,000 PSI (minimum)

- Yield Strength: 78,000 PSI (maximum)

= Ultimate Tensile Strength 80,000 PSI {minimum)

= Tensile to Yield Strangth Ratic = 1.25

«  Produced in a state of art meltshop and advanced Sth generation Red Ring technology rolling mill for superior construction reinforcement
- consistant quality throughout the length ensured by Uniform Gauge

» |deal for Residential and Commercial projects, particularly in high seismic zones.

In addition to these product brands, Amreli Steels offers customized rebar solutions - unprecedented in the local market -made possible by its
State-of-the-art plant equipped with 5th Generation Red Ring Technolegy, the first of its kind in Pakistan.

Amreli Steels can offer®

1. Rebars manufactured in compliance with any international standard**

2. Rebars with Rib patterns designed in compliance with any international standard™

3. Cut-to-length rebars available as per requirement, ranging from 6 to 16 meters in length**
4, Tensile to Yield Strength ratio of 1.25 in compliance with ASTM standards

5. B mm deformed rebars in Pakistan

*These customized services are offered for large volume orders only. With Lead times determined on cose [o case basis,
=+ Subject to minimum order quantities
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GEOGRAPHICAL PRESENCE

Factories
omecte Rl o
: = : 2. Factory at SITE Karachi
2. Sales Office - Karsaz Karachi
ional Offices
f L[ 5 ??-lg;dembad _ Warehouses
[Te 3 Sukkur 1. Karachi
3. Multan 2.Lahore
i Lakiors 3. lslarnabad
5. lslamabad
Number Of Existing Retailers /Stockists
Sindh 128
Baluchistan 02
Punjab 58
] I(hyi:er Pakhtunkhwa 12
Total 200
Khyber Pakhtunkhwa-12

Retailers/Stockist Network: The company has presence throughout the Country with Regional Offices, extensive Stockist / Retailers network
at all strategic locations.
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MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

The objectives of the Company are aimed at achieving sustainable productivity, profitability, and high standards of safety, occupational health, and
environmental care. This entails human resource development, value addition, the implementation of conservation measures, the up-gradation of existing
facilities, and the installation of new facilities. The key objective of the Company's management Is to sustain market leadership in Pakistan's steel industry
and increase value for all the stakeholders. All the corporate goals are targeted towards this purpose, and the key performance indicators are defined to
measure Amreli Steel's improved performance in all spheres of its operations.

Maintaining competitive position in the core business, aligned with corporate goals, making every employee a self-assessor with defined yearly targets and
transparent measuring criteria, we employ our brand name, unigue organizational culture, professional excellence, and financial strength, diversifying in
local and multinational environments throwgh acquisitions and new projects, thus achieving synergy towards value creation for our stakeholders.
Furthermore, the Company also refines and improves its human resource policies regularly. The Company’s market leadarship is a reflection of the
achievement of its corparate goals through all-around strategic alignment.

Some of the most significant strategic objectives of the Company are outlined as under:
= Bethe brand of choice for all stakeholders;
Ernpower people;
«  Attain the highest standards of quality, health, safety and environment;
»  Ensure sustainability through sound financial practices and operational excellence;
»  Ensure that business policies and targets are in conformity with the national goals;
»  Contribute to meeting the country’s demand for construction steel products
+  Ensure customer satisfaction by providing best the value, quality products and unmatched services
« Tofunction at optimal efficiency in our business operations as a way to increase productivity;
+  Toensure all products meet standards of excellence guidelines;
+ Todevelop and implement a promotional plan to drive increased business;
+  Todevelop the leadership abilities and potential of our team.




Organizational Structure
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Abbas Akberali

Mr. Abbas Akberali founded Amrell Steels in 1972 and since then
has led the Company to see it become the largest and most
wall-known steel bar manufacturer in Pakistan. Me. Akberall

brings unparalleled experience with a metaliurgical engineering

background combined with an MBA from Columbia University,
Mew York. He has played an influential role in driving reforms
aimed towards the growth of Pakistan’s steel industry, With a
passion for increasing Pakistan's literacy rate, Mr. Akberall is also a
founding member of the Hunar Foundation and serves on the
Board of ather notable non-profit organizations.

Syed Asghar Jamil Rizvi

Syed Asghar Jamil Rizvi is a highly accomplished professional
engineer with a robust background in metallurgical engineering.
His career spans aover four decades, during which he has made
significant contributions to the local steel industry. Mr. Rizvis
extensive experience encompasses a varety of rodes, from
hands-on positions on the shop floor to strategic engineering
management and high-level corporate roles. Throughout his
lustrious career, Mr. Rizvi has demonstrated exceptional
leadership and expertise. He has held pivotal positions such as
Managing Director and Chief Executive in several prominent
industries.

| A RAY OF HOPE-Annual Report 2025

Shayan Akberali

Mr. Shayan Akberali joined Amreli Steels in 2002 and over the
past two decades he has played an integral role in-growing the
Company by averseeing production enhancement, technical
development, pianning and expanding the sales footprint of the
Amreli brand across Pakistan. As the CEO of the largest rebar
producing Comparny in Pakistan, Mr. Akberali's focus is on
operational excellence with passion for developing the HR capital
of the Company. He has bullt a strong team of professionals
across all verticals that bring functional expertise as well as
leadership to steer the Company towards higher growth.

Sohail Feroz Shamsi

Mr. Sohail Feroz Shamsi is a highly capable and versatile
professional with extensive experience across B2B, government,
recrultment, training and apprenticeships, hospitality, tourism,
and international immigration sectors. Currently serving as the
Director Operations at a leading recruitment agency, he oversees
comprehensive operations, including management, logistical
support, business sourcing, legal matters, and staff recruitment.
He has also been overseeing a recruitment agency and
immigration consultancy. Mr. Sahail holds an MBA from
Buckinghamshire University and various certifications in
immigration law, food hygiene, and teaching. Known for his
coliaborative approach and ‘can-do’attitude, he excels in
translating business requirements into tangible outcomes,
inspiring teams, and adapting to changes to achieve
organizational goals,



Hadi Abbas Akberali

Mr. Hadi Akberali brings a mix of technical, management, and
leadership skills after graduating from Northwestern Lniversity,
USA in Industrial Englnaering and cbtaining an MBA in Finance
and Strategy from INSEAD, France. With over 18 years of
experience in the steel industry, Mr. Hadi Akberall has been
instrumental in the Company’s success by spearheading the
establishment of the billet manufacturing facility, implementing
SAP across the organization, playing a key role in the company's
IPO, and strengthening the marketing function. As Chief
Operating Officer (Strategy), Mr. Hadl Akberali serves on various
management committess and leads the business diversification,
industry affairs, and marketing functions.

Mr. Zoeb Salemwala is a seazoned finance professional with over
three decades of experience in financial management, awdit,
taxation, and strategic planning. He has a proven track record of
enhancing financial performance, streamlining operations, and
driving organizational growth. Mr. Salemwala serves at various
levels at different organizmtions in the field of tax, planning,
accounts and finance. Mr. Salemwala held managerial roles at
varlous organizations. His respoensibilites ranged from
developing internal controls and conducting audits to overseeing
strategic financial transactions. Mr. Salemwala holds professional
certifications in accounts & finance. His extensive experience,
strategic foresight and leadership capabilities make him an
imvaluable asset to any organization.

Mariam Akberali

Ms. Mariam Akberali brings great diversity to the Board with significant experience in the food,
restaurant, mental health and education sectors of Pakistan. She has earned a degree in Psychology from
Franklin & Marshall Coflege, USA and is passionate about social entrepreneurship in Pakistan.
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In fine with the requirements of the Listed Companies {Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 [£CG), the Company encourages representation
of independent and non-executive directors, as well as gender diversity on its Board.

The current composition of the Board is as follows:

Total number of Directors:

al  Male (06
bl Female 101
Total 07

Composition:

al  Mumber of Independent Directors 102
bl  MNumber Non-Executive Directors 103
<) Number of Executive Directors ;02

The present Board of Director of the Company comprizes of well-balanced mix of independent, non-executive and executive directors, The Chairman of the
Board is a non-executive director. The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive are held by separate individuals with clearly defined roles and
respaonsibilities.

The Audit Committee and Hurman Resource and Remuneration Commitiee of the Board were established as required under CCG. Both the Committess have
independent directors as the Chairman of the Committees. These committees are mainly composed of independent and non-executive directors.

Female Director

The Company is committed to promoting gender diversity in the workplace and provides egual opportunities for all, based on merit and suitability. The
Company’s Code of Conduct and core values (Respect, Resilience, Integrity, Dynamism and Excellence) clearly inculcate these principles and are followed
by everyone associated with the Company.

At Amrali, the Board and Management is committed towards championing growing demand of gender diversity at Board level and within workforce culture.
Currently, there is one Female Mon-Executive Director (Ms. Mariam Akberali) representing 14% of the composition of the Board.

The Management encourages females to be part of Company and provides healthy environment to all of its employees.
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During the year, five (5) meetings of the BAC were held. All the meetings were held in Pakistan.

The attendance by each Director in the BAC meetings is as follows:

. Meetings Held Meetings
Enmpnﬂnn e mmimmmmaweeees 1l -
i 13-Aug-24 20-5ep-24 29-Oct-24 27-Feb-25 29-Apr-25  Attended
Syed Asghar Jamil Rizvi ’
Chairman " 515
Mr. Zoeb Salemwala
Member 3
Mr. Sohail Feroz Shamsi ;
Member : 4/s

The purpose of the Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities for the financial reporting process {maore
particularly, the integrity of Companys financial staterments), the system of internal controls, the audit processes, disclosure of systemns and processes, and
the Company’s process for monitoring compliance with laws, regulations and the Code of Conduct of the Company.

The Audit Committee is, amongst other things, respensible for recommending to the Beard of Directors the appointment of external auditors by Company's
sharehalders and considers any gquestions of resignation or removal of external auditors, audit fees and provision by external auditors of any service
{permissible to be rendered to the Company) in addition to audit of its inancial statements.

In addition to the generality of the Audit Committee functions that embrace all aspects impinging on the well-being of the Company, shareholders’
interests, ethical standards and reguliatory requirements, the Committes shall perform the following specific responsibilities -

1. Financial Statements

The Committee shall review guarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements with particular reference to compliance with applicable accounting
policies, standards and practices. It shall focus on major judgmental areas, significant adjustments resulting from audit, going concern assumption, any
change in accounting policies and practices, significant related party tranzactions and compliance with all statutory and regqulatory requirernents, It shall
aiso review preliminary announcements of financial results prior to their publication.

2. Internal Controls

The Committee shall review the Compary's statement on internal control system before its submission to the Board and satisfy itsalf as to the adeguacy and
effectiveness of internal controls and measures to safeguard the Companys assets. Where necessary, it shall submit appropriate recommendations to the
Board. It shall also consider major findings of internal investigations of cases of fraud, embezdement and abuse of power.

3. Internal Audit

The Committes will ensure that the function is adequately resourced, functionally independent with no unreascnable limitations on its proper functioning
and meets the quality assurance requirernents, determined either through internal or external assessrment. 1t shall review the audit reports, share them with
the External Auditors and report matters of significance to the Board. Where it is decided to oult-source the internal audit function, the Committae will
recommend to the Board a professional services firm that has suitably qualified and experienced persons and is reasonably conversant with Company's
palicies and procedures. It will also provide for the Company's Head of Internal Auwdit to act as coordinator between the outsourced firm, the Committes and
the Board.

4, External Audit

The Committee shall ensure requisite functional autonomy to the external auditors, review assessment of their guality assurance and facilitate their
coordination with internal auditors of the Company. It shall review the Management Letter and discuss with the external auditors any major findings and
obsarvations therein and where appropriate submit its recommendations to the Board.

5. Risk Management

The Committee shall cause to have installed a viable risk management system in the Company and review assessment of risk and measures to avoid, share,
mitigate and accept residual risks within the overall risk appetite determined by the Board.
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6. Compliance

The Committee shall have a system installed to determine and maonitor on a periodic basis, compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements and best
practices of corporate governance. The CED shall be personally responsible to bring to the immediate notice of the Committes findings of any examination
by regulatory agencies, major litigations or claims or significant tax issues for Committee's review. Further, except where directed otherwise by the Board,
the Committee shall guide, review and menitor the formulation of significant policies as defined in the Code of Corparate Governance. [t shall also examine
all significant issues as defined in the Code of Corporate Governance dealing with controls and compliance before their submission to the Board.

7. Reporting and Other Responsibilities

The Chairman shall keep the Beard fully informed on all material lssues coming within the Committee’s remit. The Committee shall act upon such directions
as given by the Board and have such studies or investigations carried out as desired by the Board or that the Committee itself deems to be useful.

During the year, ane (1) meeting of the HR&R Committee was held The meeting was held in Pakistan. The attendance by each Director in the HRE&R
Committee meeting is as follows:

Meeting Held on Meeting
Compaosition 25-Jun-2025 Attended
Mr. Sohail Feroz Shamsi "
Chairman
Syed Asghar Jamil Rizvi J 171
Member
Mr. Shayan Akberali 11

Member

The HRER Committee is responsibie for performing the duties set out below as well as any other duties that are otherwise required by applicable corporate
laws or stock exchange rules and requirement, and as are delegated to the Committes by the Board -

«  Recommending human rescurces management policies to the Board;

»  Recommending to the Board for consideration and approval a policy framework for determining remuneration of directors (both executive and
non-executive directors) and members of senior management;

«  Annually undertaking a formal process of evaluation of performance of the Board as a whole and its Committees either directly by the Board or the
Committeeiz} or by engaging external independent consultant:

»  Recommending to the Board the selection, evaluation, development, compensation {including retirement benefits) and succession planning of the
CEC;

«  Recommending to the Board the selection, evaluation, development, compensation (including retirement benefits} of 000, CFO, Company Secretary
and Head of Internal Audit:

Conzidering and approving on recommendation of the CEQ on such matters for key management positions who report directly to CEO or COO;

Reviewing and making recommendations to the Board for the appointment of Senior Executives and for determining terms of employment of their

services;
Reviewing succession planning and matters of compensation as well as such other matters the Committes may consider suitable;

Any additional matter delegated to the Committee by the Board of the Company from time to tima.
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Price Setting 1. Analyze demand and supply As and when CO0-Operatans
Committee 2. Analyze movernent in global and local scrap prices reguired DLOO-Operations
3. Analyze change in eschange rates oo
Head of Sales & Marketing
Human 1. Owersee the Company’s compensation and benefits policies generally As and when CEQ
Rescurce 2. Bvaluate erployes’s perfarmance and review the Company'’s management reguired 00 - Strategy
Steering succession plan CO0-Operations
Committee 3. Hing and disciplinary action policees 00 - Operations
4. Assess departmental needs of human resounce Head of HR
5. Bvaluate owerall / function wise orgarogram of the Company Head of Sales & Marketing
Scrap 1. Obtairing sale forecast Monthly CEQ
Planning 2. Plan the produsction maintaming the optimum inventory level CO0-Operations
Committes 3. Scrap Procurernent planning DCO0-Operations
o 2]
Head of Sales & Marketing
Head of Supply chain
SAP Steering 1. Design and imglement SAP for new projects Fartnightly Head of IT (Acting)
Committee 2. Decuss msues faced and thesr solutions Head of Supply Chain
3. Descuss possibilities of induction of new modulies Basis Lead
ABAP Developer and Division
Coordinators
IT Stazering 1. Pripritize [T-enabled lmestrment As and when CO0-Strategy
Committee 2. Monitor service levels of mprovement reguired COO0-Operations
3. Monitor IT service defivery DCO0-0perations
4, Monitor projects o
Head of IT (Acting)
Head of Supply Chain
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Sustainability is an integral part of our business strategy and a key driver in all of our business activities. Dur innovative technologies, operational experience
and expertise enable us to minimize our environmental impact and successfully manage the socal challenges and inherant risks that are present in our
industry.

Our guiding principles for sustainability are as follows:
Maintain the highest degree of corporate governance practices;
Conduct business activities with the highest principles of honesty, integrity, truthfulness and honor;
Promote ethical business practices;
Respect the snvironment and communities in which we operate;
Assure equal employment opportunities;
Value diversity in the workplace;
Pravide a healthy and safe working envirenments;
«  Respect human rights and uphold ethical business practices;
Actin utmost good faith and exercise due care, diligence and integrity in performing the office duties;
Comply with all applicable laws and regulations;

Ensure that all business transactions are recorded in true, fair and timely fashion in accordance with the accounting and financial reporting standards,
as applicable to the Company;

Deliver superior value for our shareholders — our intent is to outperform our competitors by delivering superior growth, marging and returns to our
shareholders:

lead the industry threugh innovation, technology advancement, and responsible stewardship of resources - our intent is to develop technolagical
solutions that give our customers economic access to high guality construction material with maximum use of scarce resources and maximize the
value of their existing assets;

Enhance the economic and social well-being of our employees, their families and the communities in which we operate — our intent is to be a preferred
employer and make a positive impact in the communities where we live and work;

Be transparent in reporting and validating our progress - aur intent is to provide our stakeholders with thorough and timely information on our
progress.

Following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended 30 June 2025:

Mean Gender Pay Gap 22.39%
Median Gender Pay Gap 13.54%

=

Shayan Akberali
Chief Executive Officer
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We at Amreli Steels Limited are committed towards surpassing therequirements and expectations of our customers fstakeholders and contimually
improving upon our Health, Safety &, Environment performance by:

al Complying with applicable legal, regulatory and other reguirements to which our company subscribes;
bl Embedding the Health, Safety&Environment requirements in our routine and non-routine activities:
¢l Preventing injuries and ill health to personnel aftected by our activities through a proactive systerm of risk management;

dl  Conserving natural resources and reducing the Carbon footprint of activities by proactively assessing their envirenmental impact and mitigating their
adverse effects;

2] Ensuring competency of employvees by providing them with adequate training, information, instructions and supervision;

fl  Communicating with stakehelders to ensure a mutually beneficial understanding of our HSE policies, standards, programs and performance:
gl Encourage participation and consultation with staff and workers pertain to S E issues

hl  Ensuwring continual improverment throwgh a system of performance planning, measurement and regularreviews

ASL emplovees are at the ferefront of this policy; for its successful implementation, they shall demaonstrate their H5E consciousness by practicing their
assigned safetyroles and responsibilities. The policy shall also reinforce our standards of nurturing and developing our substantial talent pool, building
sharehalder value through performance excellence & improved financial results. and measuring customer satisfaction by providing refiable, safe and cost
effective service. tl iz our firm befief and a core business value that al accidents and work related ill health are preventable. To achieve this, we shall ensure
that timely decisions are taken and resources provided to demonstrate our commitment on implementing our H5E vision and strategy.

The Company has embraced a proactive stance towards business continuity and disaster recovery planning, ensuring alignment with its business strategy,
industry best practices, and established standards and frameworks. This commitment is a testament to the organization’s dedication to preserving the
uninterrupted flow of IT driven business operations and safeguarding valuable information assets.

The infrastructure has been meticulously designed to ensure resilience in the event of potential disasters or interruptions, with high availability production
facilities situated at state of art main data center complemented by synchronized DR servers located few kilometers away and connected through dark iiber
replications. This proactive planning serves not only to safeguard the organization but also to instill confidence in customers, partners, and stakeholders,
reaffirming the company’s resilience in the face of any challenge.

The business continuity and disaster recovery plan includes the following key components:

Policy Staterment Development: Formulate a clear and concise policy staterment that outlines the organization’s commitment to business continuity
planning.

Business Impact Anabysis (BIAL Conduct a comprehensive analysis to assess the potential impact of disruptions on the business, identifying critical
functions and dependencies.

Risk Mitigation and Preventive Controls: ldentify and implement preventive measures to mitigate risks and prevent disruptions.
Business Hecovery Strategies: Develop strategies for swiftly recovering critical business functions and processes following a disaster.

Communication and Stakeholder Engagement: Establish communication protocols for informing stakeholders, including employees, customers,
partners, and regulatory authorities, during a crisis.
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FY 2024-2025 HR Highlights: A Year of Resilience and Renewal

The past fiscal year was a testament to our organization's resilience and strategic adaptability. Faced with a turbulent economic landscape, the Human
Resources divizion successfully navigated a period of significant change, strengthening our operational foundation while upholding our core values and
commitment to our employees.

Innovating for Efficiency and Savings

A key highlight of the year was the seamless and successful transition from a global HRIS te a bespoke, locally developed solution. This strategic shift not
only provided significant cost savings but also helped conserve valuable foreign exchange, a crucial achievement during a period of US dollar scarcity.
Tailored to our domestic needs, the new HRIS offers enhanced user mobility and accessibility, positioning us for greater operational efficiency and future
growth,

Unwavering Commitment to Qur People

Throughout these challenging times, our dedication to our employees remained unwavering. We are proud to report that all employee-centric programs
were maintained without compramise, Our flagship Rising Stars initiative, a year-long program that demands extended effort from the gualified “Rising
Star” our middie and senior management, continued to thrive, showeasing our dedication to nurturing future leaders.

Furthermaore, we ensured financial stability by consistently meeting our financial commitments to our staff on time and withouwt delay, demonstrating cur
steadfast commitment to their well-being.

Strategic Workforce Optimization

In response to reduced business targets, we undertook a comprehensive company-wide job rationalization exercise, This strategic initiative, conducted in
close consultation with divisional leadership, was a difficult but necessary step to ensure the long-term sustainability and stability of the organization. By
making this strategic decision, we have emerged from the storm leaner, more agile, and better positioned to navigate the future and achieve our long-term
goals.

Looking Ahead: Our Values as a Compass

The journey ahead remains challenging. We know we are not vet "out of the woods! and external pressures persist. However, the actions taken this past
year—strengthening our core operations and honoring our commitments—have fortified our collective resilience. Our values of Respect, Integrity,
Dynamism, and Excellence will continue to guide our path. We acted with Respect by ensuring every decision was made in consultation with divisional
heads. We upheld Integrity through our transparent processes and by consistently meeting our financial ebligations to all employess.

Our Dynamism was evident in our swift and effective transition to a local HRIS solution. We have demonstrated Excellence in our execution and in our
unwavering commitment to our people and the organization's long-term health.

These experiences have made us stronger and better eguipped to take on future challenges. We are confident that by working together, we will not cnly
navigate the current landscape but alse ensure the continued success and growth of the organization for years to come.
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SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

CUTS THROUGH
SHADOWS







Motice is hereby given that the 415t Annual General Meeting (AGM] of the shareholders of Amreli Steels Limited (the Company} will be held on Tuesday, 28
October 2025 at 0500 pm. at Auditorium Hall of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAF) located at Block - 8, Chartered Accountants
Avenue, Clifton, Karachi to transact the following businesses. The shareholders can alzo attend the AGM via videa link facility.

Ordinary Business:

1.

Toreceive, considerand adopt the annual avdited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2025, together with the Directors’
and Auditors' reports thereon.

As required under section 223{7) of the Companies Act, 2017 and pursuant to the 5 8.0, 389(1)/2023 dated 271 March 2023 issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP}, the annual report of the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2025 has been uploaded on the
Company's website which can be downloaded accessing the foflowing link and QR Code:

httpsfamrelisteels.com/investor-relations/#investor-information

To appoint auditors of the Company for the financial year ending 30 June 2026 and to fix their remuneration. The Board of Directors of the Company
has recommended the name of retiring auditors, Chartered Accountants, for their re-appointment as external auditors for the year ending 30 June
2026. Mys. BDO Ebrahim and Co., Chartered Accountants, being eligible, have offered themsslves for re-appaointment.

Special Business:

EN

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolutions as special resolutions, with or without modification, pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 33(11{bl of the Companies Act, 2017 read with Regulation 5 of the Companies (Further |ssue of Shares) Regulations, 2020, for the purposes
of authorizing the Company to issue up to 40,000,000 [Forty Million) ordinary shares, having a face value of PKR 10/~ {Pak Rupees Ten) each,
constituting up to 13.47% of the existing paid up capital of the Company (which is currently 297,011,427 ordinary shares) and up to approximately
11.87% of the post-issuance paid up capital of the Company, other than by way of right, for cash consideration, in favour of Mr. Shayan Akberali, being
an existing sponsor of the Company, who has offered to subscribe to the new shares, at a price of PKR 25/ (Pak Rupees Twenty Five) per share.

RESOLVED THAT, subject to compliance with the applicable laws and obtaining the approval of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
{*SECP"} pursuant to Sections 83(1)ib) of the Companies Act, 2017 read with Regulation 5 of the Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations,
2020, the Company be and is hereby authorized to issue up to 40,000,000 {Forty Millicn} ordinary shares, having a face value of PKR 10/ (Pak Rupees
Ten} each {the *“New Shares’}, other than by way of right, for cash consideration, in favour of Mr Shayan Akberali, being an existing sponsar of the
Company who has offered to subscribe to the New Shares, ata price of PKR 25/~ (Pak Rupees Twenty Five) per ordinary share, comprising PKR 15/- (Pak
Rupees Fifteen) as premium per share, aggregating up to PER 1,000,000,000/- (Pak Rupees One Billion) {the *Direct lssuance”).

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Company is hereby authorized to obtain an advance against equity from Mr. Shayan Akberali in respect of the Direct
lssuance.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Company be and is hereby authorized and empowered to take all such actions including, but not limited to, filing
the reguisite applications for seeking the permission of the SECP and / or any other regulatory approvals that may be required under the applicable
laws for the Direct lssuance.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive Officer and / or Chief Financial Officer and / or Company Secretary of the Company, or such other
person{s) as may be authorized by any of them, be and are hereby, jointly and severally, authorized and empowered to execute and deliver all
necessary documents, take all necessary steps, and do all such acts, deeds and things Including, but not limited to, carrying out all filings, submissions
and applications with the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and the SECE for and on behalf, and in the name, of the Company as may be necessary or
required or as any of them may think fit for or in connection with or incidental for the purposes of fulfilling the above resolutions and fulfilling the
objectives thereof.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the aforesaid resolutions shall be subject to any amendments, modifications, additions or deletions as may be suggested,
directed or required by the SECP or any other regulatory body, which changes shall be deemed to be part of these special resolutions without the
need of the shareholders to pass fresh resolutions unless the same are of a substantial nature”

Any Other Business:

4

To transact any other business as may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the Chair

Thie statement as required under sections 134(3} of the Companies Act 2017 is annexed with the notice of meeting.

By Order of the Board

. L
wW

07 October 2025 ADMAN ABDUL GHAFFAR

Karachi Company Secretary
Motes:
1. Participation in the AGM Proceeding via Video Link Facility:

The Company also facilitates participation of its shareholders through a video link facility in pursuance to Circulars notified by the SECR The
members/proxies  interested to  participate in the AGM through this facifity are requested to share below information at
investor-refations@amrelistesls.com with subject “Registration for 415t AGM of Amreli Steels Limited® -
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Sharehoider Name Falia/ COC Mumber CHIC Number Cell Mumber Registered Email Address

Videa-link and login credentials will be shared with the members/praxies whose email containing all the above particulars ars received at the given
email address by the close of business on or befors 24 Gotoher 2025,

Closure of Share Transfer Books:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 17 October 2025 to 28 October 2025 (bath days inclusive). Transfers received in
order by aur Share Registrar, M/s. THE Associates (Pvt) Limited, Plot Ma_ 32-C, Jami Commercial, Street-2, D H.A, Phase-VIl, Karachi-T5500, Fakistan by
the clese of business on 16 October 2025 will be considered in tims for attending the meeting,

Appointment of Proxies:

A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Mesting is entitled to appaint another member as hisdher proxy to attend, speak
and vote on his/her behalf.

The instrument appeinting proxy and the power of attorney arather authority, under which it (s signed, or a notarized certified copy of the power or
authority must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at |2ast 48 hours before the time of the mesting. Form of Proxy is enclosed.

The proxy form shall be witnessed by twe persens whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentiened on the form

In case of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder shall furnish the attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the member and the proxy,
alang with the prowxy form

Corporate entities shall submit the Board of Directors” resolution/Power of Attarney, with specimen signature, along with the prowy form,
Attending the Annual General Meeting:

In case of individual, whether physical shareholder or the account holder or sub-account holder at Central Depasitory Company (CDC), shall
authenticate histher identity by showing hisfher ariginal CHIC or original passport at the time of attending the meeting,

The proscy shall also produce hisfher ariginal CHIC or original passport at the time of mesting
Members registered on CD are also requested te bring thelr account details with the COC

I case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resalution/Power of Attomey, with specimen signature of the nominee, shall be produced at the
time of the meeting (unless it has been provided earlier),

Change in Members Addresses:
Members are requested te notify any change in ther addresses iImmediately to the Share Registrar MSs. THE Associates (Pvt ) Limited
Procedure For E-Voting & Postal Ballot:

The memkbers are hereby notified that the SECF, vide Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018 requires all the listed companies to pravide the nght
o vate througl electronic vating facility and voting by post to the members on all businesses classified as special business,

Accardingly, the members of the Company will be allowed to exercise their right to vate through e-voting facility or veting by post In this Annual
General Meating. In accordance with the conditions mentioned in the aforesald requlations, the Company shall provide its members with the
follawing opticns for voting:

Procedure far E-vating:

[etails of the e-voting facility will be shared through an e-mail with those members of the Company who have thelr valid CNIC numbers, cell
numbers, and e-mall addresses available in the register of members of the Company by the close of business of 17 October 2025,

The web address, login details, will be communicated to members via emall, The security codes will be communicated to members through SMS fram
web partal of THE Associates (Private] Limnited (being the e-voting service provider),

Identity af the members intending to cast vote thraugh e-voting shall be authenticated through electronic signature or authentication for login,

E-Worting lires waill start from 23 October 2025, 09:00 a m.and shall dose on 27 Octaber 2025 at 5:.00 p.m. Members can cast their vates any time during
this perkod. Once the vote an a resolution is cast by a Member, he 7 she shall not be allowed 1o change it subsequently.

Procedure For Vating Through Postal Ballot

Fer members whe wish toopt for vating through post, Ballet Paper will be published and the same will also be avallable on the Company's website
wwew, amrelistesls com within the stipulated timeframe

The members shall ensure that duly filled and signed ballot paper, along with copy of CRIC/MICOP ar Passpart {in case of farelgn nationall, should
reach the Chairman of the meeting through past on the Companys fegistered address A-18, S0TE, Karachl of  email at
Ivestor-relationseramrelistesls.com ane day before the Annwal General Meeting, during working howrs.

Serutinkeesr:

In campliance with the requirements of the Comipanies {Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018, the Board of Directors of the Company has appoimted M/s,
BOO Ebvahim & Co, Chartered Accountants, a OCR rated audit firm, to act as the Serutinizer for the Annual General Meetipg Thelr role Includes
overseeing the pracess and fulfilling ather duties autlined in the Regulations

Avallability of Financial Statements and Reports on the Website:
The Annual Report af the Company for the year ended 30 June 2025 has been placed on the Company’s website weowamrelisteels.com,
Electronic Clrculation of Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2025 and Notice of AGM

MNotice of 4150 AGM containing QR enabled code and web link to access and download Annual Report 2025, has been uploaded on the Company’s
website wwiw amrelisteels com.

A RAY OF HOPE-Annual Report 2025 -~



In terms of Section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017 read with SRO 389(()/2023 dated 21 March 2023 and SRO 452{/2025 dated March 17, 2025, the
Company is allowed to send Financial Statements and Reports to its members electronically without any specific consent for the purpose.
Accordingly, the Motice of 415t AGM containing QR enabled code and weblink to access and download Annual Report 2025, has been circulated
through email to all those shareholders whose email addresses are available with the Company’s Share Registrar. In case of remaining shareholders,
whose email addresses are not available, a printed copy of notice of AGM containing QR enabled code and web link to access and downlead Annual
Report 2025, has been dispatched on their registered addresses, as allowed by the SECP vide its 5.R.0. 389{1)/2023 dated 27 March 2023 and as
approved by the sharehalders in the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 24 June 2023,

However, if a shareholder requests for a hard copy of the annual audited financial statements, the same shall be provided free of cost within seven
(07} days of receipt of such request as per Section 235 of the Companies Act, 2017, For the convenience of shareholders a“Standard Request Form for
provision of annual audited accounts” has also been made available at the Company s website www.amrelisteels.com. Shareholders who wish to
receive future Annual Reports and notices of general meetings through e-mails are requested to update their email address with the Share Registrar
of the Compary.

10. Consent for Video Conference Facility:

In compliance with Section 134{1} (b) of the Companies Act, 2017, members of the Company may attend and participate in the AGM through video
conference facility, if member{s) residing in a city other than Karachi, collectively holding 10% or more shareholding, demand inwriting, to participate
iri the AGM through video conference at least ten (10) days prior to the date of the AGh.

To avail such facility, please submit the following form with the requisite information at the Begistered Office of the Company -

IWe i i i of _ i i i i i i being a member

of Amreli Steels limited, holder of ) ) ) ) ___ordinary shares{s}

as per Registered Folio/CDC Account No. ) ) . ) ) hereby opt for video
conference facility at ) ) ) ____to attend the 40th AGM to be

held on 28 October, 2025 or any ad;uumer;;ﬁemul

Date:
Mame and Signature (s}

The Compary will intimate members regarding venue of video conference Racility at least five [05) days before the date of the AGM along with
complete information necessary to enable thern 1o access such facility

11. Prohibition on Grant of Gifts to Shareholders

In compliance with section 185 of the Companies Act, 2017 and SRC 4520172025 dated 17 March 2025, isswed by SECE, ot 15 hereby notified that no
gifts im any form or manner, thall be distributed to shareholders at the Anrual General Meating.

12. Code of Conduct for Sharehalders in Annual General Meeting:

Section 215 of the Companies Act, 2017 (“the Act™) and Regulation 55 of the Companies Regulations, 2024, “Conduct of Sharehalders at Meetings”
states that shareholders -

i shall ret bring such material that may cause threal o participants or premises whene meeting is being held;
H. shall canfine themselves to the agenda items cowverad in the notice of meesting:
i, shall keep comments and disoussion pestricted o the affairs of the company; and

b, shall not conduct in a manner to disclose any political sfliation or affend religious susceptibility of other members

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 124(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 REGARDING THE SPECIAL
BUSINESS TO BETRANSACTED AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

This statement sets out below the materlal facts concerning the Specal Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting of Amreli Steels Limited
{the*Company™) 1o be held on 28 October 2025,

The Company is required to raise additional equity in the amount of up to PER 1,000,000,000/- (Pak Rupees One Billion) for effectivenass of the master
restructuring agreed with the Company's lenders. As the Company has sverdue credit obligations, it is unable to raise eguity by way of rights issue and
therelore intends to rase such equity ather than by way of right, for cash consideration, in the form of ordinary shares, having a face value of PER 10/- (Pak
Rupees Ten] each, constituting up Lo approximately 13 47% of the axisting paid up capital of the Company (which is currently 297,011,427 ordinary shares)
and up to approximately 11.875% of the post-issuance pard up capital of the Company, pursuant to Sections 83015k} of the Companies Act, 2007 read with
Bequlation 5 of the Companies (Further [ssue of Shares) Requlations, 2020 and as permitted under the articles of association of the Compary.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on §3 October 2025 have approved the issuance of up to 40,000,000 {(Forty Million) ordinary shares
by the Company, having a face value of PKR 10/- (Pak Aupees Ten) each (the “Mew Shares”), other than by way of rightissue, for cash consideration, at a price
of PRR 25/- {Pak Rupees Twenty Five] per ordinary share, comprising PER 15/~ {Pak Rupees Fifteen) as premium per share, agagregating up to PER
1,000,000,000/- (Pak Rupess One Billion), subject to obtaining the necessary corporake and requlatory approvals, incleding the approval of the shareholders
of the Company and the Securities and Exchange Commission af Pakistan ("SECP®) (the *Direct lssuance”),

The New Shares shall be issued to Mr. Shayan Akberali, an existing sponsor of the Company who has agreed to inject the required equity in line with the
tenders’ requirements and to support the master restructuring of the Company's debt.

Accordingly, the Baard of Directars of the Company have recommended that the shareholders of the Company corsider and, if thowght fit, pass the special
resalutions set forth in the notice of the Annual General Mesting, which resalutions shall be proposed and passed as special resclutions based on the
information contaimed herein and belaw.

Tw (2] of the Directors of the Company. namely Mr. Shayan Akberali and Mr. Abbas Akberali {being the father of Mr. Shayan Akberali] have a direct interest
in the Special Business and in compliance with the provisions of Section 207 of the Companies Act, 2017 did not participate in the decision making by the
Board in respect of this matter. Apart from this, the Board of Directors of the Company have ne direct or indirect interest in the matter, except and to the
extent of their respective shareholding in the Company.

The information required to be annexed to the Naotlce in accardance with Regulation 3 of the Companies (Further Issue of Shares) Regulations, 2020 is set
out below:
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Ouantum of the issue i.e. total number of shares to be issued
and percentage of existing paid up share capital and post
issue paid up share capital

DETAILS

Up to 40,000,000 ordinary shares are intended to be issued at a price of
PKR 25/~ {Pak Rupees Twenty Five) per share comprising PER 15/~ (Pak
Rupees Fifteen) as premium per share, aggregating up to PKR
1,000,000,000/- (Pak Rupees One Billion), constituting up to 13.47% of the
existing paid up capital (which is currently 297,011,427 ordinary shares)
and up to approximately 11.87% of the post-issuance paid up capital of
the Company.

il

Issue price and justification thereof

PKR 25/« (Pak Rupees Twenty Five) per share, including a premium of PKR
15/- {Pak Rupees Fifteen) per share, being more than the 3 (three) months'
average markel price as at 02 October 2025,

(il

Consideration against which the shares are propozed to be
issued

The Mew Shares zhall be issued to Mr. Shayan Akberali for cash
consideration in the aggregate amount of PKR 1.000,000,000/- (Pak
Rupees One Billion).

vl

Mame and brief profile of the person to whom such shares
are to be issued

Mr. Shayan Akberali, being an existing sponsor of the Company with
17.09% shareholding, has offered to subscribe to 100% of the Direct
Issuance.

v

Purpose of issuance

The Company currently has overdue credit obligations to various banks
and financial institutions, as detailed in the report issued by the Cradit
Information Bureau of the State Bank of Pakistan. In connection with the
restructuring of these obligations, the relevant banks and financial
institutions have required the Company to raise additional equity. This
equity injection is necessary to reinforce and enhance the Company’s
financial position. The proposed Direct Issuance is therefore critical to
facilitating the credit restructuring process, which s essential for
ensuring the long-term sustainability and viability of the Company.

(i}

Justification as to why the proposed shares are to be issued
other thamn by way of right

Although the Company initially intended to raise equity by way of rights
issue, the Company was informed by the SECP that as per the Companies
{Further lssue of Shares) Regulations, 2020, the Company is not permitted
to undertake a rights issue due to the overdue credit obligations.

Given the abowve limitation, Mr, Shayan Akberali, being an existing
sponsor of the Company, has agreed to assume the entire obligation to
inject additional equity las reguired by the banks and financial
institutions under the restructuring terms) to support the Company’s
financial recevery and accordingly, the Company intends to proceed with
adirect issuance (i.e. other than by way of rights issue) to such sponsor of
the Campany.

fwi}

[wiii)

Benefit of the issue to the Company and the shareholders

Break-up value per share as per the latest audited accounts

In addition to enabling the Company to proceed with the credit
restructuring, which is critical ko its long-term sustainability, the proceeds
fraom the Direct lssuance will also be utilized to meet the Company’s
working capital requirements, Strengthening the working capital
paosition will enhance the Company's ability to generate operating cash
flowes, thereby supporting cngoing business operations and enabling the
servicing of its debt obligations. The continuity and stability of
operations will ultimately safeguard the interests of all stakeholders,
including the members of the Company, and will be particularly
beneficial to minority shareholders.

The breakup value per share as per the latest available audited accounts
of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2025 is PER 3518/ (Pak
Rupees Thirty Five and Paizas Eighteen).

fix]

Consent of the subscribers

The consent of Mr. Shayan Akberali has been oblained in respect of the
Direct lssuance.

(%]

Average Market Price of the shares

{if The average market price of the share during the last three (3)
maonths preceding the Board's decision is PKR 23.48/- (Pak Rupszes
Twenty Three and Paisas Forty Eight); and

(il The latest available average market price of the share as at 02
October 2025 is PKR 24.88/- (Pak Rupees Twenty Four and Paisas
Eighty Eight).

(i}

Ranking of the Shares

The Mew Shares shall rank parl passu in all respects with the existing
ordinary shares of the Company.
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SPECIAL NOTICES TO THE SHAREHOLDERS:
A. Unclaimed Dividends (Important and Mandatory):

Shareholders who, for any reason, were unable to claim their dividends have been repeatedly advised to contact our Shares Registrar to inguire about
or collect any unclaimed dividends. It was also communicated to the shareholders that, pursuant to Section 244(2) of the Companies Act, 2017, any
dividends that remain unclaimed for a period exceeding three years would be transferred ta the Federal Government in accordance with the statutory
reguirernents of Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017,

B. 7th Reminder to the shareholders for submission of bank account details/IBAN (E-Dividend):

As per Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, any dividend payable in cash shall only be remitted through electronic mode directly into the bank
account designated by the entitled shareholders. Therefore, through this notice, all shareholders are once again requested to update their bank
accounts details (ie. title of account, complete bank account number (Le. 24 digit IBAN), complete mailing address of the bank, name of the bank, folio
number, mobile number and email address) for payment of any future cash dividend through electronic mode.

Invcase of physical shares, please provide bank account details to cwr Share Registrar, M/s. THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited. Please ensure an early update
of your particulars to avoid any inconvenience in future.

C. 4th Reminder for conversion of physical shares into Book-Entry Form:

In compliance with section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 and SECP's letter No,CS0VED/Misc 201 6-639-640 dated 26 March 2021, listed companies
are required to replace existing physical shares issued by them into Book-Entry Form, In view of the above requirement, shareholders of the Company
having physical folios! share certificates are requested te convert their shares from physical form into Book-Entry Form as soon as possibla.

Conversion of physical shares into Book-Entry Form would facilitate the shareholders in mamy ways e, safe custody of shares, readily available market
for instant sale and purchase of shares, eliminate risk of foss & damage, easy & safe transfer with lesser formalities az compared to phyzical shares. The
shareholders of the Company may contact Share Registrar of the Company for assistance in conversion of physical shares into Book-Entry Form.

For any guery/problemyinformation, members may contact our Share Registrar at the following address:

THE Associates (Pwvi) Lid

Plot No. 32-C, Jami Commarcial, Street-2,
DHA, Phase-Vll, Karachi-75500, Pakistan
UAM No: (021) 111-000-322

Email: sfearthkocom pk
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INVESTORS' GRIEVANCES POLICY

The Company believes in prompt provision of resolution to all grievances of our valued shareholders in accordance with the statutory guidelines and
well-designed policy. The development of sustained stakehelder relationships s paramount to the performance of the Company. Investors’ grievances are
managed centrally by the Corporate Compliance Department of the Company through an effective grievance management mechanism for handling of
investors queries and complaints, through the following key measures -

.

.

.

Increasing the imvestors’ awareness relating to modes for filing of gueries;
Handling of investors' grievances in a timely manner;
Handling of grievances honestly and in good faith without prejudice;

Escalating grievances to the appropriate levels with full facts of the case requiring attention of the senior management or the Board, for settlernent of
the grievance, if required;

Carrying out investigations to inquire about the cause of the grievance;
Taking appropriate remedial action immediately to facilitate the respected investors of the Company;

Investors can communicate their grievances through any of the following channels -

By calling at LIAN: (+92-21} 111 - AMRELI (367354
By writing to: The Company Secretary
Amreli Steels Limited
Plot Mo. A-18, 51.T.E. Karachi, Pakistan
By sending an email: investor-relations@amretisteels.com
By accessing website: httpsyfamrelisteels.com/investor-relations#lomplaints

DISCLAIMER: “In case investors’ complaints are not properly redressed by the Company, investors may lodge their complaints with Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan {"the SECP”). However, SECF will entertain only those complaints which were at first directly requested to be
redressed by the Company and the Company has failed to redress the same. Further, the complaints that are not relevant to SECPs regulatary
domainscompetence shall not be entertained by the SECP”

By accessing SECH: httpsy//sdms.secp.govpks
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Stakeholders
Institutional
Investors /

Shareholders

Customers &
Suppliers

Banks and Other
Lenders

Media

Regulators

Analysts

Employees

Local
Community and
General Public

Management of

ASL acknowledges and honors the trust our investers have put
in s by striving to provide a steady return on their investment.
We rigorously enforce a transparent relationship with all our
stakeholders.

ASL has invested significantly over the years In customer
relationzhip management. Our continuous and sustainable
growth is also attributable to engaging reputed suppliers as
business partners for supply of Industrial inputs, equipment
and machinery.

Banks and other financial institutions are engaged by the
Company on an on-going basis in relation to negotiation of
rates, lending purposes, short term financing, deposits and
investments. Banks are also consulted on issues linked with
letters of credit and payments to suppliers, along with other
disbursements of an operational nature.

Different communication mediums are used on need basis to
apprise the general public about new developments, activities
and philanthropic initiatives of ASL.

ASL prides itself in being a responsible corporate citizen and
abides by the laws and regulations of Pakistan. ASL consciously
ensures that all the legal requirements of other countries are
also fulfilled while conducting business outside Pakistan.

ASL has paid a total of Rs. 3.96 billion tax (comiprising in terms aof
income taxes, federal excise duties, sales taxes and custom
duties) to Government Exchequer during the financial year
under review and continues to be one of the highest taxpayers
of Pakistan.

In order to remain transparent and attract potential investors,
ASL engages with analysts on projects with due regard to
regulatory restrictions imposed on inside information and or
trading, to avoid any negative impact on the Company's
reputation or share price.

ASLs commitment to its most valuwed resource, a dedicated and
competent workforce, is at the core of its human resocurce
strategy, ASL provides a nurturing and employee friendly
environment while investing considerably in local and foreign
employee trainings. Besides monetary compensations, ASL has
also invested in health and fitness activities for its employees,

In addition to local communities near plant sites, ASL engages
with general public at large through its CSR activities. This
engagement helps to identify needed interventions in the field
of education, health and general economic uplift of the society.

Effect and Value to
Amreli Steels Limited (ASL)

The providers of capital allow ASL the means to
achieve its vision.

Our success and performance depends upon the
loyalty of our customers, their preference and our
supply chain management.

Dealings with banks and lenders is key to ASLs
performance in terms of the following:

« Access to funds

« Better interest rates and loan terms

« Minimal fees

+ Higher level of customer service

« Effective planning for the future

By informing the media of the developments and
activities of ASL, effective awareness is created
regarding the Company and the products and
services offered, indirectly having a positive impact

Laws and regulations, determination of prices and
other factors controlled by the Government affect
ASL and its performance.

Providing all the reguired information to analysts
on the historical performance of the Company,
material announcement made during the period
and help them understand the industry and its
dynamics more clearly to create a positive investor
environment.

ASL: emplovees represent its biggest asset. They
implement every strategic and operational decision
and represent the Company in the industry and
community.

The people of the country provide the grounds for
ASL to build its future on.

The Company disseminates the notice of its general meetings to all registered sharehalders alongwith annual report containing financial statements of the
Company. Besides this, the Company also publishes the notice of AGM in English and Urdu newspapers having drculation across the country and
sharehaolders are also informed by Company through timely updating the notice of AGM and other relevant information at the official website of the
Company as well as designated web-pertal of the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Sharehalders are also encouraged to avail the facility of video conferencing {as per the prescribed procedures) and getting notices by email addresses (as
provided by shareholders) te encourage maximum attendance at the meetings. The Cornpany always facilitates and ensures shareholders” presence while
entertaining their requests if feasible and viable. it values and honors their inputs, records their concemns, prepositions, suggestions in minutes and keeps
them abreast on the progress and subsequent actions. Shareholders can also actively participate during general meatings in discussions on operations,
objectives and future strategy of the Company.
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The Company has conducted mandatory Corporate Briefing Session (CB3), for the financial year 2024 through virtual means for better participation by
giving fair advance intimation to shareholders and analysts’ community. Chief Financial Officer of the Company gave presentation on financial and
operational details of the Company during Corperate Briefing Session pertaining to the respective periods covered. Presentation were also posted on the
Company’s website after the Corporate Briefing Session, which can easily be viewed by all respected sharshelders of the Company as well as the analysts.
The same can be viewed by accessing Investors’  Relations portion of  the Company’s website {i.e.
hittps/wwwamrelisteels.com/investor-relations#investorinformation).

Corporate Briefing Session for the year ended 30 June 2024 held on 22 Novemnber 2024.

+ Board of Directors' Meeting was held on 23 September
2024. The Board approved the annual audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June
2024 and the Directors’ Repart thereon.

September
2024

« An Extraordinary General Meeting (EOGM) of the Company
wias held on 30 July 2024, for the election of directors of the JULY
Company. As a result, new directors were appointed to the < 2024
Board for a term of three years.

Board of Directors’ Meeting was held on 29 October 2024. < 2024
The Board approved the condensed interim financial
staternents for the first quarter ended 30 September 2024
aleng with the Directors' Report thereon.

« 40th Annual General Meeting {AGM) of the Company was V
held on 26 October 2024 for approval of annual audited
financial staternents of the Company for the year ended 30
June 2024, OCTOBER

N

NOVEMBER
2024

+ The mandatory Corporate Briefing Session (CBS) for the
year ended 30 June 2024 was held on 22 Novernber
2024,

V

APRIL
2025

»  Board of Directors' Meeting was held on 29 April 2025,
The Board approved the condensed interim, financial
staternents of the Company for the third quarter ended
31 March 2025 along with the Directors’ Report
thereon.

«  Board of Directors' Meeting was held on 27 February 2025.
The Board approved the condensed interim financial FEBRUARY
staternents of the Company for the half year ended 31 < 2025
December 2024 along with the Directors' Report thereon.
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As at 30 June 2025

Categories of Shareholders |

Abbas Akberal

Shayan Akberali

Hadi Akberali

Mariam Akbearal

Zoeb Salermwaka

Syed Asghar lamil Rirvi
Sohail Feroz Shamsi

Number of Shareholders
Directors and their Spouse(s) and Minor Children

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties

Maknash Akberali

1

Shares Held Percentage
02540482 31.0E
37441023 1260
3773222 1270

1,000 Q.00

100 Q.00

500 Q00

500 Qoo
55,732,930 1877

Banks, Development Finandal Institutions, Non-Banking Finance Companies, Insurance

Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds

Banks, DF| & MNEF
Insurance Companies

Mutual Funds

General Public

Loeal
MNon-Resident Farsign

Cithers

Total

Shareholders holding 5% or more
Abbas Akberali

Makwash Akberali
Hadi Abbas Akberali
Shayan Akberali

8316
324

EF)

3045264 L.23
5,268,201 L7
26,647,631 857
27 559661 L]
6,673,988 225
375883 127
297,011,427 100200
Shares Held Percentage
91,294,723 30.74
55,732,930 1877
37732212 1270
37441023 1261
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As at 30 June 2025

il i 100
4603 101 500
1287 501 1000
1360 1001 5000

318 5001 10000

106 0001 15000

n 15007 20000
51 20001 25000
20 25007 30000
12 30001 35000
] 35001 40000
10 40001 45000
n 45001 50000
5 50007 55000
& 55001 60000
4 G000 65000
4 EE001 F0000
4 70001 75000
z 75001 80000
2 20001 &5000
z 85007 S0000
1 SO001 55000
8 S5001 100000
3 100001 105000
2 106001 110000
1 110001 115000
3 115001 120000
5 120001 125000
3 125001 130000
1 130001 135000
3 145001 150000
z 160001 65000
1 175001 120000
1 180001 185000
z 185001 150000
1 150001 1595000
1 195001 200000
2 205001 210000
1 135000 240000
1 240000 245000
1 245001 250000
1 255001 260000
1 270001 275000
2 2BO001 2E5000
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24172
JXIEAGT
1249666
3520821
2538189
1364280
1300795
1216314

560230
400010
Q24270
425973

261390
351000
245500
271000
285336
154301
1685900
180000

92364
895375
310208
215000
110043

617231
378976
130010
4474598
3255943
180000
181000

1595000
415500
238773

244783

259625

0.0081
07496
04207
1.1854

04553
04380
04055
01885
01347
03n12
0.1434
01832

0182

ooz
00974
Q0520
00559

003
03018
01044
0077
00370
01198

01276
0438
01507
01057

01279

00&73
(PR EA

00842
00a74
o7
0192



PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

As at 30 June 2025

1 320001 325000 321000 ' 01081
1 335001 340000 338500 ' 01140
1 345001 350000 349688 ' 01177
1 360001 3&5000 3B1779 [ alze
1 470001 475000 470211 ' 01583
1 ' 435001 495450 ' 0.1668
1 | 500001 505000 ' 500500 ' 0.1685
1 540001 545000 540850 ' 01821
1 ' 535001 ' ' 02020
1 | 650001 655000 ' 654223 ' 02203
1 695001 700000 700000 ' 02357
1 I 700001 705000 ' 702767 ' 02366
1 745001 750000 750000 ' 02525
1 1250001 1255000 1254759 ' 04225
1 1735001 1740000 ' 1738356 ' 05853
i 3435001 3500000 3500000 ' 11784
1 4475001 4480000 4478136 ' 15077
1 5265001 5270000 ' 5268201 ' 17737
1 25595001 26000000 26000000 ' 87539
1 37440001 37445000 37441123 ' 126060
1 i 37730001 37735000 ' 7N ' 127040
1 | 55730001 55735000 ' 55712930 ' 187645
1 91290001 91295000 91294723 ' 307378
B695 Company Total 297011427 ' 100.0000
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

e — ——

INSPIRES
GROWTH







The Company recognizes that Governance, Risk Management, and Compliance (GRC) are three pillars that work together for the purpose of assuring that
the arganization meets its objectives.

GRC is a discipline that aims to synchronize information and activity across governance, risk management and compliance in order to operate maore
efficiently, enable effective information sharing, more effectively report activities and avoid wasteful overiaps.

Governance

Governance {Corporate Governance) is the combination of processes established and executed by the Board of Directors (the Board) that are reflected in
the Company’s structure and how it is managed and led toward achieving goeals of the Comipany as a whole.

The corporate governance structure of the Company is based on statutory and regulatory compliance reguirements that are applicable to companies listed
an the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and Company’s Articies of Association complemented by several internal procedures. These procedures include a
risk assessment and control system, as well as a system of assurances on compliance with applicable laws, reguiations and the Company's Code of Conduct.

Major External Regulations
Companies Act, 2017 (Formerly: Companies Ordinance, 1984) and Rules made thereunder
Listed Companies [Code of Corporate Governance Regulations), 2019
Securities Act, 2015
Listimg Regulaticns of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
D Regulations
All applicable Labor Laws
All applicable Taxation Laws and Rules made thereunder
Competition Act, 2010 and Rules made thereunder
Other SECP Regulations, Circulars, Notifications and Guidelines issued from time to time

Other local and International laws applicable directly or indirectly

Major Internal Regulations
The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
Code of Conduct
Whistle Blowing Policy
Other Significant policies formulated by the Company from time to time

The Board is responsible for governing the organization by establishing Board policies, setting the goals, objectives and strategies the Company is required
to adopt, and formulating policies and guidelines for achieving the said goals and objectives. The Board is accountable to the shareholders for the discharge
of its fiduciary functicn.

The management is responsible for implernentation of the aforesaid goals and strategies in accordance with the policies and guidelines laid down by the
Board. In order to facilitate the smeoth running of the day-to-day affairs of the Company, the Board entrusts the Chief Executive Officer (CED) with necassary
pawers and responsibilities. The CEQ is, in turn, assisted by various committees comprising of the Chief Operating Officers, Chiefl Financial Officer and the
Heads of Businesses and Functions. The Board is also assisted by sub-committees comprising mainly of independent/non-executive Directors.

Risk Management

Risk management iz predicting and managing risks that could hinder the Company to achieve its objectives. The Board has the overal|l respansibility of
overseeing the risk management processes, which include both risk management and internal controf procedures, The Company's processes, which are
documented and reqularly reviewed, are designed to safeqguard assets and address risks that the business might face or that may impact business
continuity. These are, in turn, reported to the Board and senior management for timely action where required, to ensure uninterrupted operations.

The Company maintains a clear organizational structure with a well-defined chain of authority, Senior management is responsible for implementing
procedures, monitoring risk and assessing the effectiveness of various controls. The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets, regulatory levies and taxes, external factors affecting the marketability and profit margin of its products, internal
factors that may compromise the Company's ability to meet its targets, and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial
performance,

Compliance

Compliance at Amreli Steels means adherence with the applicable laws and regulations and the Company's. policies and procedures. The Company
considers strong and efficient governance as a key to the Company's success.

Due to the increasing number of regulations and need for operational transparency, the Company is increazingly adopling the use of consolidated and
harmonized sets of compliance controls. This approach is used to ensure that all necessary governance reguirements can be met without unnecessary
duplication of efforts from resources to ensure effectiveness and efficiency.
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CORPORATE CALENDAR

Tentative Dates for the Financial Year 2025-26

» Board Meeting

For the First Quarter ending

30 September 2025
Last week of October 2025

« Corporate Briefing
Session
For the year ended 30 June 2025
Second Week of Movernber 2025

Board Meeting

For the Half Year ending
31 December 2025
Third week of February 2026

Board Meeting

For the Year ending 30 June 2026
Third week of September 2026

Board Meeting

For the Third Quarter ending
31 March 2026
Last week of April 2026

+ Annual General
Meeting
For the Year ending 30 June 2026
Third week of October 2026
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE
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RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The Baard is responssble far martaining and reviewing the effectivenes of company’s risk management activities fram a strategic, financial, and operational perspec-
tive Thiese activities are designed to identify and manage, rather than eliminate, the rsk of fafiure to adhieve busmess objectives or to successfully defver our business
strategy, We follow the Three Lines of Deferise approach ta risk management. Risks are cwred and managed within company and reviewed atleast anniually,

«Consider key busness « Mzspss controls « fccept or remediate « Busiress Unit, Process Leved,
ochjectives Estimate likelihood, current risk and control ERM steering committes and
« Identify principal risks ard impact erndronment Ausdit Committee
« Idenitify key controls «Consider legal, reputation « Determine comective

and conduct exposurne action i needed

Three Lines of Defence

& internal Audit

4 Legal and Compliance
4 Information Technology
& Financial and Cost Controlling

& Physical Security
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Internal control is integral part of our activities. 1t consists of all measures taken by the company for the purpose of:
Pratacting its resources against waste, fraud, and inefficiency;
Ensuring accuracy and reliability in aceounting and operating data;
Securing compliiance with the organizational policies; and
Evaluating the level of performance in all organizational units of the company.

We are in the process of adopting CO50 framework to attain the objectives that are;

Operational Objectives—these pertain to effectiveness and efficiency of the entity’s operaticns, including operational and financial performance goals,
and safequarding assets against loss.

Reporting Objectives—These pertain to internal and external financial and non-financial reporting and may encompass reliabélity, tmeliness,
transparency, or other terms as set forth by regulators, recognized standard setters, or the entity's policies.

Compliance Objectives—these pertain to adherence to laws and regulations to which the entity is subject to.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Compamy's system of internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board considers that strong
internal controls are integral to the sound management of the crganization, and it is committed to maintaining strict financial, operational, and risk
management control over ail itz activities with formally defined lines of responsibility, delegated authorities, and clear operating processes. The systermns
that the Board has established are designed to safeguard both the shareholders’ investment and the assets of the company. Entity level controls are in place
far the achieverment of desired objectives. Te ensure the effectiveness and reliability of intermal control, ASL has outsourced internal audit function ta M/s.
Shekha Mufti & Co. Chartered Accountants who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and
procedures of the Company.

The systems, standard operating procedures, and controls are implemented by the executive leadership team and are reviewed by the internal audit team
whiose findings and recommendations are placed before the Audit Committes.

To maintain objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the Audit Committee, The Internal Audit team develops an annual awdit
plan based on the risk profile of the business activities. The Internal Audit plan is approved by the Audit Committee, which also reviews compliance with the

plan.

The Intermal Audit team monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adeguacy of intermal control systems in the Company, its compliance with operating
systemns, accounting procedures, and policies at all locations of the Company. Based on the report of the internal awdit function, process owners undertake
corrective actions in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the contrals, Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented
to the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee reviews the reports submitted by the Internal Auditors i each of its meetings. Also, the Audit Committee at semiannually has
independent sessions with the external auditors and the Management 1o discuss the adequacy and effectiveness of internal financial controls.

Internal Control Framework
Control Risk Control Activities Information & Monitoring
Environment The Campany has The policies and Communication The Irtemal control
Management is keen to ongoing process of procedures are The Company has a system is actively
promote Integrity, ethical  Identifying and analyzing developed in order to dafinad formal monitered. Ongoing
saliies and the risks. Mechanisms are ensure that mechaniEn of menitering oocurs in the
cammitrment ta developed to respond to management directives communication and ardinary course of
competence, the changing condition. are understood clearly sharing of information operations, and includes
The identified risk are and carried out properly. amongst the regular management and
Campany and evaluated and prioritized departments and supervisory activities,
departmental imorder o take Al She nedestnry af tions stakahaldars and other actions
organcgrams are appropriate actions. are taken to address risks personnel take in
designed properly 1R AERE SRS All responisible parsonnel  Larforming their duties
assigning the chjective. have been given clear that assess the quality of
appropriate lines for These include a range of understanding of their internal control system
reparting of each achiities sch a8 role in intemal contral performance.
functional area. approvals systerm as well as how
S individual activities relate
Key Performance authorizations, P tuthicuthe::m i
indicators (KPls} are verifications, '
established to monitar reconciliations,
the perfarmance of its budgeting, security of
depariments against assets, segregation of
their stated objectives. duties and reviews of
operating performance.
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Tel: 92 21 1568 3030 ind Floor, Block-C
Fax: +52 21 3568 4239 Lakson Square, Bullding Mo.1
www, bdo,com,pk Sarwar Shaheed Road

Karachi-T4200
Pakistan

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF AMRELI STEELS LIMITED ONTHE
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE)
REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations)
prepared by the Board of Directors of Amreli Steel Limited for the year ended June 30, 2025 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the
Reguiations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the
Staterment of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does net and to highlight
any non-compliance with the reguirements of the Ragulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to
plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal contral covers
all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such intermal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of
Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent
of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee,

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the
Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the yvear endad Juns
30, 2025.

\
B B in —
KARACHI h
BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
DATED: October 03, 2025
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
UDIN: CR202510067Dr5BpTYVH Engagement Partner: Zulfigar Ali Causer

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
BDO Ebwsbvm O Co,, & Faxitiam regilered partnarship fem, e meméer of SO0 imternational Lmited. o UK company limfed by pearantee,
i fovem part & the indernatianal BEK networs of Indapendent miambed (rms
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Amreli Steels Limited (“the Company”) has complied with the requirements of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 ("the
Regulations) in the following manner,

1.

2

The total numdbser of Directors of the Company are seven {07) as per the following:

bdale 5]
Female 1

The composition of Board is as follows:

Mir. Sohail Feraz Shamsi
e en Syed Asghar Jarmil Rizw
Mon-Executive Director! Chairman M. Abbas Akberali
) Mr. Zoeb Salermwala
Mon-Executive Directors M. Mariarn Akbeal
. Mir. Shayan Akberadl
o Dinctons M. Hadi Abbas Akberak

Mote: In accordance with Regulation &(1) of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, the requirement is ta have at least
two or one-third of the members of the Board, whichever is higher, as independent directors. The current Board of Directors of the Company comprizses
seven members, one-third of which equates to 233, As the fractional value falls below 0.5, rounding up to one is not warranted, as two independent
directors elected by the shareholders in terms of Section 166 of the Companies Act, 2017 possess the reguisite competencies, knowledge, skills, and
diversified experience essential for rendering independent decisions in the best interest of the Company.

3

4.

10

11.
12

The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a Director on more than seven listed companies, Including this Company.

The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it througheut the Company
along with its supporting policies and proceduras.

The Board has developed Vision and Mission statements, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that
complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval and subsequent update is maintained by the Company.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the Board/ Shareholders as empowered
by the relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2017 (“the Act"} and the Regulations.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a Director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has
complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meetings of the Board.

The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for the remuneration of Directors in accordance with the Act and the Regulations.

All the Directors of the Company have either obtained certificate of Directors’ Training Program as required under clause 19 of listed companies (Code
of corporate governance) Regulation 2019 or are exempted from the requirement as per the Regulations.

The Board has approved the appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, induding their remuneration and
terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.

The Board has formed the following committees comprising of members given below:

Syed Asghar Jamil Rizvi - Chairman | Independent Director
a. Audit Committes Mr. Sohail Feroe Sharmsi | independent Directos
Mr. Zoeh Salermwala | NonExecutive Directar

| Category

b Hurman e r. Sohail FHU:L‘I.‘IHJI'HS-i—EI'&man | Independent D_l'ectl:x
Ramunaration G i Syed Asghar Jamil Rizvi | Independent Director
M. Shayan Akberali | Executive Director
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13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committess for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the committees held during the year are as under:

al  Audit Committee - Five [05] meetings

bl Human Besource and Remuneration Committes - One (01} meeting

15. The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to M/s. Moore Shekha Mufti & Co. Chartered Accountants who are considered suitably qualified

and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

16. The statutery auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactary rating under the Quality Control Review program of
the institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Owversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in
compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent

children} of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretory or Director of the Company.

17. The statutery auditers or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in accordance with the Act, the

Regulations or army other regulatery requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that al! other requirements of the regulations 3,6.7,8.27,32,33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with.

1%. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3,6,7,8.27,32,33 and 36 i3 as follows:

The Board and its HR&R Committee are effectively discharging

Momination Committes 291}
. . the responsibilities prescribed for the Nomination Committes,
The Board may constitute a separate committee, designated as a5 Its constitutian Is hon-mandatory
the nomination committee, of such number and class of -
directors, as it may deem appropriate in its circumstances.
Risk Management Committee 301} The Board and its Audit Committes are effectively discharging
T o ) kb . f the responsibifities prescribed for the Risk Management
% POARE I OAREHILAE AT T Rt SNt EORTRiREs & Committee, as its constitution is non-mandatory.
such number and class of directors, as it may deem appropriate
iri its circumstances, to carry out a review of effectiveness of risk
management procedures and present a report to the Board.
Disclosure of significant policies on website 35{1)(4) As the Regulation does not require mandatory disclosure of key
; ; elements of its significant poficies on the website, the Company
The company may post on its website key elements of its has not made updates ta the wehlte
significant policies including but not limited ta the following: :
{1) Communication and disclosure policy
{2) Risk management policy
{3) Internal contrel policy
{4) Director's remuneration policy
Environmental , Social and Governance [ESG) matters 10{AHS) The Board effectively provides governance and oversight in

The Board is responsible for setting the company s sustainability
strategies, priorities and targets to create long term corporate
value. The Board may establish a dedicated sustainability
committee having at least one female director.

relation to the Company's initiatives on Environmental, Social
and Governance matters,

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

L £
f‘ y ;.
Abbas Akberali
Chairman
24 September 2025
Karachi
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ROLE OF CHAIRMAN OF THEBOARD

Abbas Akberali

ROLE OF CEO

Shayan Akberali
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Abbas Akberali

Dear Sharsholders,

Your Company stands at an important inflection point where the outlook ahead signals a path toward steady stabilization and growth. The convergence of
macroeconomic adjustments, regulatory rationalization, and improving liquidity conditions is creating a strong foundation for enhanced operational
latitude. With market dynarmics evolving, the steel industry is positioned to regain equilibriumi in both supply chains and demand cyeles, paving the way for
remewed competitiveness and capacity utilization. It is reasonably foreseeable that the Company will transition into an era of growth, enabling the
realization of its industrial potential under conditions that suppaort long-term stability and stakeholder value creation.

The Company has taken proactive measures to strengthen its positicn by prioritizing cash optimization and entering inlo a Master Restructuring Agreement
with lenders, ensuring continuity and reinforcing long-term viability. At the industry level, active engagement with the gevernment through Lthe Pakistan
Association of Large Steel Producers has led to constructive outcomes, including the phasing cut of blanket tax exemptions in the former FATASPATA regions
-an important slep toward fostering a level playing field and enhancing competitiveness. At the same time, the industry continues to encourage supporkive
policias on energy costs and long-term investment, which will further bolster employment and growth.

Pakistan's recent infrastructure rebuilding efforts, following the monsoon season, highlight the growing emphasis on climate-resilient development. For the
steel sector, this represernts a significant opportunity, as demand for durable materials is expected to rise with strong governmaent and international support
for resiient and sustainable infraztructure. On the global stage, Pakistans strengthening economic ties with Gulf countries and other regional partrers
underscore the importance of enhanced connectivity and cooperation, opening long-term avenues for investment, trade integration, and industrial

growth,

The Board reaffirms its unwavering commitment te fulfilling its Aiduciary and governance responsibilities, including the supervision of business operations,
the exercise of informed and thoughtful judgment, the oversight of risk management and internal controls, adherence to applicable legal and regulatory
frameworks, and the development of strategies aligned with the Company's long-tarm objectives and core values, In line with regulatory requirements, the
Board conducted its annual self-assessment to evaluate the performance and effectiveness of the Board as a whole, its individual members, and its
committees, The outcome of this review was highly encouraging, reflecting the Board’s continued diligence, accountability, and dedication to upholding

the highest standards of corporale governance while fostering a culture of excellence and continueds improvement.

| extend my sincere gratitude to our employees for their steadfast dedication, to my fellow Board members for their thoughtful stewardship, and to our
stakeholders for their enduring confidence in the Company. The Board and management remain firmly focused on strengthaning operational perfermance
and positioning Amreli Steels to capture opportunities as the operating enviranment continues to improve, With a strong slrategic feundation and an
urwavering commitment to excellence, we remain deeply dedicated ta creating sustainable, long-term value for all stakehalders and guiding the Company

toward continued growth and success.

Abbas Akberali
Chamman
24 September 2025
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_Shaj_;a_n Akberali

Dear Sharsholders,

Assalam-o-Alaikum. The past year has once again tested our resilience as a company. Unfortunately, FY25 was a year in which Amreli Steels could not
operate at the levels required to make our business viable. With liguidity severely constrained and our focus consumed by the restructuring process, we
were unable to utilize our capacity or achieve the scale of operations necessary to cover fixed costs. This reality weighed heavily on our financial
performance and marked FY25 as a year primarily dedicated to survival rather than growth,

The restructuring process itself, while necessary, has taken longer than we had initially anticipated. Engaging with mulliple stakehalders, navigating a
difficult economic backdrop, and aligning terms with cur lenders has been a complex undertaking. However, | am pleased (o share that we are now closing
inon the finish line and expect to conclude this restructuring shortly. Once finalized, this milestone will provide us with the financial lexibility and stability
required to restart operations at sustainable levels,

While F¥25 did not deliver the results we had hoped for, the time and effort invested in restructuring were unavoidable and essential. By addressing the
financial constraints that erippled our operations, we are laying the foundation for a stronger Amreli Steels. The sacrifices made in the past twa vears -
right-sizing, operational streamlining, and stringent cost management - will allow us to move forward as a leaner, more agile, and more competitive

COMmpany.

Looking ahead, we see reasons for caubious optimism. The government's policies aimed at economic stabilization, infrastructure investment, and easing of
interest rales provide a pathway for recovery in our industey. With the restructuring set to be completed, we will finally have the ability to focus on restoring
our production levels, strengthening relationships with our customers, and regaining cur market position.

| remain confident that Amreli Steels will emerge stronger from this difficult chapter. Gur company has weathered adversity before, and each time we have
built back with greater resilience, With the imminent restructuring behind us, we can tum our attention toward growth and value creation for all eur
stakeholders,

In closing, | would like to acknowledge the patience of our shareholders, the dedication of our employees, the perseverance of our management team, the
support of our lenders and the trust of our business partners. The vear behind us was one of sacrifice, but the year ahead holds the promise of renewal.
Together, we will rebuitd Amreli Steels into the company we know it can be.

Yours sinceraly,
] 1]
EL Lo (e
Shayan Akberali

Chief Executive Officer
14 September 2025
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Esteemed Shareholders,

The financial year 2025 was another demanding period for your Company and for Pakistan’s formal steel value-chain. While macroeconomic stabilization
gathered pace, operating conditions for documented steel producers remained difficult: domestic construction demand was uneven, input and energy
costs were volatile, and sector-specific distortions persisted. Against this backdrop, management concentrated on operational discipline, cash preservation,
and customer servica continuity, while actively engaging with policymakers on reforms critical to a level playing fiald.

From a global vantage point, steel markets experienced a fragile, stop-start recovery. Demand in several advanced economies softenad under the lagged
effects of tight monetary policy, while China’s protracted property-sector adjustment weighed on regional steel consumption and prices. International
baodies noted a challenging backdrop for 2025, with weak proftability and excess capacity in parts of Asia keeping margins under pressure. At the same
time, shipping disruptions and detours periodically lengthened transit times and raised freight costs, complicating raw material imports including serap
used in steal production.

At the same time, regional cooperation platforms provided a meazure of forward-losking momentum. During the recently held Shanghai Cooperation
Organisation (SCO) Summit in Tianjin, Pakistan reiterated its commitment to fostering deeper regional cooperation in trade, connectivity, and industrial
development. The Summit emphasized multilateral partnerships to advance energy integration, industrial linkages, and sustainable infrastructure - with
specific reference to expanding the China - Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC). For Pakistan's steel and construction industries, these commitments hold
patential for future demand creation, industrial collaboration, and foreign investment.

Domaestically, stabilization efforts produced some important macro indicators of improvement, even as real-sector momentum stayed uneven. Headline
inflation decelerated sharply into mid-2025, enabling the State Bank of Pakistan {58P) to reduce the policy rate to 11% in May 2025 - an aggregate easing of
over 1,000 basis points fram the FY24 peak -maintaining that setting even in Septemiber 2025. The Ecomomic Survey reported FY25 GDP growth at 2.68%,
while the external account strengthenad materially, culminating in Pakistan's first full-vear current account surplus in 14 years. While these developments
are encouraging, sustaining reform progress and expanding investment will be critical to securing more durable growth.

The year witnessed both challenges and developments that had a bearing on Pakistan’s economic outiook and the operating environment of the steel
industry. Recently, Pakistan endured devastating moensoon and flash flocds across Punjab and Khyber Pakhtunkhwa - provinces central to the nation’s
agriculture, energy, and infrastructure networks. The calamity claimed over 800 lives, displaced more than 1.8 million people, and inundated thousands of
villages, agricultural lands, and critical transportation corridors. Beyond the human tragedy, these events disrupted food supply, logistics, and construction
activity, weighing further on domestic industrial demand, including steel. The destruction of farmland and rural assets also dampened rural purchasing
pawer, with spillover effects across multiple sectors of the economy. These disasters underscore the urgency of investing in climate-resilient infrastructure,
improved water management, and disaster-preparedness frameworks. At the same time, they highlight an opportunity: reconstruction and rehabilitation
efforts, if adequately resourced by the government and multilateral partners, can stimulate demand for long steel while supporting broader national
recovery.

These developments show that Pakistan faces both challenges and opportunities. On the downside, climate shocks and long-standing weaknesses are
halding back short-term growth. On the upside, regional cooperation and the push for reconstruction could help build fresh momenturn. To tap into this
patential, steady government support will be essential - from fairer taxes and action against informality and smuggling to ensuring a level playing field for
businesses that aperate within the system.

Energy remained a pivotal factor in determining competitiveness, with electricity forming a major cost component for stee! melting and re-rolling
operations. The federal government announced an industrial-tariff rationalization to support production and exports, including a reduction in average
industrial electricity rates. However, frequent quarterly adjustments, fuel-cost changes, and surcharges continued to create uncertainty, making it difficult
for energy-intensive industries like steel to plan effectively. Stable and predictable energy pricing will be crucial for ensuring investment and operaticnal
continuity.

Policy and tax measures continued to put pressure on the formal, tax-paying steel sector. Industry groups repeatedly pointed out that current tax imbalane-
es hurt compliant producers while also costing the government valuable revenue. Steeimakers have urged policymakers not to bring back tax breaks,
warning that such exemptions would worsen the unfair playing field, fuel under-inveicing and smuggling, and even threaten the survival of documented
businesses.

Cwring the year under review, the unavailability of LC lines posed a severe constraint on operations, restricting the import of critical raw materials. This
hampered production continuity and directly contributed to the Company's underperformance during the reporting pericds. In the absence of functional
LC facilities, the Company was compelled to operate well below optimal capacity, underscoring how financing bottlenecks can translate into significant
operational and financial stress.
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In parallel, the Company made significant progress toward finalizing a Master Restructuring Agreement (MRA) with its lenders, underscoring its
commitment te financial discipline and transparency. The framework reflects the Company's determination to sustain operations and secure long-term
growth. The journey to successful execution of the MRA waz prolonged and challenging. Although the Company has anticipated the need for debt
reprofiling in February-23 based on prevailing macroeconomic uncertainties and political tension and has held various meeting in this matter with financial
institutions. However, the reprofiling efforts could not materialized due to delays in approval process of various banks. This delay has further deteriorated
the financial position of the Company due to lower capacity utilization and has eventually led to a need to master restructuring, the formal process of which
started in September-24. Mevertheless, persistent collective efforts by all stakeholders ultimately prevailed. The constructive role of supporting banks, along
with the valuable support and guidance of Dada Partners, proved instrumental in bridging differences, normalizing the process, and enabling the Company
to move forward under a unified restructuring framework.

At the time of finalizing this report, LC lines were on the verge of reopening, allowing the Company to gradually restore procurement cyeles and mowve
toward normalized production. While thiz relief is recent, it presents an important ocpportunity to stabilize operations in the months ahead. The Board alsa
wizhes to place on record its sincere appreciation for the suppliers who extended exceptional support during this critical period, ensuring continuity of
supplies despite severe working-capital pressures.

Financial Performance for the year:

The factors outlined above placed considerable pressure on the Company's financial results, reflecting the difficult external environment in which it has
operated. Despite thesa challenges, the management and sponsors have consistently demonstrated resilience and a commitment to safeguarding the
Company’s future. Their strategy has been anchored in balancing the immediate need for operational survival with a broader vision for sustainable,
long-term growth. This includes priortizing efficiency improvements, strengthening governance and transparency, and seeking opportunities to diversify
revenue streams. At the same time, management continues to focus on rebuilding investor and lender confidence, deepening relationships with key
stakeholders, and aligning operations with emerging opportunities in construction, infrastructure, and regional trade. With these forward-looking
measures, the Company aims not only to navigate current pressures but also to position itself as a stronger, more competitive player in the years ahiead.

The financial year under review proved to be cne of the most challenging periods in the Company’s history. A comparison of the key financial indicators of
the Company for the year ended 30 June 2025 with the corresponding year is as under:

.............. Rupees in thousands ..............
Sales Revenue 16,082,614 3IB775.737
ross Prefit 76,006 2401426
Dperating Loss 11,063,332) (130,787)
Loss Before Tax (5,386,203) {5.391,3946)
Logs After Tax (3,811,359) {6,106,723)
Loss per share - basic and diluted {in Rupees) {12.83) {20.56)

Sales and Gross Profit

Sales revenue contracted sharply by 58.53%, falling from Rs. 38.78 billion in FY24 to Rs. 16.08 billion in FY25, This steep decline was primarily due to severely
curtailed production velumes as the Company faced significant hurdles in opening LCs for the procurement of scrap, its primary raw material. As a result,
overall plant utilization remained well below breakeven levels, leading to negative absorption of fixed costs and a gross profit of As. 76.01 million, translating
to a gross margin of 0.47% compared to a gross margin of 6.19% in FY24.

Operating Performance

Total operating expenses reduced to Rs. 1.14 billion in FY25 from Rs. 2.53 billlon in FY24, reflecting management's cost rationalization efforts and right-sizing
initiatives in response to declining volumes, Distribution and administrative expenses fell by 50.8% and 12.5%, respectively. Additicnally, allowance for
expected credit losses showed a reversal of Rs. 86.73 million, compared to a charge of Rs. 379.20 millon last year, demonstrating cautious credit risk
management in the current envirecnment. Despite these measures, the operating loss expanded to Rs. 1.07 billion in FY25 versus Rs. 130.79 million in FY24,
owing to lower gross margins and reduced economies of scale.

Finance Costs

Finance costs remained elevated at Rs.4.10 billion in F¥25, only marginally lower than Bs. 4.77 billicn in F¥24. The reduction pertains mainly due to lower

average interest rates as compared to previous financial year.
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Taxation

For the year under review, the Company recognized a taxation credit of Rs. 1.55 billion compared to an expenze of Rs. 715 million in FY24. This recognition
primarily relates to defarred tax adjustments against the carried-forward taxable losses and minimum taxes under the Incomea Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Owverall Results

Loss before tax stocd at Rs. 5.39 billion in FY25, almost unchanged from Rs. 5.39 billion in FY24. However, the lozs after tax narrowed to Rs. 3.84 billion
compared to Rs 6.11 billion in FY24, primarily due to the deferred tax credit recognized during the year. Consequently, loss per share recorded to Rs. 1283
from As. 20.56 fast year.

In summary, the financial year 2025 was shaped by the combined impact of limited access to working capital and subdued domestic demand. The inability
to secure financing directly constrained production capacity, resulting in a sharp decline in sales and gross margins. Although management successfully
reduced operating expenses and undertook right-sizing measures, these efforts were not sufficiant to counter the structural pressures of high finance costs
and low cutput levels. Looking ahead, the Board and management remain firmly committed to the timely and effective implementation of the Master
Restructuring Agreement (MRA) concluded with lenders. This milestone is expected to provide the foundation for stabilizing operations, restoring
production, and gradually strengthening the Company's inancial performance in the years Lo come.

Future Qutlook:

In reference to Mote 2 of the annual audited financial statements, the Board draws attention to the external auditors’ observation regarding material
uncertaintios that may cast doubt on the Companys ability to continue as a going concern, The Board acknowledges these concerns but emphasizes that
acomprehensive action plan has been advanced to address them. Central te this plan is the successful conclusion of a significant restructuring arrangement
with lending institutions under the Master Restructuring Agreernent (MRA), which provides a clearer framework for fimancial stability and repayment
capacity. In parallel, the Company has suspended all non-essential capital expenditure and sxpansion projects in order to conserve liquidity and focus
resources on suskaining core operations. Furthermaore, a disciplined program of cost rationalization is being implemented o 3 to preserve efficiency and
protect margins. Together, these measures are designed to stabilize the business in the short term, rebuild confidence among stakehoiders, and create the
operational space necessary for pursuing long-term growth once external conditions improve.

The readiness of sponsors ta Inject fresh capital under the MRA alignment underscores their commitmeant to sustaining operations, reinforcing solvency,
and safeguarding long-term viability. The Board, along with managemeant, continues to monitor developments closely and remains committed to
navigating these challenges decisively.

Looking ahead, the Company expects operating and financial performance in FY2026 to remain subdued, reflecting the residual impact of restricted LC
fines, fragile construction demand, and working-capital constraints. The key focus of the management is the resumption of working capital limits post
restructuring and revamping of production schedules, keeping near-term performance under pressure. Recovery is expected to gradually strengthen from
FY¥2027 onward, supported by improved financial discipline under the MRA, renewed supplier confidence, stabilized LC operations, and more predictable
demand dynamics.

At the macroeconomic level, tentative signs of stabilization have begun to emerge. Inflation has moderated sharply, with August 2025 CPl estimated at
3.75-4.25% year-on-year, compared to 8.6% in the same period last year. Average inflation for FY2025-26 is projected in the range of 5-7%, broadly aligned
with the State Bank's target, creating space for continued monetary easing. The pelicy rate is expected to decline to arcund 10% by December 2025, helping
ease financing pressures on businesses.

0On the growth front, the economy is estimated to have expanded by 2.7% in FY2025 - an upward revision from earlier forecasts- reflecting resiliznee in
industry and services. The IMF projects growth of 2.6% for FY2025 and 4.2% for FY2026, supported by structural reforms and the government's “Uraan
Pakistan® ecoriomic transformation plan. Early outcomaes of this initiative include lower inflation, a return to a current account surplus, stronger remittance
inflaws, and improved fiscal discipline,

Despite recent improvernents, risks remain significant. Global commadity price volatility, trade tensions, and supply-chain vulnerabilities could weigh on
export momentum. On the domestic front, weaknesses in agriculture, sluggish private investment, and reliance on state-led reforms continue to limit
growth. Sustained implementation of structural reforms - particularly the privatization of state-owned enterprises, broadening of the tax base, and
rationalization of erergy tariffs - will be essential for maintaining macroeconomic stability.

For the steel sector, moderating inflation and lower interest rates are expected to gradually support a revival in construction activity. That said, a mearningful

recovery in long steel demand will hinge on the timely execution of PSDP allocations, consistent enforcement of documentation to reduce informal
supplies, and a fairer alignment of energy costs for industry.
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In conclusion, while FY2026 is likely to remain challenging with limited scope for higher capacity utilization or margin expansion, the broader environmant
is showing signs of cautious improverment. Easing inflation, declining interest rates, and reform progress collectively provide a stronger platform Tor
recovery. Management, with the continued support of sponsors, remains fully committed to safeguarding the Company’s going-concern status and
pasitioning it for sustainable growth in the madium term.

Role of Pakistan Association of Large Steel Producers:

The Pakistan Association of Large Steel Producers (PALSP) continued to play a pivotal role in representing the interests of the domestic steel industry during
FY 2025, As the collective voice of integrated steel manufacturers, PALSP actively engaged with policymakers, regulators, and other stakehalders to
highlight the structural challenges undermining the secter’s viability.

A major concern during the year was the unprecedented energy crisis, as the prolonged deadlock between NEPRA and K-Electric over the government’s
industrial power relief package severely disrupted operations in Karachi, resulting in industry-wide losses worth billions, PALSP raised the issue at the
highest forums, emphasizing that regicnally competitive and predictable energy tariffs are eritical to sustaining steel production. At the same time, PALSP
intenzified its advocacy against smuggling, misdeclaration, and under-invoicing of steel products - particulardy inflows from the western borders - which
undermine the documented sector and deprive the naticnal excheguer of significant revenue.

The Association with its efforts succeeded in reduction of tax exemptions granted to units in the erstwhile FATA/PATA regions. In past, these exemption
created unfair competition and badly disturbed level playing field which undermined the formal steel sector. Before the recent budget, the Governmeant
suddenly decided to reduce tariff pratections for the steel industry under the Tariff Raticnalization Plan. The Association effectively took up the matter with
the Government, emphasizing that regionally competitive energy tariffs, financing costs, and improvernents in the ease of doing business index are
prerequisites before any decision to reduce tariff protections. Amy unilateral liberalization, without structural reforms and without taking the industry into
confidence, could prove counterproductive for the steel sector.

In summary, the year was marked by financial strain, lower capacity utilization, and mill shutdewns. PALSP continued to advocate for the documented steel
industry, and the Company remains aligned with its efforts to ensure fair policies and support a sustainable steel sector in Pakistan.

Board of Directors;

The governance at Amreli Steels is a combination of processes established and executed by the Board of Directors and the management of the Company,
which is reflected in the Company's structure and how it is managed and led toward achieving its goals as a whole.

The corporate governance structure of the Company is based on statutory and regulatory compliance requirernents that are applicable to companies listed
on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and Company’s Articles of Association complemented by several internal procedures. These procedures include a
risk assessment and contred system, as well as a system of assurances on compliance with applicable laws, reguiations and the Company’s Code of Conduct.
The Board of Directors of your Company is highly engaged in maintaining long-term and sustainable value creation founded on durable ideologies of
governance. The Board comprises of two Independent Directors, three Non-Executive Directors and two Executive Directors.

The Board of Directors of the Company as of 20 June 2025 consists of:

 Total Number of Directors 7
il Men
i) Women 1

The names and composition of the Board of Directors as of 30 June 2025 are as follows:

o e e
nm.. _‘m,._. s i

=

1} Swed Asghar Jamil Rievi

a. Independent Dwectors 2} Sohail Feroz Shamsi
3| Abbas Akberali
b. Morn-Executive Director
4} Zoeb Salemwalta
c Female MNon-Executive Directar 5} Mariam Akberali
6} Shayan Akberali
d. Executive Directors
71 Hadi Abbas Akberali
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During the year, six (6] meatings of the Board of Directors teok place. All the mestings took place in Pakistan. The attendance by each director in the
meetings is as follows:

A . ———
Abbas Akberali - Chairman 06/06
Syed Asghar Jamil Rizwi 06/06
Zoeb Salemwala 06/06
Sohail Feroz Shamsi | 05/06
Shayan Akberali 06/06
Hadi Abbas Akberali 06/06
Mariam Akberali 06/06

Board's Audit Committes:

The Board’s Audit Committes (BAC) monitors the Company's systems of internal controls and risk management process periodically, assisting the Beard in fulfilling
its owersight responsibilities primarily in reviewing requlatory compliance risks and reporting financial and non-inancial information to shareholders,

The BAC reviews and challenges, where necessary, the actions and judgments of management The BAC has the autonomy to call for information from
management and to consult directly with the external auditors or advisors as considered appropriate. The Chief Fimancial Officer of the Company attends the BAC
meetings by invitation to present the interim and annual accounts. After each meeting, the Chairman of the BAC reports to the Board,

During the year, five (05} meetings of the BAC took place. All the mestings took place in Pakistan. The attendance by each director in the BATZ meetirngs is as foliows:

Syed Asghar Jamil Rizvi - Chairman

05/05
Zoeb Salemwala 05/05
Sohail Feroz Shamsi 04/05

Human Resource and Remuneration Committes:

The purpose of the Human Resources & Remuneration Committes (HRER) is to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities in the field of Human
Resources, their development, succession planning and compensation and to perform all such responsibifities as are assigned to the HR&R Committee by
the Act and the Code of Corporate Governance Regulations. During the year, one meeting of the HRER Committes took place, The meetings took place in
Pakistan. The CEO of the Company is a member of the Board's HRER Committes, The Head of HR attended the HRER Committee meeting by invitation. The
attendance by each Director in the HR&R Committes meeting is as follows:

Sohail Feroz Shamsi - Chairman M
Syed Asghar Jamil Rizvi m
Shayan Akberali m

Annual Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors and Committees of the Board:

In line with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and best practices, the Company has established mechanisms for the
annual evaluation of the Board of Directors and its Committees. These mechanisms are designed to assess the effectiveness of the Board in providing
strategic leadership, oversight, and guidance to management. For this purpose, a structured evaluation process has been adopted, incuding the use of
detalled guestionnaires covering areas such as governance effectiveness, accountability, planning, leadership, and strategy formulation. In addition,
Directors undertake self-evaluation exercises to assess thelr own participation and overall satisfaction with the conduct of Board proceedings,

The outcomes of these evaluations are consolidated and presented In the Chairman's Review section of this Annual Report, enabling the Board to identify
strengths, address areas for improvement, and continuously enhance its performance.
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Female Directors:

The Company is dedicated to fostering gender diversity in the workplace and ensuring egual opportunities for all individuals, based on merit and
qualifications. Female directors currently comprise 14% of the Board of Directors. By including female representation on the Board, the Company adheres
to applicable regulatery requirements. The Board and management actively encourage the recruitment of female employees within the organization.

Review of CEQ's Performance:

The performarice of the CED is reviewsd against pre-determined operational and strategic goals aligned with the Vision, Mission and Values of the
Company. The well-defined appraisal system includes the performance of the business, the accomplishment of objective: with reference to profits,
organization building, succession planning and corporate sutcess,

Directors' Remuneration:

The Board of Directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Comipanies Act, 2017 and Code
of Corporate Governance. The remuneration of the Board members is approved by the Board. In accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance, it is
ensurad that no Director takes part in the proceedings of the Board Meetings in deciding his own remuneration. The Company does not pay remuneration
to non-executive directors except fee for attending the meetings. The Company's remuneration policies are structured in line with prevailing industry trends
and business practices. The detaiis of the Directors and CEQ's remuneration are adequately disclosed in respective notes to the financial statements.

Directors' Training:

The Board organizes crientation courses for Directors as needed ta ensure they are well-acquainted with their responsibilities as specified in the Companies
Act, 2017, and the Code of Corporate Governance. The Company guarantees that new Directors receive comprehensive briefing and orientation materials
to pravide them with an in-depth understanding of the Company's operations.

All Board members have completed the Directors Training Program certification as required under the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 To keep Board members updated on changes in corporate law, the Company regularly conducts refresher courses that familiarize them
with recent developments in corporate legislation and other pertinent rules and regulations. These sessions are alsa extended to relevant executives within
the arganization.

External Auditors:

The present auditors, M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co, Chartered Accountants are retiring at the conclusion of the annual general meeting scheduled on 28 October
2025 and offering themselves for re-appointment. The Board, upon recommendations of the Audit Committee, has endorsed the re-appointrment of M/s,
BDO Ebrahim & Co, Chartered Accountants as auditors of the Company for the vear ending 30 June 2026.

Internal Audit:

The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to M/ Moore Shekha Mufti & Co. Chartered Accountants who are considersd suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

Strategic Planning:

The Board of Directors regularly review the strategic direction of the Company in Board Meetings. The Board ensures that short term & long-term business
and operational strategies established by the management are in line with the Company's overall business objectives.

Material Changes Concerning the Nature of the Business:

During the financial year under review, there has bean no material change concerning the nature of business of the Company.

Material Changes Between Balance Sheet Date and Reporting Date (Subsequent Events):

There have been no material changes since 30 June 2025 to date of the repart and the Comipany has not entered into any commitment during this peried,
which would have an adverse impact on the financial position of the Company. However, subsequent to the reporting date, the Board in its meeting held
on 24 September 2025 has approved the rescheduling and restructuring of the Company’s overall finanging facilities availed from various banks and

firancial institutions. The Board also approved the terms sheet, the Master Restructuring Agreement and related ancillary doecumentation that is being
agreed upon between the Company and the financial institutions. Relevant disclosure has been made in the notes to the financial statements,
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Pattern of Shareholding:
The Pattern of shareholdings as of 30 June 2025 is annexed with this annual report
Communication with Shareholders:

The Company places high priority on timely communication with its shareholders. The annual and interim financial results are disseminated to all concerned
immediately upon their approval by the Board of Directors as per the compliance reguirerments.

The Company also has a website (www.amrelisteels.com) which, inter-alia, contains up-to-date information on the Company's activities, fimancial reports,
notices and announcements.

The Company has a dedicated email ID (i.e. investor-relations@amrelisteels com) to address and gives due priority to the queries of its shareholders and take
appropriate measures to resolve their grievances,

Safeguarding of Records:

The Company has a well-defined system for safeguarding of ite assets in an effective manner. The Company puts amiple importance on storage and the safe
custody of its financial records. The Company uses SAP as an ERP system for recording its financial information. The access to electronic documentation has
been secured through implementation of a comprehensive password protected authorization matrix in SAP-ERP system.

As required by the Companies Act, 2017, records of all eircular resolutions and minutes of Board Maetings are maintained in physical form for at least 10
years and for good in electronic form. Further, records of members’ resolutions and minutes of general meetings are preserved both physically and in
electronic form respectively for 20 vears and permanently.

Principal Activities of the Company {Mature of Business):

The Company is engaged in manufacturing and selling of steel bars and billets and is the largest manufaciurer of steel reinforcement bars in Pakistan. The
Company's product portfolio includes high strength deformed bars as per globally recognized specifications.

Principal Risk and Uncertainties:

The Company has set up a disciplined approach whereby internal audit function provides independent and objective evaluations on the effectiveness of
risk management and control processes. The identified risks and the respective control measures in terms of preventive, detective and corrective activities
are regularly monitored and reported in a timely manner. The Company has also formulated policies and procedures which are considered a vital part of the
Company’s risk governance framework to determine risks and develop strategies to mitigate those risks.

Modification in the Audit Report:

The External Auditors of the Company have provided a clean opinion on the state and affairs of the Company and the same is enclosed in this annual report;
and as such, there has been no modification in the Auditors’ Report for the year under review. However, in reference to Note 2 to the annual audited financial
staternents of the Company, the Board of Directors would like to draw attention to the events, conditions, and factors that, according to the external
auditors, Indicate an uncertainty and may cast doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The management has developed a
comprehensive action plan to address and mitigate these cencerns, focusing on stabilizing the Company's financial position and ensuring long-term
sustainability. The Board and management are closely monitoring the situation and remain confident that these steps will improve the Company’s financial
health, allowing it to continue operations as a going concerm.

Holding Company:
The Company does not have any parent company nor a subsidiary company.
Payment Methodology:

The Company strongly believes in timely payments of its debts to all its stakeholders and has not defaulted on any payment during the outgoing financial
year,

Internal Control Framework:

The Board acknowledges its responsibility towards the implementation of an effective internal control environment throughout the organization. Your
Company has set up an efficient and effective internal audit function which rigorously monitors the contral environment of the Company. A comprehensive
report on internal controls of the Company is presented in this annual report.
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Infarmation Technology and Cybersecurity Governance

The Board recognizes that information technalogy and cybersecurity are critical to the continuity, efficiency, and resilience of the Company's operations.
Owersight of [Tand cyber risk forms part of the Board's governance framework, with pericdic updates presented by management on system enhancements,
incident preparedness, and risk mitigation measures,

The Company is committed to strengthening its IT infrastructure by adopting industry-standard controls, enhancimg data security, and improving disaster
recovery arrangements. Emplovee awareness programs and vendor risk assessments are conducted regularly to address emerging cyber threats. The Board
remains committed to continuowsly upgrading svsterns and processes in line with global best practices, thereby safequarding critical assets and ensuring
compliance with evalving regulatory requirements.

Business Continuity Plan:

The Company’s comprehensive Business Continuity Plan (BCP) is in place which includes activities required to keep the organization running without
interruption of normial operations during a period of disaster.

Health, Safety and Environment - Impact of the Company's Business on the Environment:

The Company is commitied to developing, promaoting and achieving the highest standards of Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) to ensure the
well-being of people who work with us as well as of the communities where we operate. The detailed policy of HSE is #nclosed in this annual repart.

Human Resource Management:

The Company employs a talented workforce that steers the organization towards itz vision through professional development and motivation. The
Company has been on a journey of Human Resource (HR) transformation. The HR strategy is constantly evolving to meet the needs and challenges of an
organization operating in an evolving market.

Employees’' Retirement Benefits:

The Company has an unfunded defined gratuity scheme for all permanent emplovees who have completed the minimum qualifying yvears of service for
entitternent of gratuity. The provision for gratuity is in accordance with the independent actuarial valuation. The latest actuarial valuation was carried out
on 30 June 2025 using Projected Unit Credit Method.

Activities under Corporate 5ocial Responsibility:

Contribution to the community has been at the core of Amreli Steels since its inception. The Company firmly believes in improving the standard of living of
its employees and the community at large. During the year, the Company continued to invest in initiatives aimed at education, healthcare, employes
welfare, and community development. A report on C5R activities forms part of this Annual Report.

The Corporate Governance Practices:

The Board of Directors of Amreli Steels Limited is committed to the principles of good corporate governance and ethical business conduct. The Company’s
gavernance framework is based on the requirernents of tha Companies Act, 2017, the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019,
and the Company's Articles of Association, complemented by robust internal policies and controls.

The Board provides strategic direction and oversight, while management is rasponsible for implementing policies to achieve organizational objectives. The
Company remains fully compliant with applicable statutory and regulatory requirernents, and it continues to strengthen internal governance practices to
safeguard shareholder value and maintain stakeholder confidence.

Environment, Social and Governance (ESG) and Sustainability Reporting

In line with the evolving glebal and local regulatory landscape, including the amendments introduced through SRO 92040/2024 to the Code of Corporate
Gowernance, the Company has Initiated steps to embed Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) considerations within its governance and operational
framework.

While the Company is not yet under a legal obligation to publish a standalone sustainability report, it acknowledges that such reporting will become
mandatary from FY-2026. In preparation, the Company has started aligning its internal processes with internationally recognized sustainability disclosure
standards, including A1 ({General Requirements for Sustainability-Related Financial Information) and SA2 (Climate-Related Disclosures), issued under the
IFRS Sustainability Standards framework.

A RAY OF HOPE-Annual Report 2025 |



Key ESG risks and opportunities being assessed include:

Energy efficiency and climate change - initiatives to reduce the carbon footprint through optimized production processes.
Waste management and resource utilization - strengthening recycling practices and ensuing responsible disposal,

Health, safety, and wellbeing of employees - implementation of robust zafety protocals and wellness programs.
Community engagement - fostering long-term partnerships to support social development initiatives.

The Board recognizes that sustainable practices are integral to long-term value creation, risk management, and resilience in a challenging economic
environment. The Company intends to progressively enhance ESG disclosures to meet forthcoming regulatory expectations and investors' confidence.

Risk Identification and Management

The Board, through the Audit Committes, monitors an enterprise risk management framewaork designed to identify, measure, and mitigate risks across the
business. Key risks during the vear included:

«  Macroeconomic prassures arising from inflation, currency volatility, and high interest rates;
Energy and raw material cost fluctuations, impacting margine and competitiveneass;
Regulatory and taxation changes, including duties and compliance costs;
Operational risks, such as supply chain disruptions, production downtime, and safety incidents; and
Environmental and sustainability-refated risks, particularly those relating to emissions, energy intensity, and compliance with evolving environmental
regulations.

Mitigation strategies are in place for each of these risk categories, and prograss is regularly reviewed by the Board,
Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DE&I)

The Company iz committed to fostering a culture that is diverse, equitable, and inclusive. Equal opportunity is ensured acrass all employment and career
development practices, regardless of gender, ethnicity, religion, or background. Key initiatives include:

Merit-based recruitment and transparent progression pathways.
Capacity-building programs to enhance workforce inclusivity; and
Gender representation initiatives to support fermale participation in the workforce.

The Company views diversity and inclusivity as critical drivers of innovation, collaboration, and sustainable organizational growth. The Board remains fully
committed to embedding ESG principles and DE&] values into the Company's long-term strategy. These measures are designed to enhance organizational
sustainability, strengthen corporate governance, and afign with global best practices, thereby ensuring that the Company continues to operate responsibly
and ethically while protecting the interests of all stakeholders,

Anti-Harassment Measures

The Company has implemented a Code of Cenduct, which has been prominently displayed and communicated across the organization. This Code autlines
ethical business practices, professicnal conduct, and the responsibilities of employees and management in upholding integrity and compliance.

In line with applicable legal requirements, the Company has constituted a Harassment Inguiry Committee ta ensure a safe and respectful workplace. The
Committes addresses complaints fairly and impartially, reinforcing the Company’s commitment to employes protection. Furthermore, regular awareness
sessions and communication campaigns are conducted te promote understanding and reinforce the Company’s zero-tolerance policy towards harassment
in any farm.

Dividend and Appropriations

As reflected in this financial report, the Company incurred a loss of Rs. 3.81 billion for the year ended 30 June 2025. In light of this financial performance and
considering the continued volatility and uncertainty in the business environment, the Board is unable to recommend any distribution of cazh dividend for
the year under review.

Contribution to the National Exchequer

Motwithstanding the losses, the Company contributed Re. 3.96 billion (FY 2024: Rs. 6.54 billion) to the Mational Exchequer during the year throuwgh various
levies, taxes, and import duties.
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Code of Conduct:

The Company's Code of Conduct sets forth the principles and values that define our culture and guide our actions. [t embodies the uncompromisingly high
ethical standards that the Company has upheld since its inception and applies to all employees, officers, and directors. In line with recent requlatory
amendments, the Code of Conduct has been displayed bilingually at all business locations to ensure accessibility and clarity for all stakeholders.

The Code emphasizes conducting business with honesty, integrity, and fairness while fostering diversity, equity, and inclusion (DE&I} across the
organization. It also incorporates the Company's zero-tolerance stance on workplace harassment and outlines mechanisms for reporting through an
independent inguiry committee, in full compliance with applicable laws and reguliatory requirerments.

By adhering to this framework, the Company ensures that its relationships with employees, customers, suppliers, competitors, and business partners are
rooted in transparency, respect, and accountability.

Operating & Financial Data:
Operating and financial data and key ratios of the Company are annexed to this annual report.
Acknowledgement:

The Board of Directors would like to convey its sincere appreciation to all valued stakeholders - including our shareholders, customers, financial institutions,
suppliers, and business partners - for the trust, patiznce, and steadfast support extended to the Company during the past year. Your continued confidence
remainz the comerstone of our resilience, and it is with your encouragement that the Company has been able to navigate through a year marked by
extraordinary macroeconomic and sectoral challenges.

The Board further recognizes with deep appreciation the relentless efforts of our management team and employees at every level of the organization. Their
professionalism, integrity, and unwavering dedication have been instrumental in sustaining operations, executing critical Initiatives such as the successful
conclusion of the MRA. Their contribution has ensured that the Company continues to operate with resilience, despite the severe headwinds facing the steel
sectar and the economy at large,

Aswe move forward, the Board reaffirms its unwavering commitment to uphold the highest standards of corporate governance, transparency, and ethical
business practices, We recognize the indispensable role of stakeholder trust in building a sustainable future, and assure you that every effort will be made

to strengthen the Company's financial health, operational efficiency, and long-term growth prospects,

Your continued confidence is deeply valued, and together, with the collective strength of our stakeholders, leadership, and employees, we remain
committed to restoring the stability, viability, and growth trajectory of the Company in the yvears ahead.

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

v

Syed Asghar Jamil Rizvi

Drirector
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Introduction

‘We are pleased to present annual Audit Cormmittee Report which provides an insight into our work, the issues handled and the focus of the Audit
Committee's deliberations during the year ended 30 June 2025, The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities in areas such
as the integrity of financial reporting, the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system and related compliance and governance
matters. We are also responsible for making a recommendation to the Board on the appointment or reappointment of the external auditors,

Audit Committee Members

The committee comprises of two Independent and one Mon-Executive Directors.

Chair:

Syed Asghar Jamil Rizvi {Independent Director]
Members:

Mr. Sohail Feroz Shamsi {Independent Director)
Mr. Zoeb Salemwala (Man-Executive Director)

The members of the Audit Committee have the appropriate knowledge, skills and experience to carry out the tasks entrusted to the Committee by the
Board. The approved minutes of Audit Committee are circulated to the Board for information and guidance.

Audit Committee Attendance

During the current year, five (05) meetings were held and attendance was as tabled.

Marme of Member MNumber of Meetings Attendead
Syed Asghar Jamil Rizwi 05
Mr. Sohail Feroz Shams 04
Mr. Zoeb Salemwala 05

Synopsis of Activities
Financial Reporting

The Committee has a process to review the financial information of the Company when guarterly and annual financial statements and the reports are
presented to the Committes by the CFO. The finandal reporting was assessed to ensure that credible and reliable information should be timely reported.
Annual and guarterly Anancial statements were réviewed prior to their approval by the Board of Directors.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied except for the changes, if any, which have been appropriately disclosed in the financial
statements. Applicable International Financial Reporting Standards were followed in the preparation of financial statements of the Company on a going
concarn basis, for the Anancial year ended 30 June 2025, which present fairly the state of affairs, results of operations, cash flows and changes in equity of
the Company for the year under review.

Accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. Proper and adequate accounting records have been maintained by the Company In
accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the external reporting is consistent with management processes and adeguate for shareholders’ nesads,

Review of related party transactions

The Audit Committee reviewed the staterment of significant related party transactions, submitted by the management. Audit Committee ensured the
disclosure of materially significant related party transactions, During the year 2024-2025, the Company has entered into certain related party transactions
as disclosed in the respective note to the Financial Statements. The details of all related party transactions were placed guarterly before the audit committee
of the Company and upon recommendations of the Audit Committee, the same were placed before the Board for review and approval,
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Effectiveness of Internal Control System

The Audit Committes reviewed, discussed and briefed the Board on the regular reports on risks, controls and assurance, in order to monitor the
effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting, compliances and operational matters.

The Audit Committee, on the basis of the internal audit reports, reviewed the adequacy of controls and compliance shortcomings in areas audited and
discussed corrective actions in the light of managemaent responzes. This has ensured the continual evaluation of controls and improved compliances.

External Auditors

The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the ongoing effectiveness & independence of the external auditors and making recommendations to
the Board with respect to the re-appointment of external auditors.

The external auditcrs were allowed direct access to Audit Committes. The Audit Committee reviewed the Management Letter issued by external auditors
and the management response thereto. Observations were discussed with the auditors and required actions recorded.

The Audit Committee met with the external auditors without the executive management during the year under review to discuss reservations, if any, arising
from audit and any matters the external auditors may wish to discuss without the presence of management.

On 20 September 2024, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board re-appointmeant of external auditors aleng with fixing remuneration for the year
ended 30 June 2025. The Shareholders approved the recommendation in Annual General Meeting held on 26 October 2024 and M/'s. BDO Ebrahim & co,
Chartered Accountants were re-appointed as external auditors of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2025,

Internal Auditor

The Company has outsourced the internal audit function te M's. Moore Shekha Mufti & Co. Chartered Accountants who are considered suitably qualified
and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company. The Head of Intermal Awdit has direct access to the
Chairman Audit Committee. The Committee has ensured that the outsourced internal audit firm is adequately staffed with personnel possessing the
necessary internal audit acumen. The outsourced Internal Audit firm has unrestricted access to Management and the right to seek information and
explanation. It has carried out its duties under the Audit Charter defined by the Committee. The Committes has carefully reviewed material findings with
managemant given direction to ensure that necessary steps were taken to mitigate any issues. Head of Internal Audit attends all Committee meetings,
during which reporis are considered and discussed in detail.

Syed Asghar Jamil Rizvi
Chairman of Board Audit Committes
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The Code of Conduct (the Code) of the Company defines what we stand for and believe in, documenting the uncompromisingly high ethical stamdards, our
Company has upheld since it was founded. Strong business ethics should form the basis for all of our relationships with employees, customers, competitors,
suppliers and colleagues. It is a fundamental policy of the Company to conduct its business with honesty, integrity and in accordance with the highest
ethical and legal standards.

Here we clearly state our business principles and show their impact on everyone invalved with the Company; from the Board, management and employees,
to the consumers, suppliers and business partners.

Following are the saliznt features of the Code of Conduct, however the complete code of conduct can be viewed at the Company's website at the link
http=fwwwamrelisteel: com/investarrelationsfcodeDfConduwct

Applicability

The Code applies to the fallowing (collectively termed as *Company Personnel” for the purpozes of this Code):
Members of the Board of Directors
Senior Management Personnad

= All employees of the Company

Consequences of Non-Compliance of Code

Any breach of the Code, terms of appointment, Company’s polices, rules and regulations or any acts of misconduct and fraud or embezzlement will be
viewed sericusly and may invite disciplinary action, including the termination of employment and eriminal prosecution, if required. For the said purpose, all
Company’s polices and rules will also be deermed to be an integral part of this Code.

Conflicts of Interest

The Company expects that all personnel will perform their duties conscientiously, honestly and in accordance with the best interests of the Company. The
Company personnel must not use their positions or the knowledge gained as a result of their positions for private or personal advantage.

Regardless of the circumstances, if Directors/employees sense thal a course of action they have pursued, or are presently pursuing, or are contemplating
pursuing may involve them in a conflict of interest with their employer, they should immediately communicate all the facts to their supervisor or to the
Board as the case may be.

Inside Information

The Company personnel shall not use for their own financial gain or disclose for the use of others, inside infformation obtained as a result of their position
within the Company.

The Company personnel may find themselves in violation of the applicable securities laws if they misuse information not generally known to the public and
gither trade or induce others to trade in the stock of the Company or in the stock of another Company. Specific confidential information would include
firancial information, information concerning acquisitions or dispositions of properties and proposed acquisition or mergers with other companies.

In case of this breach of confidentiality, the Company may be subjected to regulatory penalties and therefore, to prevent and address such instances, it may
consider disciplinary and legal recourse.

Health and Safety

We recagnize the importance of health and safety within our business. We seek to provide a healthy, safe and clean working environment in line with lacal
laws, regulations and industrial practice. We measure, appraise and report performance, as part of our commitment to the health and safety of our
employees, contractors amd everyone who works on or visits our sites.

We should take such steps as are reasonably practicable, to ensure that they meet our health and safely objectives. These are -

«  To provide and maintain safe and healthy working places and systerns of work in order to protect all Company personnel and others, including visitors
and the public, in so far as they come into contact with foreseeable work hazards.

= To provide and maintain a safe and healthy working envirenment for all Company personnel, taking into account individuals’ needs and abilities.

- Todevelop safety awareness amongst all Company's personnel to enable them to take reasonable care for their own health and safety and of other
people who may be affected by their acts or omissions.
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Consumers

We are committed to providing consumers with high-guality, wholesome products which are marketed truthfully, labeled clearly, and, as a minimum, meet
domestic and global quality and safety regulations.

Suppliers

The Company is confident that its suppliers desire to operate in an environment that is free from influence due to unethical business practices. Therefore,
suppliers are expected to conduct business in a manner that would not, in any way, compromise the ethical principles adopted by the Company. To ensure
this, the Company may convey its ethics requirements to its suppliers directly and also hold trainings and orientations for this purpose.

Integrity and Professionalism

The Company personnel should remember that they are a reflection on the Company and are constantly being judged or otherwise appraised by everyone
they come in contact with. All Company Personnel should conduct themselves with the highest degree of integrity and professionalism in the workplace or
any other location while on Company business.

Community Activities

We recognize our responsibilities as a member of the communities in which we operate and commit resources to support community and social investment
through national or locally targeted programs in partnership with others, We will also encourage and support employes efforts to be involved in and
provide leadership in the educational and socal fabric of the communities in which they live.

Protection of the Environment

The Company perscnnel shall treat the protection of the environment as an integral factor in all decision making, The Company is committed to the
protection of the envirenment. To comply with this commitment, the Company's policy is to meet or exceed all applicable governmental requirements.
Employees must report to their superior all circumstances in which toxic substances are spilled or released into the envirenment.

Violations of environmental laws, even if unintentional, can carry severe penalties, and could result in the prosecution of the Company or the employees
involved or both. Failure to comply with the Company's instructions for the protection of the environment may result in disciplinary actions.
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The Company is committed to the highest standards of transparency, honesty, openness and accountability. |n order to ensure compliance with the best
practices of the Corporate Governance, the Company has incorporated a Whistieblowing Policy ("the Policy"] to detect, identify and report any activity
which is not in line with the Company policies, any misuse of Company’s properties or any breach of law which may affect the reputation of the Company.

The Policy applies to all employees, management and the Board and extends to every individual associated with the Company inchuding contractors,
suppliers, business partners and the shareholders who are encouraged to report serious concerns that could have a significant impact on the Organization,

such as
untawful civil or eriminal offence;
failure to comply with statutary obligations/requirernents;
financial or non-financial mismanagement, fraud and cormiption, including bribery;
violation of various carporate policies-governing business conduct;
violation of health, safety & environmental standards applicable to the buziness;
harassment, discrimination or other unfair employment practices;
atternpt to conceal or suppress information relating to the above.

Open and candid communication is an important part of our eulture, All concerns are Lo be made in writing to ensure a clear understanding of the issues
being raised. Whistleblowers may repost their concerms through the Rallowing methods:

E-mail - whistleblowing@amrelistesis. com which shall only be accessible to the Whistieblowing Unit.
Mail - Captioned "Whiztleblowing Unit’ - Registered Office, A-18, S1T.E. Karachi.
The Whistleblowing Unit shall comprise of the CEQ and such other senior officials of the Company nominated by the Board of Directors.

Every effort will be made to maintain the confidentiality of complainants and to protect them from any form of retaliation, reprisal or victimization for
genuinely held concerns that are raised in good faith. At the same time, it should be noted that unfounded allegations made recklessly, maliciously or
knowing that they wera false can expase the complainant to disciplinary action.

Itis expected that all complaints will be lodged with proper identification. Anonymous complaints will also be accepted, however, the decision to take them
up lies with the Whistleblowing Unit depending on their nature and urgency.

The Company undertakes that all complaints will be investigated confidentially by independent persons and feedback will be provided to the complainant.
Deliberately making a false concerm is also an allegation under this Policy and may lead 1o a disciplinary action against the complainant.

The Board reserves its right o amend or modify this Policy in whole or in part, at any time without assigning any reason whatsoever.

The Company always strives to attract and retain professionals with high expertise to operate business with determination and dedication which creates
value for its shareholders, The objective of the policy framewark is o provide fair, transparent and sound remuneration policy that is aligned with business
strategy, risk and responsibilities to ensure that shareholders remain informed, confident in the management of the Company and to support positive
autcome across the economic and social context in which the Company operates.

The remuneration policy attracks, motivates and retains qualifed members of the Board of Directors to align the inberests of the Board of Directors with the
interests of the shareholders in such a way that it does not impair the independence of the respective Board Membess,

A complete and updated list of related parties is being maintained by the Company. All transactions with related parties are carried out onan unbiased and
arm’ length basis as per policy approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. A complete list of all related party transactions is compiled and
submitted to the Audit Committee every quarter. The Intermal Audit Function ensures that all related party transactions are carried on an arm's length basis.
After review by the Audit Committes, the transactions are placed before the Board for their consideration and approval. All transactions with related parties
are disclozed in the financial statements.
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The Directors are fully aware of the level of trust entrusted in them by the shareholders for managing the affairs of the Company and safeguarding their
interests. Thereby, the Board exercises its powers and carries out its fiduciary duties with a sense of objective judgment and independence in the best
interests of the Company. The Board participates actively in major decisions of the Company including but not imited to appointment of key management,
reviewing the annual business plan, approval of budgets for capital expenditures, investments in new ventures, approval of related party transactions,
review of matters recornmended / reported by Board’s Committees, review of status of any law suits and report on governance, risk management and
compliance issues. The Board also monitors Company's operations by approval of interim and annual financial statements and dividend, review of internal
and external audit observations regarding internal controls and their effectiveness.

The Board has constituted Committees of Directors and management with adequate delegation of powers to effectively focus on the issues and ensure
expedient resolution. These Committees meet as often as required to oversee the performance in respective areas. Each Committee has its own charter with
goals and responsibilities,

The Committees of the Board include Audit Committee and Human Resource & Remuneration Committee. The Board meets at least once a guarter. The CEQ,
{FO and other executive members of attend the meetings of the Board at the invitation of the Chairman for the purpose of reporting or imparting
information. The Committees report on their activities and results to the Board. The Board has delegated the executive management of the Company to the
CEQ for smooth operation and day to day business affairs of the Company.

The Company ensures to evolve and follow the corporate governance guidelines and best practices sincerely to not just boost long term shareholders'value
but also to regpect minority rights. The Company considers it as inherent responsibility to disclose timely and accurate information regarding financial
performance as well as the leadership and governance of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company has recognized that it would be imperative for them to continually assess how effectively the Board, its Committeas,
members and CED are performing their roles against their respective objectives as a critical structural tool for assessing Board's effectiveness and efficiency
as required under the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governancoe} Regulations, 2019,

The effectiveness and performance of the Board, its Committees, Members and CED is evaluated on following factors -

«  Board Structure: Its compaosition, constitution and diversity and that of its Committees, competencies of the members, Beard and Committes
charters, frequency of meetings, procedures;

«  Dynamics and Functioning of the Board: Information availability, interactions and communication with CEQ and senior executives, Board's agenda,
cohesiveness and the quality of participation in Board meetings;

«  Business Strategy Governance:; Role of Board in Company's strategy;

»  Financial Reporting Process, Internal Audit and Internal Controls: The integrity and robustness of the financial and other controls regarding related
party transactions onarm'’s length basis:

«  Monitoring Role: Monitoring of policies, strategy implementation and systems;

«  Relationship: Assessment of quality of relationship between the Board and its Committees.
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The term *Governance” refers to a system of Company’s management that focuses on responsibility, transparency and sustainable value creation. it
encompasses the management and monitoring systerm of the Company, including its organization, business principbes and guidelines, as well as internal
and external controls and monitoring mechanisms.

At Amireli, the Board of Directors are committed towards the principles of good corporate governance across the Company through its top managerment.
The Board and management of the Company always focus towards the stakeholders expectation that the Company is managed and supervised
responsibly and proper internal controls and risk management policy and procedures are in place for efficient and effective operations of the Company,
safeguarding of assets; compliance with laws and regulations and proper fimancial reporting in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and other applicable laws,

The Board encourages high standards of professionalism, ethical practices, accountability and transparency, in line with the global best practices and
statutory requirernents which are embedded in the Company’s governance structure through implementation of sound internal controls, Code of
Conduct and Whistle Blowing Policy of the Company to provide long-term benefits to all stakeholders. The Board being cognizant to its responsibility has
established a robust governance mechanism surpassing the legal and regulatory requirements which regularly evaluate the processes to ensure growth
in stakeholders' value besides safeguarding the interests of minority shareholders,

The Company conducts its operations in accordance with principles of good corporate govermance and provides timely, regular and reliable information
on its activities, structure, financial situation and performance to all shareholders. The Company continuously strives towards impraving sound
gavernance, best management and C5R practices in day-to-day business activities.

The Chairman of Board's Awdit Committes - Syad Asghar Jamil Rizvi (Independent Director) was present in the 40th AGM of the Comipany which was held
on 26 Octaber 2024, to answer guestions on the Audit Committes's activities and matters within the scope of the Board's Audit Committee. All queries raised
by shareholders at the AGM were dully answered by the Chairman, Directors, CEO anid CFO present in the meeting up to satisfaction of the shareholders.

- Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2007 and for such internal controls as management determines is
necassary to enable the preparation of financial staternents that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

= In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so

- The Board of Directors are responsible for oversesing the Company's inancial reporting process.
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The Board of Directors of the Company are dedicated in maintaining high standards of good corporate govermance. The Directors confirm compliance with
the Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework of the SECP and the CCG for the following matters -

a)

bl

c)

d)

el

fl

gl

hj

i

The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, fairly present its state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and
changes in equity;

Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Compary;

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting estimates are based on
reazonable and prudent judgments;

Intermational Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been duly followed in preparation of financial staterments;

The systern of internal controls i= sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored. The process of monitoring the internal
controds will continue as an ongoing process with the objective to further strengthen the controls and bring improverments in the system;

There are no doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as going concern;

There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as detailed in the Regulations of the Rule Book of the Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited;

A summary of key operating and financial data of the Company is annexed in this Annual Report;
Information about taxes and levies is given in notes ta the financial statements;

The Company has an unfunded defired gratuity scheme for all permanent employees who have completed the minimum gualifying years of service
for entitiement of gratuity. The provision for gratuity is made in accordance with the independent actuarial valuation. The latest actuarial valuation was
carned out as of 30 June 2025 using Projected Unit Credit Method. Being an unfunded gratuity scheme, no investment could have been made and
hence the value of investrments as at 30 June 2025 stands Nil.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

SHINES THE
WAY FORWARD







FINANCIAL POSITION

Assets Employed

Property, plant and equipment
Right of use aset

Intargible assets

Lang-term investments
Lang-term deposit and loans
Current assets

Total Assets

Financed By

Share capital and reserves

Long-term liabilities

Long-term finandng

Current partion of long-term francing

Mon-current and defered liabilitas

Current Habilities
Currant partion of long term finance

Total Funds Invested
OPERATIONS

Turnover -net

Gross profit

Cperating floss) / profit

EBITDA

Loss) / profit before tax

(Loss) / profit after tax

Total comprehensive floss) / income
Capital expendiures

{Loss per share) / Eamings per share

Cash Flow Summary

Met cash generated from / (used in) operating actvities
Met cash generated from / (used in) evesting activities
Met cash generated from / (used in) fmancing activities
Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cashand cash squinalents at ervd of the year
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A= in Million

27253 29,955 23263 21,578 20,146 17,651
103 100 136 76 100 72

1 3 7 12 19 24

14 15 15

142 176 194 204 152 135
15858 16506 17829 2316 155934 17,345
43357 46,840 40,428 44,201 36,366 15,243
10450 14236 14376 15208 13541 10,951
31705 4821 4821 5430

1576 4002 1,800 1354 | 1,129 812
1976 4002 5505 6,175 5950 6,241
3534 5689 21 1,668 1116 847
28573 26,975 20,236 22,504 ! 16,489 181015
3576} {4,002} | (1,800 1354) | (1,12%) (B12)
24997 22523 18436 1,151 15359 17204
43,357 46,830 40,428 44,201 36,366 35,243
16,083 38,776 45493 55,184 39218 245532
76 2401 5954 6491 4542 14813
{1,063} (121} 3999 4335 inz 356
79 422 4670 5,100 3549 1229
{5.386) (3,391] [301) 2078 1384 (1,543
2811} (6,107 [697) 1326 1368 1.243)
37741 {1501 711 1314 2890 11.244)
104 514 1,598 2158 1273 1369
(1283} (2055} (235) 445 461 418
2664 {4217 7040 (21900 2440 14,003)
1182 {484} (1539 12133 (1,146 {1,351)
432 3345 {5491) 4514 (1,996) 5825
4279 {1,352) (41} 135 (71 462
1226 (3,053) (1700} (1,560) (1.848) {1,144)




BALAMCE SHEET

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share Capital And Reserves
Issuied, subscribed and paid-up capital
Capital reserves

Revenue reserves - Accurmulated (loss) / unapproprated prafit
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Mon Current Liabilities

Lang term Airancing

Lang term provision

Laar from related parties

Deferred taxation

Deferred Eability - defined banefit abligation
Lease liabilities

Government grant.

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Contract habilities

Interest/ mark-up accrued

Shert term bomowings

Current partion of long term fmancing
Current portion of kong tesm prowision
Current portion of kease iabilities
Current portion of government grant
Current portion of koan from related parties
Unclaimed dividend

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

ASSETS

Mon-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right of use assets

Intangible assets

Lang term investrments
Lang-term deposits and boans

Cuirrent Assets

Stores and spares

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Lasarys and advanices

Trade deposits & short berm prepayments
Short term investrment

Other receivables

Tasation - net

Cash and bank balances

Mon ourrent asset held for sale
TOTAL ASSETS

% S s S 3 T %
635 H34 735 672 a7 843
643 595 690 631 767 791
874 50 1260 1299 1230 241

2056 1968 871 838 1020 632

24.10 3037 3556 3241 3833 no7
ane ono 916 1091 1326 1541
ano 000 001 016 046 000
029 027 000 077 084 097
78 1056 284 145 059 051
o7s 109 112 084 085 072
020 023 030 016 oz 018
000 000 094 039 000 002
9.07 12.15 14.39 14.68 1633 17.81
154 538 1188 671 1396 1059
77 093 119 175 137 27
1072 an 198 118 073 164

4104 3813 2894 3762 2605 3380
917 855 445 306 n 230
055 060 057 044 000 000
o4 on7 009 003 005 00z
078 079 007 010 003 oo
ono 00e 078 0.00 000 000
oo om oo o0 00z 00z

66.82 57.48 50.05 50.91 4534 5112
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BALAMCE SHEET

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share Capital And Reserves
Issuied, subscribed and paid-up capital
Capital reserves

Revenue reserves - Accurmulated (loss) / unappropriated profit
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Mon Current Liabilities

Lang term financing

Lang term provision

Loar from related parties

Dieferred taxation

Dieferreed Eability - defined benefit abligation
Lease liabilities

Government grant.

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables

Contract liabilities
Interest / mark-up accrued

Shert term bomowings

Current partion of long term fmancing
Current portion of kong tesm prowision
Current portion of kease iabilities
Current portion of government grant
Current portion of koan from related parties
Unclaimed dividend

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

ASSETS

Mon-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right of use assets

Intargible assets

Lang-term investments
Lang-term deposits and boans

Cuirrent Assets

Stores and spares

Stock-in-trade

Trade debis

Lasarys and advanices

Trade deposits & short berm prepayments
Short term investrment

Other receivables

Tasation - net

Cash and bank balances

Mon ourrent asset held for sale
TOTAL ASSETS
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PROFIT OR LOSS

Tumaower - net

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Reversal / (charge) for expected credit losses
Other incame

Other expenses
Operating (loss) / profit

Finance casts

(Loss] / profit before taation and levy
Lty

(Lozz) | profit bafore tuation

Taxation

[Loss) f profit after taxation

Other comprehensive incorme £ (loss)
Total comprehensive (loss) / Income

PROFIT OR LOSS

Turnewer - net

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses
Reversal / icharge) for expected credit losses
Other income

Other expenses

Operating (loss) / profit
Finance costs

{Losz) | profit before taxation and levy
Lewy

{Losz) | profit before taxation
Tawation

{Loss) { profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Total comprehensive (loss) / Income

B S T oy L8 L
10000 100.00 10000 100.00 10000 10000
08553 438 2691 -34.84 -38.42 4317
047 619 13.09 11.16 11.58 6.83
=340 287 222 207 =241 =257
455 217 =165 =1.26 =141 1890
054 053 D25 000 o8 070
369 am 002 004 006 ons
<333 451 018 4032 4032 036
561 £.34 a7m 7.54 758 134
-2545 =-1231 -3.E9 =3.895 =415 857
3211 =12.65 0,70 3.57 353 =7.32
-139 126 055 0.00 000 000
-33.549 =13.90 0,56 3.57 353 -7.32
979 184 0BT =1.29 004 264
=23.70 =15.7% =1.53 2.28 349 =}.58
022 1536 303 002 414 00
=23.48 039 =1.56 2.26 T5E2 =370
o wm e e We mw
% £ 3 3 % B
5852 1476 =21.81 43.36 4781 722
=55.99 800 =23.51 4507 4028 555
ea3 58.67 828 4292 15051 2519
5058 1045 -16.19 27.29 3854 =180
1245 1215 206 3270 10,08 a0z
-12287 21706 2210 10744 13757 36775
1868225 5203 G608 161 159531 1509
16E58 13689 -54.89 S0.62 Nas 433.15
T13.02 =103.27 -8.81 45.58 74541 =T0.19
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o L .. o e M.
=54 35 L] 000 L] Qoo
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316 -4738 459575 10224 &01.00
-37.55 =152.50 =312 -3B883.96
8541 2258 -100.71 7632
341453 ET7E7) 56.05 749033

A RAY OF HOPE-Annual Report 2025 |



VERTICAL ANALYSIS

CASHFLOW

heest cash generated from / (used in) operating activites 62 2 73654 1182 348 -B67
Met cash generated from / (used in) ewesting activities L} 36 3920 1154 153 295
Met cash generated from / (used in) finandng activities R 247 13544 2435 284 1262
Increase / (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 100 100 100 100 100 100

HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS

CASHFLOW

Net cash generated from / {used in) operating activities -163 -160 421 -190 =161 634
Mt cash generated from / (used in) smesting activities 344 70 25 B7 16 36
Mt cash generated from / (used in finanting acthities a7 =161 -222 325 -134 315
Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents N7 1734 -1 126 2252 279
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RATIO ANALYSIS

LioM 2025 2024 2023 2023 2021 2020
(Restated) {Restated)
Gross profit ratio Percentage 047% B1%% 13.09% 11,163 11.58% BH3%
Met profit/ floss) to sales ratio Percentage  -2370% -1575% -153% 228% 345 -468%
Return on equity Percentage  -3647% 42.93% 485% BI2% 981% T1.34%
Betum on capital ermployed Percentage  -3089% 37805 366% £.83% 7.7%% -B26%
Operating leverage Percentage  -184.19% 78931% 67.19% 9426%  155B.95% G7255%
EBITOA margin to sales Percentage 0:45% 10%:4 102 8.7 905% 463%

Csent ratio Times  052:1 060:1 08811 099:1 05711 0.96:1
Quick / acid test ratio Times 038:1 034:1 053:1 050:1 060:1 053:1
Cash o curment lizkility Times  004:1 41111 00811 007:1 4111 006:1
Cash flow from operations to sales Tirmes Q171 111 01521 0041 00s:1 41501

Inveritary turnouer Times 29 51 44 A1 50 34
Mo of days in Inventony Days 27 72 24 B0 73 106
Debtor turmover Times 82 106 B7 39 70 64
Mo of days in receivables Days a4 35 42 7 52 57
Creditor tumnover Times 15 14 18 134 84 75
Mo of days in payables Days 2470 2674 20 3 4 5
Operating cycle Days 147 a0 105 54 121 158
Total asset turnever Times 04 08 1 13 11 08
Fiued asset tumover Times a6 13 0 27 13 15

{LP5)/ EPS - basic &diluted Rupees {12.83) (20.56) 1235) 446 451 418
P/E ratio Times {1.82) (131) {6.54) 5325 943 {781)
Dividend yield ratia Pancent 0.00% 0005 000% 0.00% 000% 000%
Dividend payout ratic Pancent 0.00% 0005 000 0.00% 000% 000%
Dividend coverage ratic Tirmes - - - -

Cash dividend per share Rupsess - - - -

Price to bock ratio Times 234 270 153 234 434 326
Market vahue per share . .

~Year End Rupess 137 2699 1535 2344 4344 3264
- Highest Rupess 622 2896 308 4598 S455 41561
-Lowvest Rupess 1664 1829 1459 2150 3255 1583
Break vahua per share with surphis on revakuation Rupses 358 4790 4840 5120 4694 3687
Break value per share without surplus on revaluation Rupees 517 1686 3654 3873 3444 937

Dbt/ equity ratia Tirmes 0.00:1 000:1 026:1 032:1 035:1 0.50:1
Weighted average cast of debt Percentage  18.14% [B2w 1773% 5,805 B36% 1331%
Financial leverage ratio Times Z12:1 158:1 124:1 17720 134:1 1.83:1
Dbt service rmtio Times 001 :1 061 087:1 148:1 146:1 0.35:1
Interest cover Tirmes 031 013 093 130 185 015
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Profitability Ratios

Gross profit

F¥-20 begins with the carried forward impacts of macro-economic challenges that were faced in FY 19 resulted from twin deficits, leading to an abnormal
devaluation of the national currency, reduced national consumption, and a decline in GOP 1.4% in FY-19. Having facing such challenges, the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic, further exacerbated the financial position resulting in a decrease of gross profit margin to 6.83%,.

The economic situation began to improve at the start of FY 21, with the lifting of lockdown measures and government and State Bank of Pakistan initiatives
to support the economy, particularly in the construction and refated industries, This improvement in conditions fed to a 3.94% GDP growth from the
negative 0.4% recorded in FY 20, alowing the Company to achieve a gross profit mangin of 11.58%. During FY 22, despite significant increases in production
costs due to currency depreciation and inflation, the Company managed to sustain demand and pass on the rising costs to its selling prices; resuiting in a
slight decline in gross margin to 11.16% (a decrease of 0.42%).

In FY 23, economic challenges persisted due to political instability post change of regime, impacts of RussiafUkraine crisis, record-high inflation, rupes
devaluation, and rising utility rates. Nevertheless, the Company successfully achieved a margin of 13.11% due to improved price retention strategies.

The challenges mentioned above persisted in FY-24 which slowed down the already contracted national demand. Further, in FY-24 input costs have
increased including electricity tariff from Rs. 2%/kwh to Bs. 44/kwhs, gas prices and rupee devaluation of 205 and unabsorbed fixed costs due to
low-capacity utilization of 28%. Further, the prevailing uncertainties regarding IMF fresh package coupled with general elections in February 2024 have kept
the demand silent resulting in inability of the Company to pass through the impact of increased cost resulting in gross margin dropped to 6.19%.
Conseguently, the stressed financial position requires the need for reprefiling / restructuring of debt in order to enable the Company to sustain these
unprecedented challenges,

F¥-25, the Company record gross margin merely of 0.47%, mainly caused due to record low-capacity utilization of 11% due to unavailability of working

capital lines due to on-going fimancial restructuring.

Operating and Met Profit

The cperating profit and net profit margins followed a similar pattern as the gross margin trend discussed earlier. The Company effectively managed its
administrative and distribution costs as a percentage of sales from FY 20 to FY 25. However, in FY 20, the finance cost of the Company increased due to the
rise in the policy rate, leading to net lozs margin of 4.25%.

In FY 21, as the gross margin improved and the policy rate decreased to 7% [compared to 13% in FY 20), the Company achieved a net profit margin of 3.49%.
Hewaver, in FY 22, the net profit margin decreased to 2.28% due to an increase in the palicy rateé and higher berrowing costs. The significant rise in interest
rates from average of 9.39%in FY 22 to 17.51% in FY¥ 23 resulted in a substantial increase in finance costs, leading to a net loss margin of 1.53%.

Ir FY 24, the other factors impacting operating margin besides decrease in gross margin mentioned above includes, cartage and transportation cost due to
increase in fuel prices and implementation of axle load and increase in allowance for expected credit loss for the receivables aging over and above 180 days
primarify due to increase in default rates. The reasan for significant negative net margin includes increased finance cost by 18% when compared with FY 23
due to increase in average interest rate from 17.51% to 22% and reversal of deferred tax assets recorded on prior turnover taes including deferred tax asset
on turnover tax recorded till March 31, 2024,

In F¥-25, despite reduction in administrative and distribution expenses, the operating margin was negative 6.61% compared to negative 0.34% in FY24,
mainly due to lower revenue the reasons of which are mentioned above. Similar, was the case with net loss margin that has increased from 15.75% to 23.7%
despite recognition of deferred tax assets on taxabie foss for the year.

Liquidity and Working Capital Ratios

Liquidity Ratios
The lguidity ratios primarily stem from the Comparny's internal cash generation. The current ratio improved from FY 20 till FY 22 primarily due to better
profitability and financial position of the Company.

In FY 21, the current ratio saw a slight uptick to 0.87, driven by profit generation but still falling short due to impending maturities of long-term loans in FY
22, The improved collection of cash in FY 22 further enhanced the current ratio, reaching 1.00 from 0.97. However, the economic challenges pertaining to
F¥ 23 & FY 24 as discussed above under gross margin heading, has severely impacted the Company's liguidity position resulting in current ratio to dropped
to 0.88 and 0.60. Further, the steep deterioration of current ratio in FY 24 is the reclassification of long-term loans and related government grant as current
fiabilities under the reguirements of 1AS 1- Presentation of financial statements under due to breach of financial covenants that are required to be
maintained by the Company as per the agreement with lenders.

In F¥-25, incremental deterioration of current ratio to 0.52 was mainly caused by continued operational loss resulted from lower capacity utilization due to
unavailability of werking capital limits as discussed above.
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Working capital ratios
The duration for which working capital required is reflective of the Company's cash conversion cycle adjusted for optimization based on prevailing market
situation and liguidity position of the Company.

In F¥ 20, inventory days extended to 106 days primarily due to the COVID-19 lockdown in the fourth quarter, resulting in minimal consumption and an
accumulation of raw material inventory during this period. In FY 21 the Company adopt a just-in-time inventory approach to facilitate cash flow, resulting
in a decrease of inventory days to 73 days.

Efficient working capital management and the maintenance of an optimal inventory level led to a further 13-day improvement in inventory days, reducing
them to 60 days in FY 22. However, during FY 23, the invertory days increased by 24 days due to an economic slowdown in the country, resulted in selling
38% less volume compared to FY 22, In FY 24, inventory days reduced due to lower sales volumes and capacity utilization. Howewer, in FY 25 inventory days
increased to 127 in last quarter of the financial year due to lower sales volume in contrast to production mainly due to price competition in market.

Debtor days are computed based on the average debtor balance and net sales. The Company is dedicated to reducing its debtor days and has established
a specialized sales and credit administration department to manage and oversee receivables from customers, MNevertheless, FY 20 posed significant
challenges due to extraordinarily low demand and COVID-19 lockdowns that disrupted sales, production, and collections. Consequently, debtor days
increased to 57 days in FY 20 compared to 33 days in FY 19,

In FY 21, as sales and collections impraved, debtor days were reduced to 52 days. FY 22 witnessed a notable improvement of 15 days, bringing debtor days
down to 37 days, achieved through diligent follow-ups, revisiting customer credit policies, and adjusting credit limits. In FY 23 and FY 24, the robust recavery
efforts coupled with effective internal credit administration and monitoring department, reduced the debter days to 42 and 35 respectively despite
depressed economic conditions. In FY 25, though the receivable in absolute amount reduced considerably, however due te significant drop in sale volume
by 66% as compared to 47% decreased in average receivable, the days receivable has increased to 44.

Investment / Market Ratios
The fluctuations in earnings per share directly correlate with changes in the Company’s profitability, as detailed in the profitability section.

The Company's shares were actively traded on the Pakistan Stock Exchange, with prices ranging from As. 16,64 to Rs. 26.22 throughout FY 25. The lowest
recorded price was Rs. 16,64, while the highest was Rs. 26 22 during the fiscal year.

The breakup value per share, without considering revaluation, shown improvement from of Rs. 29,16 to Rs. 36,54 per share from FY 20 to FY 23 However, it
came down to Rs. 16.86 and Rs. 5.17 per sharein FY 24 and FY 25 respectively due to dedining profitability as discussed above in detailed. This breakup value
per share primarify relies on factors such as capital reserves, revenue reserves, and the total number of ordinary shares. Notably, the capital resarves and the
guantity of ordinary shares remained unchanged over the past six vears. However, fluctuations in revenue reserves occurred due to variations in profits, as
discussed in the profitability section,

Capital Structure Ratios

The debt-to-equity ratio and financial leverage showed improvement from FY 20 to FY 23 driven by the generation of profits along with recording of a
surplus on the revaluation of fixed assets in FY 21, In FY 24 and FY 25, debt-to-equity turned zero due to reclassification of long-term loan discussed above
in liguidity ratio. Further, financial leverage increased in FY-24 and FY-25 due to net loss reported by the Company discussed above in profitability section.

The debt service ratio and interest cover are based on Company's earnings before interest, tax and depreciation {EBITDA) which shows mixed trend from FY
20 to FY 25 Till FY 22, the both ratios shown improvement. The debt service ratio and interest cover decreased in FY 23 due to lower profitability and
increased current maturity of term loan coupled with heightened finance cost. In FY24 and FY25, these ratios further deteriorated as EBITDA declined
significantly, driven by lower capacity utilization, which stemmied from the unavailability of working capital lines amid ongoing financial restructuring.
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GRAPHICAL PRESENTATION
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION & WEALTH DISTRIBUTION

Revenue from sales including sales tax 18,972326 45,888,479
Revenue from ather income 552,800 3,156
Bought in material and services {11,680,592) (34,145,752)
Value added by the Company 7,884,531 11,745,883

To Employeas:

Salaries, Wages and Other banefits 1,263,806 16% 1,878,362 16%
To Government:

Income tax, Sales tax, Customs & Excise duties 5,034,553 B4% 10,163,880 B7%
To Providers of capital:

Bank Charges and Markup 4,095,597 52% 4772416 41%
For Replacement of assets:

Depreciation and Amartization 1,297 536 16% 1,037,945 %
To Company:

{Net [ass} (3,811,359) -48% (6,106,723} -52%

7,884,523 100% 11,745,883 | 100%

FY 2025 FY 2024

B To employees 1 Togovernment [l To providersof capital [l Forreplacement of assets [l To Company
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QUARTERLY ANALYSIS

Rs. ‘000"
Sales 4,227,705 4,573,119 4,109,589 37220 16,082,614
Cost of Sales {3,998,927) (4,556,074} {4,015,531) (3,436,076} (16,006,608)
Gross Profit / (loss) 228,779 17,045 84,057 (263,876) 76,006
Gross Profit | {loss) % 5.41% 0.37% 2.29% -8.32% 0.47%
Administrative Expenses {190,932) (193,952} {187,326) {165,284} (737454}
Allowance for expected credit loss 6,956 50,569 20,652 8,557 BG,734
Distribution Expenses {160452) (150,207} {132,692) {102,265} (546,321)
Other Expenses (18410) {13,307} (281,802 {221,538) (535,057)
Other Income 25,390 48,193 46,260 472,957 592,800
Operating loss {108,670) (242,359} {440,851) (271,452} (1,062,322)
Operating loss % -2.57% -5.30% -10.73% -8.56% -6.61%
Finance Cost {1,213,103) (1,027,535} (500,086) {959,273} 4,099,557
Loss before taxation and levy (1,321,772) (1,269,893} (1,340,938) {1,230,725) 5,163,329)
Lewy (55,498 {53,822} {52,733) 160,821) (222,874)
Loss before taxation (1,377,270} (1,323,715) 11,393,671) (1,291,546) 5,386,203)
Taxation 185,558 442 354 408,131 338,791 1,574,844
Met loss {981,711) (881,351) {985,540) (952,756) (3,811,359)
Met loss % -23.46% -19.27% -23.98% -30.03% -23.70%

Billet Production Billet Production

13,929 10,793
Rebar Production Rebar Production
15,662 10,349
Rebar Sales Rebar Sales

20,456 14,127

Billet Production

Billet Production

29,887 15,906
Rebar Production Rebar Production
26,075 15,165
Rebar Sales Rebar Sales
18,453 18,566
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First Quarter:

During the first guarter, the topline of the Company dedined significanthy by
61% mainly due to decreased sales volume. The reason for decrease is none
other than the unavailability of working capital limits due to financial
restructuring.

Cost of goods sold in absolute terms decline accordingly in line with the sale
volume. However, in terms of per unit cost it has increased mainly due to lower
capacity utilization from 32% to 17% when compared with comesponding
guarter resulting in absorption of fixed cost. Further, the cost increased due to
variable electricity tariff which increased from average Rs. 30/kwh to Rs
A7/kwh along with the increased in fixed elactncity tarff, Deprecation
expense also increased due to recording of surphlus in fourth quarter of
finamcial year 2024, Resultantly, gross margin dropped from 12.19% in
corresponding quarter to 5.471% in current quarter.

Distribution expenses reduced mainky due to dedined sale volumes. Other
income and a positive credit loss reversal added marginal support to earmings,
Fimance cost increased with compared with same guarter af last year due to
increased short-term barrowing.

Second Quarter:

In 02, the company experienced a steep 60% decline in revenus compared to
the same guarter of the previous year, with sales falling to Rs. 457 billion. The
significant drop in topline performance pertains mainly due to sale volume for
the same reason as discussed in first guarter above. The cost of sales remained
high due o lower capacity utilization when compared with comresponding
guarter from 36% to 10% resulting in recording the gross profit margin to a
mere 0.37%.

The compary's operating performance weakened further, with operating loss
deepening to Rs. 242 milion followed by decline in gross profit. When
comparing with coresponding guarter, administrative and  distribution
expenses reduced significantly due to right sizing by the management and
loweer sale valumes respectively. Expected cradit loss recorded a reversal of Rs,
506 million due to better collection and reduced receivables. Although the
company managed to reduced its operating cost, these gains were insufficient
to offset mounting cost pressures arising mainly from lower capacity
utilization.

Finarce costs reduced in cormparison to sarme quarter last year due to decrease
in policy rate resulting in average interest reduced from 23% to 17% in current
girarter, The company reported nel loss of Rs, 881 million, supported by a
deferred tax asset on incremental taxable loss for the period.
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Third Quarter:

The third quarter when compared with corresponding quarter followed the
same trend of declining topline and increasing cost of sales mainly due to
lower sales volume due to unavailability of working capital limes due to in
process finandal restructuring. The sale volume dropped by 63% whereas
capacity utilization decreased from 308 to 10% resulting in owesall gross
margin to dropped from 7.94% in carresponding quarter to 2.2%% in current
quarter, The operating expenses following the gross profl, showed similar
trend as discussed in above quarter.

Finance costs reduced in comparison to same guarter last year due Lo decrease
in poficy rate resufling in average Interest reduced from 23% to 13.5% In
current quarter. The company reported net koss of Rs, 985 million supported by
a deferred tax asset on incremental taxable loss for the period.

Fourth Quarter:

In fourth quarter, revenue declined by R 2.1 billion or 41% when compared
with same quarter last year due to lower sale volume. Howewver, the cost of
sales showed improvement due to reduced fised overheads in companson
with 4th guarter last year after right sizing initiative taken by the management.
Further, in corresponding quarter, cost of sale was elevated by the provisson in
respect of fuel charge adjustment pertaining to K-electric. Accordingly, gross
loss when compared with cormesponding quarter showed improvement.

Administrative and distribution costs reduced when compared with same
quarter last year which is in line with the trend discussed in quarters above. ECL
incurrent quarter reduced significantly due to increased provision provided in
comresponding quarter for the receivables aging over and above 180 days
prirmarily due to increase in default rates. Other charges increased due to
reclassification of overheads pertaining to Shershah rofling mill from cost of
sale in 4th guarter due to producton remained (dle durirg the year, Other
operating income increased when compared with same quarter [ast year due
to gain on disposal recorded on safe of 14th floor at Sky towers,

Finance costs reduced in comparison to same guarter [ast yvear due Lo decraase
in palicy rate resulting in average interest reduced from 22.84% to 13.19% in
current quarter.

However, the net |loss showed a significant reduction compared to the
comesponding quarter, as that quarter included a reversal of deferred tax
assets previously recognized on turnover taxes, including those recorded upto
March 31, 2024, in line with the principle of prudence. For further details on the
cofresponding quarter, please refer to the prios year's annual report.



Sales Revenue:

During the year under consideration, the sales revenue recarded almost in same range for the first three guarters. However, when compared with revenue of
corresponding quarters, they have dropped, the reasons of which are discussed in guarterly analysis in this report.

The macra-eve! challenges faced by the Company during last year showed signs of improvement in financial year under discussion, particularly driven by
current account surplus, stable exchange rate and improved forex reserves. The demand for construction material remained at par when compared with last
year, however the Company was unable throughout the year to increase its wolume due to on-going financial restructuring, resulting in unavailability of
working capital lines.

In the fourth guarter, sales dropped due to price competition and the company's stance on retaining its price due to lower volumes.

5
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15t Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter Ath Cuaarter

Gross Profit:

The gross profit and gross profit margin showed declining trajectory over the course of the year. In the first quarter, the gross margin was at 5.41%, primarily
due to better price retention despite increase in input cost mainly due to decreased capacity utilization.

However, in the second quarter, the gross profit margin drops to 037% due to decreased capacity utilization in 20 to 10% from 17% due to unavailability of
miaterial arose from unavailability of working capital fines. However, in third quarter, the gross margin rise to 2.28% due to slight improvement in steal rebar
prices and reduction in cost due to decrease in electricity tariff and international scrap prices,

In fourth quarter, the Company recorded gross loss due to much lower capacity utilization from 11% to 7% due to the reason mentioned in sales above.
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Operating Profit:

The downward trend in the operating profit margin aligns with the decline in gross margin, primarily driven by reduced revenue generation. However, the
negative impact on profitability was partially effset by lower salaries and wages, cartage and transport costs, and travelling expenses. These reductions resulled
fram staff restructuring, decreased sales volumes, and lower fusl prices compared to the previous period. However, in fourth gquarter the other operating
expenses increased due to reclassification of overheads pertaining to Shershah rolling mill frem cost of sale in 4th quarter due to production remained idle
during the year. Further, in 4th quarter, other cperating income increased due to gain on disposal recorded on sale of 14th floor at Sky towers.

Met Profit:

The net profit margin followed the similar trend as shown in gross and cperating margin throughout the year primarily due to declining revenue resulted from
ursavailability of stock as discussed above. However, finance cost showed declining trend throughout the year due to reduction in interest rates.
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DUPONT ANALYSIS

*All frguees are in PHE million, ctherwize indicated.
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Cash receipts from the customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid

Gratulty paid

Finance costs paid

Leng-term deposits - net

Met cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

Fixed capital expenditure

Short-term investment - net

Proceeds from disposal of operating assets

Met cash generated from / (used in) investing activities

Shiort term borrowings - net

Long-term financing - net

Leaze rentals paid

Loan from related parties

Dividend paid

Met cash generated from financing activities

Met increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

Cash and cash equivalent comprise the following:
Cash and bank balances

Running finance

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year
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2025 2024
~===------Rs. In"0:00" -
16,954,816 41,023,969

(12,753,885) {40,867,640)

4,200,931 156,329

(454,836) (334,309}

(214,887} {54,379)

(887,833) (3,997,871}

21,201 18,143
2,664,482 (4,212,087)
(103,211) (513,506)

{100} -
1,286,008 25,009
1,181,997 (484, 497)
651,745 4,828,680
(178,389) (1,502,005}
(41,154) (38,048)

- (3411}

{19} {182)
432,184 3,344,544

4,278,663 (1,357,640)
(3,052,524) (1,700,834}

1,226,139 (3,052,524}

3,805,295 195444
(2,679,156) (3,247,9659)

1,226,139 (3,052,524}







FINANCIAL STATEMENTS “

IN CLEAR . P s
DAYLIGHT






Tel: +92 21 1568 3030 ind Floor, Block-C
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Karachi-T4200
Pakistan

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of AMRELI STEELS LIMITED (the Company), which comprizse the staternent of financial pesition as at June 30, 2025, and
the statement of profit or loss, the staternent of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity. the staterment of cash flows for the year then ended, and nates
to the financial statements, including matesial accounting policy information and cther explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpases of the awdit

In our opirion and to the best of surinformation and according to the explanations given to us, the staterment of financial position, statement of profit or loss, staterment of
comprehensive incorme, the statement of changes In equity, and the statement of cash Mows togethar with the notes forming part thereal confarm with the accountng
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Cornpanies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017, in the manner so required and respectivaly
give atrue and fair view of the state of the Comipany's affairs as at June 30, 2025 and of the Joss, its other comprehenzsive income, the charges in equity and its cash flows for
the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {154s) as applicable in Pakistan. Our resporsibilities under those standards are further
described i the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audst of the Financial Staternents section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accondance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Frofessional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan {the
Code) and we have fulfied our other ethical resporssbilites in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainties Related to Going Concern

We draw attenition to mote 2 in the finandal statements, which indicates that the Comparny mourred a net oss of Rs. 3,811,359 million during the year ended June 30, 2025
and, as of that date the Company accurmulated loss stood at Rs.4,222.256 million and current iabilities exceeded its cument assets by Rs. 13,880.415 milion. These events or
condstions along with other matters as set forth in the said note, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue a5 a going concern. Our apanion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Hey Audit Matters

Ky awdit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgrment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial staterments of the current pericd. These matters

were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whale, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opirkon on these
matters.
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Fallowing are the Key audit matters:

1. Existence and valuation of stock in trade

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As a3l hine 30, 2025, the Company held stock in trade amounting to Rs.
A4.011.727 million which constitutes 925% of total assets of the Companiy: This
comprises af raw matesals, blets and rebars,

As described in note 5.5 to the financial staternents, stock i trade is measured
at lower of cost and net realizable valwe. Cost of work in process and finished
goods & deterrmined at average manufacturing cost including the proportion of
production overheads. There is an element of judgement involved in
determining ‘an appropriate costing basis, assessing its valuation mchuding
assessment of provision of slew moving and obsolete stock intrade.

We considered existerce and vabuation of stock-intrade as key audit matter
due to the significance of stock in trade to the Company’s total assets and
significant management’s judgments and estimatons involved therein

Our audit procedises, amongst others, included the following:

Bssesad the design, mmplementation and operating effisctiveness of the
relevant key controk over valuation of stock in trade;

Bscpsing the appropristeness of the Company’s accounting poscy for
valuation of stodk in trade and companice of the palicy with Internatsonal
Accounting Standard [LAS-2) “Inventonies”;

Observed physical insentory counts for raw material, billets and rebars
performed by the Company and assessed the reasonableness of the
mianagernent’s process of measurerment of raw materials, billets and rebars
and imrvohved an external expert to perform physical inspection of raw
miaterial hedd at Compamy’s premises;

Tested the vabuation of specific ierns of raw matersals and work in progress
and finish goods at vear end;

Bsceused et realizable vabue (NRV) by comparing managements
estimation of future selling prices for the products with the selling prices
achieved subsequent to the reporting period;

Assessed the adequacy of the obsolescence prowvision and the
management judgement used;

Assessed the appropriateness of the disclosures made in financial
statemnents in accordance with the requirements of the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

2. Revenue recognition

Thie Company & engaged in the manufacturing and sale of steel bars and billets,
For the year ended June 30, 2025, the Company recognized revenue
amounting to s, 160825614 million.

As described in note 5.20 to the financial staternents, revenue is recognised at
amounts that reflect the consideration that the Company expects to be entitled
to in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. Revenue is
measued at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and i
recognised when performance cbligation is satished, at a point in time, when
contral of goods have been transferred to a customer.

We conssdered reverive recognition as a key audit matter due ta the high
volume of transactions invehmng large number of custormers spread in various
geographical lacations and the significance of revenue as a key perfoemance
iredicator for users of the finarcial staterments.

Dur audit procedurnes, amongst others, included the following:

Assessed the design, mplementation and operating effectiveness of the
relevant key controfs over receeding of revenue;

Assessed the appropriateness of the Companys accounting policy for
recogniticn of revenue and compliance of the policy with International
Accounting Standard (IFRS-15) "Revenue from Contracts with Customerns”;
Performed cut-off procedures on samiple basis of revenue transactions with
underlying documentation including delivery documents and sales
imvoices at near the year end to check that revenue has been recorded in the
relevant pesiod;

Performed tests of details on sample basis of reveniie transactions dunng
the year with underlying decumentation including delivery decuments and
sales imvoices;

Mssessed the adeguacy of the declosures made in finandial staternents in
accordamce with the reguirerments of the accounting and reporting
standands as applicable in Pakistan,
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Infarmation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial staterments does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially incensistent with the financlal statements, or our knowledge obtained In the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017{X1¥ of 2017} and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial staterments that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company

or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Board of directors are responsible for aversesing the Company's financial reporting process,
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the inancial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with [5As as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstaterment when it exists, Misstatermnents can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit im accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We alsc:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
miaterial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for cne resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intenticnal omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal comtrol.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control,

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

management

Conclude on the appropriatensess of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based an the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists ralated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a gaing
cencern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial staterments or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our ocpinton. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up te
the date of our auditer's report. However, fulure events or conditions may cause the Company bo cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the inancial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ainancial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,
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We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the awdit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audst.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the awdit of the finandal
staterments of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
pubfic disclosure about the matter or when, In extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not we communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XX of 2017);

bl the staterment of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and

the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (%X of 2017) and are
in agreament with the books of account and retumns;

gl investments made, expenditures incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and
dj no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Zulfikar Al Causer.

KARACHI h _)}

DATED: 03 Oct 2025
BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
UDIN: ARZ02510067x0LIbVITw CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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A5 AT JUME 30, 2025

2025 2024
Noe ceeemeee [Rupees in '000) -
Property, plant and equipment F 27,253,432 29,955,370
Right-of-use assets -] 102,539 100,238
Intangible assets 9 1,363 3087
Long term loans and deposits 10 __1am39 175575
17459173 30,234370
Stores and spares 1,985,376 2453 480
Stock in trade 11 4,011,727 T 62,016
Trade dabts 12 1,564,494 2,349,962
Loans and advances 13 37,513 60,121
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 14 17,426 30,035
Short term investments 15 14,389 14,289
Other receivables 16 548,340 Q88633
Taxation - net 2,898,164 2,928387
Cash and bank balances 17 3,905,295 185,444
15,092,714 16,182,367
Mon current assets held for sale 18 TE5,011 423170
43,356,508 446,835,907
Authorized share capital 19 5,000,000 5,000,000
lssued, subseribed and paid-up capital 19 2,970,114 2,870,114
Capital reserve 2,788,742 2,788,742
Rewenue reserves - Accumulated loss (4,222,256) {751,018)
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 20 8,912,968 9,218,163
10,449,568 14,226,001
Leng term financing bed| -
Leng term provision 22 -
Loan from related parties 23 124,922 124,922
Deferred taxation 24 3,393,751 4,946 265
Deferred liability - defined benefit obligation 25 327,311 511,949
Lease llabilities 26 B8, 217 105818
Government grant 27 - :
3,934,201 5,688,955
Trade and other payables et 1,578,000 2474553
Contract labifities 335,716 437305
Interest / markup accrued 29 4,648,357 1,457,718
Short term barrowings 30 17,793,259 17,861,957
Current portion of ;
Leng term ﬁnam:lng 21 3,975,727 4,002 434
Leng term provision 22 282,238 282,189
Lease labilities 26 18,249 34310
Government grant 27 336,328 362167
Unclaimed dividend 5,255 5274
28,973,139 26,924,951
43,356,908 46,839,907
n

The annexed notes from 1 Lo 55 farm an integral part of these fnancial statements

i~ "

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note weeseeee [RUp RS in ' 000) e

Salesnet iz 16,082,614 38,775,737
Cost of sales i3 [16,006,608) (36,374,311)
76,006 2,401,426
Distribution costs 34 {546,321) {1,114,552)
Administrative expenses is {737,494) (842.398)
Reversal / (charge) for expected credit losses 121 BE,734 {379,205)
Other expenses El (535,057) (199,214)
Cther income r 592,800 3.158
(1,063,332) (130,787)
Finance costs EL) (4,093,997] {4.772416)
15,163,329) 14,903,203)
Ly ig (222,874) [488,193)
(5,386,203) {5,391,396)
Taxation 40 1,574,844 (715,327)
(3,811,359) 16,106,723

{Hup!e!:l. .

41 = {12.83) 5 iZﬂ.SE]_ 2

The annexed notes from 1 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements

€~

e il N —=

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2025

2025 2024
L (Rupees in“000) -
(3.811,359) {6,106,723)
Other comprehensive income
Iterns that will not be subsequently reclassified to staterment of profit or loss:
Actuarial gain on remeasurement of defined benefit obligation - net of tax 25 34,926 4,904
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and eguipment - net of tax 20 - 5,951,635
the year (3,776433) (150,184)

The annexed notes from 1 to 55 form an integral part of these financal statements

€~

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2025

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss for the year

- Actuarial gain on remeasurement of defined
benefit obligation - net of tax

- Surplus an revaluation of property, plant and
equipment - net of tax

Incremental depreciation transfer to accumulated losses
from surplus revaluation reserves- net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

- Actuarial gain en remeasurement of defined
benefit obligation - net of tax

Incremental depreciation transfer to accumulated losses
from surplus revaluation reserves - net of tax

Transfer of surplus for assets sold during the year - net of
tax

Share Capital Capital Reserve Revenue Reserve
Issued, Share Surphus on Accumulated Total
subscribed premium revaluation (boss) /
and paid- of property, unappropriated
up plant and profit
capital equipment
{Rupees in 000}
2970114 2,788,742 3521961 5,095,368 14,376,185
16,106,723 (6,106,723
4,504 LR
5.951,635 : 5,851,635
5.951,635 6,101,815 [150,184)
{255,433) 255433
2970.114 2,788 742 9218163 {751,018) 14,226,001
(3,811,359 {3/811,359)
34,5826 34,916
[3,775.433) 13.776433)
242,228) 242,228
[62,567) 62,967
2970114 2,733,742 8,912,968 (4,222,256 10,449,568

The annexed notes frorn 1 to 55 form an integral part of these financial staternents

Lot

Chief Executive Officer

€~

=

Director

=

Chief Financial Officer
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2025

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes pakd

Gratuity paid

Finance costs paid

Long term deposits and loans

Met cash generated from / {used in) operating activities

Capital expenditure paid
Short-term investment - net

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Met cash generated from / {used in) investing activities

Dividend paid

Short term borrowings - net

Long term financing -net

Loan from related parties- net

Lease rentals paid

Met cash generated from financing activities
Net increase / (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements

Ll

Chief Executive Officer
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€~

S—

Director

2025 2024
ceeemeee [Rupees in '000) -
4,200,931 156,329

(454,836) (334,309)
(214,881) [54,379)
(887,933) {3,997,871)
21,201 18,143

T 2664482 (4212.087)
(103,911) (513,506)

{100} .

1,286,008 29,009
1,181,997 (484, 497)
(19) (182
651,746 4,828,580
(178,3839) 11,502,095)
- (3,411)
(41,154} {38.048)
432,184 3,344,944
4,278,663 (1,351,640
(3,052,524) 11,700,884
T 1,226,139 {3.052,524)

1,226,139

Chief Financial Officer



FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2025

1.1

Amreli Steels Limited (the Comparyy) was incorporated in 1984 as a private limited Company and converted into a public unquoted Company in 2009
under the repealed Compandes Ordinance, 1934 (the Ordinance now Companies Act, 2017 ). The Company enlisted on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX)
in 2015, The Company is engaged in manufacture and sale of steel bars and billets. The geographical location and addresses of the Company’s
business units / immovable assets are as under:

Business Units Addresses
Registered office and warehouse - Plot Mo, A-18, S1.T.E Karachi (Land measuring area 2.490 Acres}
Production plant and warshouse - Industrial Land, Deh Gharo, Tapo Gharo, Taluka Mirpur Sakro, District Thatta, Sindh (Land

= measuring area 1095 Acres |
- Flot Mo. -89 Shershah Karachi (Land measuring area 2.220 Acres)

Warehouses Moor Road Badami Bagh Lahore {Land measuring 0.79 Acres)
- Plot # 392 sector 1-9/3 industrial area Islamabad (Land measuring (0,50 Acres)
Office Premises - 10th floor, West Wing, Sky Tower, Clifton, Karachi

- F=11, KDA Scheme 1, Rarsaz, Karachi

During the year ended June 30, 2025, the Company faced further significant challenges arising from macroeconomic conditions and political
uncertainties. These challenges included, but were not limited to, a tight monetary policy, constrained fiscal space, high inflation, exorbitant energy
costs, mounting external and domestic debt burdens. During the year ended June 30, 2025, the Company faced further significant challenges arising
from unavailability of working capital limits due to an ongeing restructuring resulting in low capacity utilization. Therefore, the combination of low
capacity utilization, which increased the fined cost per ten, and the Company’s high leverage during the year resulted in a substantial net loss for the
year amounting Lo fs. 3,811,359 million (2024: Rs. 6,106.723 million) and, as of that date the Company accumulated loss stood at Rs. 4,222 256 million
(2024: Rs. 751.018 million),

The gap between current assets and current liabilities has widened considerably, primarily due to liguidity, operational capital expenditures, and the
repayment of liabilities. The Company breached the covenant of all long term finance due to adverse liquidity positicn {refer note 21.6) which
resulted in reclassification of long term loans and related deferred grant from "non-current liabilities® ta "current liabilities" under the requirements
of IAS 1- Presentation of inancial statements. As at June 30, 2025, the current liabilities of the Company exceeded its current assets by Rs. 13880415
miillion. Further, the Company has shutdown its plant located at Shershah last year temporarily which is continued during the year as waell.

These events or conditions, along with other matters as stated above, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the Campany's ability to continue as a going concern,

However, the management has devised fnancially viable strategies to navigate through these challenging times. These strategies include
restructuring of short-term and long-term debt which is currently at advance stage irefer note 21.6), reducing operational costs, selling of non core
assets thus conserving cash and showing much-improved liguidity ratios post-restructuring. The profitability will also improve gradually and as soon
as capacity utilization kicks in after a successful restructuring. Further, the Comparny's Sponsors remain committed to provide unconditional financial
suppart ta the Company to ensure continued operations.

According to the IMF and World Bank's forecasts, the country’s GDP is poised to grow at an average rate of 4% from financial vear 2026 and beyond,
and the interest rate, which has already started to climb down. It is important to highlight that strong demand potential exists in the construction
industry given the current state of infrastructure, lowest water reservoir, and significant housing shortfall all within a country of approximately 240
miillion people, growing at an annual rate of over 2%. Pakistan currently ranks as the lowest in per capita steel consumption in the region. Therefore,
in the view of abowve, the management believes that the future cutlook of the Company is positive and accordingly, these financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis.

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting
and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the [nternational Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as notified under the
Companies Act, 20017;

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS] issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAR) as are notified under the Companies
Act, 200 7; and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,
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Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under
the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

3.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for certain iterns as disclosed in the relevant accounting
paolicies to the inancial statements.

3.3 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the inancial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates,
These financial staternents are prasented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and presentational currency.

4.1  New standards, amendments, IFRS interpretations and guidance that are effective for the year ended June 30, 2025

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2025, These standards, amendments and
interpretations are sither mot relevant to the Company's operations or did not have significant impact on the financial staternents other than certain
additicnal disclosures.

Effective dates.
{annual pericds
beginning
on or after)
Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ - Supplier finance arrangements January 01, 2024
Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments ta clarify how a seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and
leasaback transactions January 01, 2024
Amendments to A5 1 'Presantation of Financial Staterments’ - Classification of liabilities as current or non-current January 01, 2024
Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Non-current liabilities with covenants January 01, 2024
Amendments to IAS 7 'Staternent of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance arrangements January 01, 2024
Amendments to the Fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 made in respect of shariah related disclosure. August 15, 2024

4.2 MNew accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not early adopted by the Company

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting perieds, beginning on or after the date mentioned
against each of them. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to
have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective dates
{annual perieds
on or after)
Amaendments to IFRS 7 ‘Fnancial Instruments: Disclosures’ - Amendments regarding the classification and
measurement of financial instruments January 01, 2026
Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ - Amendments regarding the classification and measurement of
financial instruments January 01, 2026
Amaendments to |AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' - Lack of Exchangeability January 01, 2025
Amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’ - Amendments regarding nature-dependent electricity
contracts that are often structured as power purchase agreements (PPAs) January 01, 2026
Amaendments to IFRS 9 ‘Fnancial Instruments’ - Amendments regarding nature-dependent electricity contracts that
are often structured as power purchase agreements (PPAs) January 01, 2026
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01, 2027
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5.1

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFASs and 1A5s,

IFES 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’ has been issued by IASB effective from July 07, 2009, However, it has not
been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been notified by the [ASE to be effective for annual pericds beginning on or after fanuary 1, 2023, However SECP
has notified the revised timeframe for the adoption of IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by January 01, 2027,

IFES 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by 1ASE effective from January 01, 2027, However, it has not been
adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

IFRS 19 ‘Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures’ has been issued by IASE effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been
adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

The material accounting palicies applied in the presentation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless stated otherwise.

Property, plant and eguipment
Owned assets

These are initially stated at cost. Subsequently, these are stated al cost less accumilated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any,
except for leasehold land, building on leasehold land and plant and machinery which are stated at revalued amounts less impairment, if any.

Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance method except for plant and machinery, computers and vehicles
whilch are depreciated on straight line basis and / or unit of production method at the rates disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements.
Depreciation is charged from the month in which an asset is available for use, while no depreciation is charged for the month in which asset is
disposed.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to staterment of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements which increase
the asset's remaining wuseful economic life or the performance beyond the current estimated levels are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any,
are retired.

The gain or lass on disposal or retirerment of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of an asset
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the period of dispasal

The assets residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Surplus on revaluation of land, buildings and plant and machinery is credited to the surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment account
and is shown in the statement of changes in equity. The revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders,
Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to emsure that the carrying amount of azsets does not differ materially from the fair value.

Cost / revalued amount at the date of the revaluation is adjusted / eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is
restated to the revalued amount of the asset. To the extent of the incremental depreciation charged on the revalued assets, the related surplus on
revaluation of property, plant and equipment {net of deferred taxation) is transferred directly to retained earnings.

If an asset's carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increaze shall be recognised in statement of comprehensive income and
accumulated inequity under the heading of surplus on revaluation of property plant and equipment. If an asset’s carrying amount is decreased as a
result of a revaluation, the decrease shall be recognised in profit or loss. However, the decrease shall be recognized in other comprehensive income
to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset,

The decrease recognised in statement of comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation

surplus. However, the increase shall be recognised in statement of profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
praviously recognised in statement of profit or loss.
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5.1.2 Capital work in progress

5.2

53

54

5.5

5.6

Capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less impairment and signifies expenditures incurred, advances made in respect of specific assets and
financial charges on borrowings for financing the projects which takes substantial time for completion, until such projects are available for their
intended use. Assets under capital work-in-progress are classified to the apprapriate categories of praperty, plant and equipment, when completed
and ready for intended use.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises a right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease {ie. the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Subsequently Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less any accumidated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
useful life of lease as disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements.

Intangibles

These are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Amortization is charged to statement of profit or loss on straight line basis over its economic useful life at the rate given in note 9 to these financial
statements. Amortization on additions Is charged from the month in which an intangible asset is available for use while no amortization is charged
for the month in which an intangible asset is disposed.

Stores and spares

These are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value (NRV), less impairment if any. The net realizable value of stores and spares is determinad
based on replacement cost. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the reporting date.

Iterns in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the reporting date,

The Company reviews the carrying amount of inventories regularly and as appropriate, inventory s written down to its NRY or provision is made for
obsolescence, if there is any change in usage pattern andysor physical form of related inventory.

Stock-in-trade
Thesa are valued at the lower of cost and MRV, less impairment if any.

Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Raw materials - Weighted average cost

Work-in-process - Consists of direct materials, labour cost, fuel cost, power cost, depreciation and maintenance ete.
Finished goods

« Manufactured - Weighted average cost

- Stock-in-tramsit - Invoice value plus other charges paid thereon up to the reporting date

MRV signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessarnly to be
Incurred to make the sale.

Trade debts

These are recognised imitially are carried at original invoice amount being the fair value of the consideration to be received in future. An allowance
for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is made against trade debts on the basis of lifetime expected credit loss madel as explained in note 12 to the financial
staternents. The amount of provision / reversal of ECL is charged / reversed to the statement of profit or loss,

Trade debts and other receivables considered irrecoverable are written-off.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, bank deposit, cheques in hand, short term highly liguid investments and balances with banks.

Shaort-term borrowing facilities which are payable on demand, are included as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash
flows.
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58  Noncurrent assets held for sale
The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying ameunts will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. Non-current assets classified as held for sale (except for Investment property measured at falr value} are measured at
the lower of thair carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the incremental costs directly attnbutable to the disposal of an

aszet excluding Ainance costs and income Lax expense.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset or disposal group is available far
immediate sale In its present condition. Actions requited to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that sigrificant changes to the sale
will be made or that the decision ta sell will be withdrawn, Management must be committed to the plan to sell the asset and the sale 15 expected to
he completed within one year from the date of the classification, 'Assets and liabilities classified 25 held for sale are presented separately in the
staterment of financial position

59 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease e, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

5.9.1 Short-term leases
The Company applies the short-term bease recognition exemption to its short term leases [i.e, leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option}, Lease payments on short term leases are recognised as expense on a strakght line
hasis over the lease term.

5.9.2 Finance lease - lease Habilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made aver
the lease term The lease payments Include fixed payments {including in-substance fixed payments) less lease incentives recelvable (F any), variable
fease payments that depend on an index or a rate {if any), and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees (if anyl. The leass
payments alsa include the exercise price of a purchaze option reasonably certain to be exercized by the Company (if any) and payments of penalties
for terminatireg the lease (if any), If the termination option is reasonably certain to be exercised, Vanable lezse payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the penod in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
In caleulating the present value of lease payments at the lease caommencement date, the Company uses the interest rate Implicit in the lease. In case
whiere the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, the Company uses its incremental boarrowing rate, After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrving
amaunt of bease liabilities is remeasured if there is 3 moadification, a change in the lease term; a change in the [ease payments or 2 change in the
assessment of an aption to purchase the underlying asset,

5.10 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

5.10.1 Financlal assets
Classification, recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified into appropriate categories at amartized cost, fair value through other comprahensive income or at fzir value through
profit or loss, The management determines the classification of Ainancial assets into appropriate categories based on the Company’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows,
At amortized cost
Financial assets are measured at amortized cost when:

s The asset 15 held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates Lo cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest an the principal
amount outstanding.

At fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income when:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both colleching contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
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The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are salely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Other financial assets

All financial assets which do not fall into the first two categories are classified as fair value through profit or loss.

Initial Recognition and Subsequently Measurement

All financial assets are recognised at the time when the Company becomaes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets at
amortized cost are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured al amortized cost using the effective interest method. The

amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses, if amy. Interest income and impairment losses are recognised In the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets carried at fair value through other comprehensive income are initially and subsequently measured at fair vatue, with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of
profit or loss. Realized and unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the fair values of the financial assets held at fair value through profit
or loss are included in the statermnent of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

All purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date which is the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the
financial asset.

Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has

transferred substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership. On derecognition of a inancial asset, in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable s recognised in the statement of comprehensive inceme.

5.10.2 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
liabilities are recognized initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequently to initial recognition, these are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method,

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Offzetting of inancial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Impairment

Financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its debt instruments carried at amertized cost and
at fair value through other comprehensive income. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase

In eredit risk.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.
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5.14

5.15

517

The Compary measures ECL of a financial instrumant in a way that reflects:
a) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible cutcomes;
b} the time value of money; and

) reasorable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditicns
and forecasts of future economic conditions,

The measuremnent of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default {ie. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at defaull. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-lecking information as described above. As for the exposure at default for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying
amount at the reporting date.Generally, credit terms range from 30 to 60 days from the date of delivery.

Mon-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-inancial assets at each reporting date to identify circumstances
indicatimg cccurrence of impairment loss or reversal of previous impairment losses. Animpairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss
for tha amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less cost to sale and wvalue in use. Reversal of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions

are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

The amount recognized as pravision Is the best estimate of consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking imto account the risk and uncertainties surreunding the obligation.

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pakistan Rupees at the rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of exchange which approximate those prevailing at the reporting date,
Exchange differences are recognized in the statement of profit or loss,

Unclaimed dividend

Dividend declared and remain unclaimed from the date it is due and payable.

Defined benefit abligation - Gratuity

The Company operates an un-approved and unfunded defined benefit plan for all permanent employees who have completed the minimum
qualifying year of service for entitlement of gratuity. Gratuity is based on employees’ last drawn salary. Provisions are made to cover the obligations
under the scheme on the basis of actuarial recommendations, The actuarial valuations are carried out using the Projected Unit Credit Method,
Actuarial gain or loss [remeasurements) are immediately recognised in Stalement of Comprehensive Incorme’as they occur. The amount recognizad
in the statement of Ainancial position represents the present value of defined benefit obligations as reduced by the fair value of the plan assets.
Current service costs and any past service costs together with net interest cost are charged to profit or loss.

Retirement benefits are payable to employees on completion of prescribed qualifying pericd of service under the plan.

ljarah contracts

Leases under Shariah compliant ljarah contracts, where significant portion of the risk and reward of ownership is retained by the lessor, are classified
as ljarah. Rentals under these arrangements are charged to statement of profit or loss on straight line basis aver the lease term.

Levy
The Company accounts for current tax calculated on taxable income using the notified tax rate as an income tax and any tax charged under the
income tax laws which is not based on the taxable income recorded az a levy in accordance with the Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and

Final taxes issuved by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. The minimum tax and final taxes which are not cabculated on the ‘taxable
profit' but calculated on turnover or other basis are recognized as a levy in the Statement of profit or loss under the scope of IFRIC 21/1A537.
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5.1% Taxation

5.19.1 Income Tax

Income kax expense comprizes current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in statement of profit or loss, except to the axtent that it
relates to iterns recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which casze it is alto recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.

51211 Current

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for taxation of income,
The charge for current tax is calculated using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date after taking into account tax credits and
tax rebates. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax mada in previous years arising from
assessments framed during the year for such years.

51912 Deferred

5.20

52

5.22

5.23

Deferred taxis recognized using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts appearing in the financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the future and taxable income will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets s reviewad at each statement of financdial position date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to aliow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the statement of financial position date Deferred tax is charged or
credited in the statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive income.

Revenue recognition

Rewvenue is recognised at amounts that reflect the consideration that the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer, Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and is recognised when performance
obligation is satisfied, at a point in time, when control of goods have been transferred to a customer.

Other income

Return on short-term deposits and investments at amortised cost are accounted for using the effective interest rate method.

Scrap sales are recognized as and when controf s transferred.

Dividend and appropriation to / from reserves

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability and appropriation to / from reserves are made in the period inwhich
these are approved. However, if these are approved after the reporting period but before the financial statements are authorised for issue, they are
disclosed as subsequent event in the financial statements.

Contingent liabilities and assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arizes from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the coourrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whelly within the control of the Company. It can also be a present obligation arising from

the past events that is not recognized because it Is not probable that outflow of ecenomic resources will be required or the amaount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are ot recognized but are disclosed in the notes to the accounts, When a change in the probability of an outfiow occurs so that
outflow iz probable, it will then be recognized as provision,

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whese existence will be confirmed only by the cccurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the contral of the Company. Contingent assets are not recognized but are disclosed in the
motes to the accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When an inflow is virtually certain, an assel is recognized.
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524 Operating segments

525

5.26

5.27

5.28

5.29

5.30

For management purposes, the activities of the Company are organized into one reportable operating segment. The Company operates in the said
reportable operating segment based on the nature of the products, risks and returns, organizational and management structure, and internal
financial reporting systems. Accordingly, the iigures reported in the financial staterments are related to the Company's only reportable segmeant.

Borrowings and related costs

Borrowings are recognised Initially at fair value net of transaction cost incurred, Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds received (net of transaction cost) and the redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss aver the
period of the barrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended wse or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year in
whilch they occur. Borrowing cost consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the barrowing of funds,

Trade and other payables
Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid for goods or services received whether or not billed to the Company.
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amaunt of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a custormer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due {whichever is earlier}. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Company performs under the contract.

Share capital

Crdinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Earnings { (loss) per share

The Company prasents basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per share (EPS / LPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS/ LPS s caleulated by dividing the prefit
! loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares sutstanding during the period.
Diluted EPS / LP5 is determined by adjusting the profit / loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,

Government grant

The Company recognises benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of interest as a government grant provided there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and Company will comply with all attached conditions.

The deferred capital grant is measured upon initial recognition as the difference between fair value of the loan and loan proceeds. The fair value of
the loan is the present value of the loan proceed received, discounted using the prevailing market rates of interest for a similar instrument. In
subsequent periods, the loan amount would be aceredited using the effective interest method.

When the grant relates to expense, it is recognised as income on a systermatic basis over the periods that the related costs, for wihich it is intended to
compensate, are expensed-out. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the
related asset.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are bazed on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, Actual results may differ from these judgments, estimates and assumptions, Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised and in any future years affected. In the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and judgments which are significant to the financial staterments:
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Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, depreciation method, useful life and residual value used in the calculation of
depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the recoverable amount of assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis. In
miaking these estimates, the Company uses the technical resources available with the Company. Any change in estimates in future might affect the
carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment, with corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the appropriateness of the revaluation of certain assets periodically for the purpose of ensuring that the carrying amount of
the same does not differ materially fram its fair value, In making this assessment, the Company uses the technical resources available with the
Company. Any change in assessment in future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment, with
cormesponding effect on revaluation surplus of property, plant and eguipment.

Impairment financial assets

The Company uses a pravision matrix (o calculate ECLs for trade debts and other receivables, The provision rates are based on days past due for
Company's various customer that have similar loss patterns,

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the
historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions are expected to deteriorate aver the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate, The
amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer's actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Company's financial assets exposed to credit risk is disclosed In note 462 to these financial statemenits.

Determination of the lease term for lease contracts with extension and termination options

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by anoption to extend the lease
if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised,

The Comipariy has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it
i reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to remnew or terminate the lease. That is, it considars all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise aither the renewal or termination. After the commencemaent date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there
is a significant event or change in circurmstances that is within its controf that affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to
terminate (a.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation of the leased asset),

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate ('1BR] to measure lease
liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to oblain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.

Defined Benefit Plan

Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements for the valuation of present value of defined
benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets. Any changes in these assumpticns in future years might affect gains and losses in those years.

Taxation

Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes and deferred tax asset and liability. The Company recognizes liabilities
for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due taking into account decisionsfjudgement of appellate
authorities on similar tax issues in the past. Where the final tax cutcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current and deferred tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made. The recognition of
deferred tax is also made taking into these judgements and the best estimate of future results of the Company.
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Contingencies

The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the outcome of the future events cannot be
predicted with certainty, The Company, based on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value of contingent assets and liabilities

which may differ on the occurrence / non-accurrence of the uncertain future events,

Stockin trade and stores and spares

The Company reviews the NRY of stock-in-trade and stores and spares to assess any diminution in the respective carrying values. NRY is estimated

with reference to the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary

to make the sale.

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools is determined based on management's estimate regarding their futurs

usability.

Owned fixed assets
Capital wark-in progress

2025 2024
Mate ceee [Rupees in ‘0007 -
7.1 25,544,016 28,196,929
72 1,709,416 1,758,441

217,253,432 29,955,370
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7.1.3 Operating fixed assets include iterns having an aggregate cost of Rs.474.3 million (2024: 251.1 million} which have been fully depreciated and are still
in use of the Company.

7.1.4 The Company's leasehold land, building cn leasehold land and plant and machinery were revalued by an independent valuer - M/s KiG Traders as on
Jure 30, 2024 on the basis of present market values of similar sized plots in the vicinity for land and replacement values of similar type of buildings
based on present cost of construction {level 2) and valuations for plant and machinery were based on the estimated gross replacement cost,
depreciated to reflect the residual service potential of the assets taking account of the age, condition and obsolescence.

7.1.5 Had there been no revaluation, the book value of leasehold land, buildings on leasehold land and plant and machinery would have been Rs. 517,162
{2024: Rs. B17.162) million, Rs. 1,134,760 (2024: Rs. 1,877.328) million and As. 11,121,548 {2024: As 12,211.22) million, respectively.

7.1.6 Forced sale value as per the latest revaluation report as of June 30, 2024 of leasehold land, buildings on leasehold land and plant and machinery is
R, 2,960 millicn, Rs 2,497 million and Rs. 14,889 million, respectively.

7.1.7 The details of cperating assets disposed off during the vear are as follows.

e 1 = .: . x --.
I s

———— [Rupeas in'000") ———
fterms having net book value of s 500,000 each or mone
Bullding Sky Tower BESI97  BIATMA  1,190296 3535522 Megottion  MSC Agency Pakistan (Private) Limited Viensdor
Wooden floorng and revamping executive area 602 5HY B35 246  Megotiation  M5C Agency Pakistan (Private) Limited Vendor
Engneansd oak | 2tod wel 5" top layer Bmm 2482 2868 4,000 1212 Megatistion  MSC Agency Pakistan [Private) Limited Vendor
Engineared oakl:2tod’ wea 5 tap byer Senm 825 B804 1,47 343 Megotation  MSC Agency Pakdstan [Private) Limited Vardar
fioller Blinds, chain oparted coler 2001 20 765 1,091 326 Megobistion  MSC Agency Pakistan (Private) Limited Verwdae
Roller blinds,; chain operated colar 0220 sunsoreen 508 503 nr 214 Megotastion  MSC Agency Pakdstan [Private) Limited \Vendor
Haod type commercial dish washer dim: 27°x 30" 58" &9 T B14 243 Megotation  MSC Agency Pakistan (Private) Limited Vendor
Huawsi Idea hub B8 infared screen modelpro B 01 2577 2116 016 902 Megotation  MSC Agency Pakistan Private) Linited Venidor
Fx-tdan) 70 TES 543 oy 274 Megatistion  MSC Agency Pakistan [Private) Limited Vendor
‘Water cosled untmodal ngcwopu-05,cap .50 795 G5B 953 285 Megatation MSC Agency Pakistan [Private) Limited \Vendar
Smart t85 “gled 4k modefq70a samsung 845 757 1,079 322 Megobiation MSE Agency Pakistan [Private) Limited Verdor
Supply & instaliation dde comtrofer 1,350 1265 1,804 539 Megotastion  MSC Agency Pakdstan [Private) Limited Vandor
AmsT ac drive control panel with althar-51 7435 5830 70 (57601 Megotation Wi, Samad Custormar
feheating fumace 60075 tph - load cell &0 518 5 (5131 Megatation i, Samad Custormer
Primetals spares po ¥ 12-1127 (bulk trendh 1) 13,924 7054 157 (6897  Megatiation I, Samad Custorrer
Ganarator 100 kva 3,800 1525 o0 {625 Megatition Hobrab Bakaries Flebated party
Curnmirs deesef gererator set of 136kva prime rating 973 2380 1,700 (6BO1  Megabation Hobrab Bakeries Aelated party

Other assets hawving book value less than Rs. 500,000 95673 60536 6415 15879

2025 LOOAHIY 934166 1ZE600B 3ATH42
2024 12290 350955 316524 [FA031)
71E Depreciation charge for the year has been allocabed as undér: — 023 2
wssseees (Rupees in D00°) seeeee

Caost of sales - production of bars 3 534,933 522,532
Cost of sales - production of billets 332 579,480 396,748
Distribution costs 34 63,947 E0.867
Administrative expenses 35 48,385 57,801
Other expenses 36 103,623

1,330,368 1,037,348
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72

T.2.

8.1

8.2

Capital work-in-progress

Opening balance

Additions

Trarafer to owned fived assets
Closing balance

Opening balance
Additions
Trarafer to owned fived assets

Closing balance

Net carrying value basis
Balance as at July 01
Additions (at cost)
Depreciation charge
Termination
Balance as at June 30

Gross carrying value basis
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Met book value

Depreciation rate

Depraciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Software

Net carrying value basis
Balance as at July 01
Amaortization charge
Balance as at June 30

Gross carrying value basis
Cost

Accurmnulated amortization
Met book value

2025
Tand (Gutworks | machineryandothers fiia
Mote {Mote 1) [Mote 7.2.1)
[Rupees in‘000°)
120,000 266,368 1372072 1,758441
- 45,240 37,842 83,082
71 o (59,474) (72,633} (132,107)
120,000 252,135 1337281 1709416
Leasehold iwode | PRntand :
feate
({Rupees in'000")
120,000 270,907 1240403 1,631,310
: 46,733 427,881 474614
(Al . {51,271) (296,212} [3474a3)
120,000 266,369 1372072 1758441
During the year, Nil borrowing costs have been capitalized {2024: Rs. 22,109 million at 3.25% to 24.01%).
MNote 2025 2024
=== [Rupees in '000°) =
100,238 135711
121,863 4,654
B (32,616} (40,147)
{H:m} N
102,539 100,238
121,863 240,042
(19,324) (139,804
102,539 100,238
22% 7% to 34%
34 12,505 17,158
35 20,111 22,949
32,616 40,147
The right-of-use-assets comprise of office premises acquired on lease by the Company for its operations.
9.1 1,363 3187
3,187 6,600
3.2 11.,824) (3.:413)
1,363 3187
83 74,703 74703
(73,340) 171,516)
1,363 3187
5 years 3to 5 years

Useful life
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8.1

9.2

8.3

101

10.2

111

This rapresents the SAP S/4HANA accounting software, which is being amortized over a period of 5 years,
The entire amount of amortization charge for the year has been allocated to administrative expenses.

This include iterns having an aggregate cost of Rs. 69406 million (2024: Rs, 63755 million) which have been fully amortized and are still in use of the
Company.

2025 2024
Loans - unsecured —-(Rupees in '000°) -~
Dise from:
Executives 10.1 7,960 2920
Employees 10,903 20,603
10.2 18,863 49824
Less: Current portion
Executives T.609 17321
Employees | 10,363 15,062
13 (17,972} [36,383)
a9 13,441
Deposits
Margin against guarantees 43,217 43217
Utilities 77,305 77305
ljarah f Diminishing Musharaka 5,293 17174
Container deposits 6,000 6,000
Rent 2,133 18438
140,948 162,134
141,839 175,575

The maximum aggregate amount due from executives at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 44.023 millien (2024: Rs. 30.871 million). The
reconciliation of the carrying amount of loans to executives is as follows:

2025 2024
—-- [Rupees in '000') ——
Balance as at July 1 29,221 34,770
Disbursements during the year 26,264 13,110
Received during the year {47,525) {18,659
Balance as at June 30 7,560 29221

This represents interest free loans to employees in accordance with the Company policy. These are recoverable in twelve to forty two equal monthly
installments. However, these advances are not amortized as the impact of discounting is immaterial.

2025 1024
=== [Rupees in 000 ==

Raw materials

-In hand 1,821,956 4,196,151

<In transit 578,285 654404
2,400,241 4,840,555

Wark-in-procass 263,334 253,850

Finished goods 11.1 1,348,152 2,067,571
4,011,727 7162016

These includes inventories having cost amounting Rs. 1410465 million, which have been written down to their net realizable value amounting to
1,348.152 million. Accordingly, provision for net realizable value amounting As. 62.313 million has been recorded in these financial statements.
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121

17.1 These carry markup at rates ranging from 9.25% to 1% (2024: 6.75% to 18%) per annum.

Unsecured
Considered good
Considered doubtful

Allowance for expected credit loss

Movement of allowance for expected credit loss

Balance as at July 01

Charged / {Reversed) during the year
Write-off during the year

Balance as at June 30

Unsecured - considered good
Current portion of long term loans
Advances

o suppliers

“to employees

Trade deposits
ljarah f Diminishing Musharaka

Short term prepayments
Insurance

Software maintenance
Others

Mote 2025 2024
== [Rupees in '000°) -

1,564,494 2,349.962

586,188 672,922

2,150,682 3,022,884

121 (586,188) (672,922)

1,564,494 2,349,962

672,922 297,714

(86,734) 373,205

= 13.997)

586,188 672,922

10 17,972 35,383

15,388 20,760

4,153 2978

15,541 23,738

37,513 60,121

11,913 16480

4,434 T.856

961 4,247

118 1.458

5,513 13,555

17,426 30,035

This represents term deposits receipts held with various Islamic Banks as a lien for guarantee issued by the bank on behalf of the Company and
carries prafit at the rate ranging from 8.0% to 9.8% (2024; 9.74% to 13.63%) per annum having maturity in March 2026 (2024: March 2025,

Sales tax refundable

Receivable from sale of property, plant and equipment
Accrued profit on term deposits receipts and savings account

Cashi in hand

Bank balances
Current accounts
Saving accounts

| A RAY OF HOPE-Annual Report 2025

646,895 580,559

- 6,873

1,445 1.201

648,340 988,633

39,599 60,607

84,290 134,195

17.1 3,781,406 542
3,865,696 134,837

3,905,295 195,444

=
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2025 2024
MNote —=-[Rupees in '000") -
Warehouse - Islamabad
Leasehold land 300,000 300,000
Building 60,670 60,670
Plant and machinery 62,500 62,500
18.1 T az3aTe 423170
Warehouse - Lahore
Leasehold land 160,000
Building 40,263
Plant and machinery 74,578
181 274,841
Leasehold land 182 67,000 ) ) -
765,011 423,170
18.1 Inorder to meet the working capital requirements and to settle the liabifities, the Company had decided to sell -

- Its Islamabad warehouse which comprize of leasehold land, building and macdhinery installed therein, having carrving amount of Rs. 300 million,
Rs. 60670 million and Rs. 6250 million, respectively and recieved token money amounting to Bs. 30 million in this regard during the year, As per
valuation carried out by M/S KG Traders, the market value of leasehold land, building and plant and machinery was Bs. 300 million, Rz, 60,670 million
and Rs. 62.50 million, respectively.

- Its Lahore warehause which comprise of leasehald land, building and machinery installed thersin, having carrying amount of Rs. 160 million, Rs.
40.263 million and As. 74.578 miflion respectively during last year. As per valuation carried out by M/S KG Traders, the market value of leasehold land,
building and plant and machinery was Rs. 160 million, Rs. 40.773 million and Rs. 78 million, respectively.

The Company has classified above assets, in accordance with the requirement of IFRS-5 ° Mon-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations’,

18.2 The Company acquired land located at Gadap Town, Karachl measuring, 0,136 acres, in exchange for settling a trade debt, valued at Rs. 60 milfion. As
per M/S KG Traders' valuation report the market value of this land was Rs. 67 million. The Company intends to sell this land hence classified the same
accordance with the requirement of [FR5-5 * Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations®,

19.1 Authorized capital

2025 2024
Mumber of shares
Note —-- [Rupees in '000') -—

2025 2024
420,000,000 420,000,300 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/~ each 4,200,000 4,200,000

80,000,000 80,000,000 Curnulative preference shares of __ Boopon 800,000
500,000,000 500,000,000 Rs. 10¢-each 5,000,000 5,000,000

19.2 Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/~ each

263,683,930 263,883,930 Issued for cash 2,638,839 2,638,839

33127497 33127457 Issued for consideration other than cash 154 331,275 331,275
297,011,427 297,011 427 2,970,114 2970,114
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2025 2024
19.3 Following is the detail of shares held by the related parties: were (No. f shares) —
Mr. Abbas Akberali 91,294,723 91,294,723
Ms. Mahvash Akberali 55,732,930 55,732,930
Mr. Hadi Abbas Akbarali 37,732,212 37732212
Mr. Shayan Akberali 37,441,123 37,441,123
Ms. Kinza Shayan - 100
Wz, Salsabil Akberali 1,254,75% 1,254,759
Mr. Badar Kazmi - 1,000
Ms. Mariam Akberali 1,000 1.000
Mr. Teizoon Kisal - 500
Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji - 12,000
Syed Asghar Jamil Rizw 500 :
Mr. Sohail Feroz Shamsi 500
Mr. Zoeb Salemwala 100 -
223,457,847 223,470,347

19.4 This includes 952,497 ordinary shares issued to various shareholders of the Company against plant and machinery and 32,175,000 ordinary shares of
the Company against purchase of other fixed assets.

19.5 Voting rights and all other rights associated with shareholders shall be in propaortion to their respective shareholding.

2025 2024
MNote — [Rupees in '000") —-—
Balance as at July 01 13,264,164 4538802
Surplus on revaluation - 9,030,438
Less: Assets sold during the vear
Land - (177,785
Building | {1 II‘I,?'HJ ‘ .
(101.708) ' (177,785)
Transfer to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental depreciation charged during the year (397,095) (127,291)
Balance as at June 30 12,765,361 13,264,164
Related deferred tax liability
Balance as at July 01 {4,046,001) (1,016,841
Aszet sold during the year 38741 (3,078,803)
Change of deferred tax rates - .
Incrermental depreciation 154,867 49643
Balance as at June 30 3,852,393 4,046,001)
20.1 8,911,968 9218163
20.1 Breakup of revaluation surplus net of deferred tax is as follows:
Leasehold land 1,882,840 2,882.839
Buildings on leasehold land 684,339 765,609
Plant and machinery 5,345,789 5569715
8,912,968 8,218,163
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21.1

21.2

21.3

1.4

215

21.6

2025 2024
MNote == [Rupees in'000°) ——
Conventional:
Term Finance Facility 211 2,412,984 2,284,532
Temporary Economic Refinance Facility
(TERF] 212 67,832 59,814
2,480,816 2344346
Islamiic:
Islamic Temporary Economic Refinance Facility [ITERF) 213 828,558 883,359
SBP Financing for Renewable Energy 214 330,888 375447
Diminishing Muzharaka 215 335,465 399311
1,494,911 1,658,138
3,975,727 4,002.484
Current portion shown under current liabilities
Islamiic {1,494,911) (2,344 346)
Canventianal {2,480, 816) (1,658,138
216 (3,975,727} (4,002 484)

This represents term finance facilities obtained from various commercial banks and development finance institution {DFl) to refinance capital
expenditure incurred by the Company repayable in 16 and 20 quarterly installments starting from December 2021 and ending by June 2027, These
carry markup rate ranging from 3 month KIBOR plus 1.15% to 1.50% (2024: 3 month KIBOR pius 1.15% to 1.50% ). These facilities are secured against
first pari passu charge over present and future fixed assets of the Company {including land, building and plant and machinery) with 25% margin.
Howerver, as at fune 30, 2025, unutilized portion of the facilities is Mil {2024: Nil}.

This represents financing facility obtained from development finance institution (OFI) for import of machinery under TERF Scheme by SBP. The loan
is repayable in eight years through 24 equal quarterly installments starting from March 2025 and ending by December 2030. The loan is recognised
at present value disesunted at the effective rate of interest and carrmes mark-up at the SBP rate plus 2.25% per annum, The differantial mark-up has
been recognised as government grant (as mentionad in note 27}, which will be amertised over the useful life of the assets. The facility is secured by
way of first pari passu charge over fixed assets of the Company with 25% margin over the fadility amount.

This represents financing facility obtained from an islamic Bank for impaort of machinery under Islamic TERF Scheme by SBP repayable in ten years
through 40 equal quarterly instaliments starting frem July 2023 and ending latest by April 2031, The loan has been recognised al present value
discounted at the effective rate of interest and carries mark-up at the SBP rate plus 2 25% (2024: 2.25%) per annum. The difference between the
actual proceeds received and the prezent value of the loan has been recognised as government grant (as mentioned in note 27), which will be
amaortised over the useful life of the assets. This facility is secured by way of first pari passu charge over plant and machinery and mortgage charge
over land and building of the Company with 25% margin over the facility amount.

This represents financing facility obtained from an Islamic Bank to setup a 7 MW Solar Power Project under SBP Financing Facility for Henewable
Energy repayable in ten years through 34 equal guarterly installments starting from October 2021 and ending by December 2028, The loan haz been
recognised at present value discounted at the effective rate of interest. This carries mark-up at the SBP rate plus 0.95% per annum. The difference
between the actual proceeds received and the present value of the loan has been recognised as government grant (as mentioned in note 27), which
will be amortised over the useful life of the assets. The facility is secured by way of first pari passu charge over fixed assets of the Company with 25%
margin over the facility amount. As at June 30, 2025, unutilized portion of the facility s Nil {2024: Nil).

Thizs represants Diminishing Musharaka facilitios obtained from Islamic inancial institutions. The facility of Faysal Bank is repayable over a period of
§ years, commending in Deacember 2022 and ending by June 2027, These carries profit at six-month KIBOR plus 1.65% per annum {2024: six-month
KIBOR plus 1.65% per annum). The facility from First Habib Modaraba is repayable in 48 equal monthly instaiments, starting from November 2020
and ending in Movember 2027. These carries profit at three-month KIBOR plus 0.75% to 0.90% per annum {2024: three-month KIBOR plus 0.75% to
0.90% per annum). The Diminishing Musharaka Facility from Faysal Bank is secured by a pari passu charge over plant and machinery and a mortgage
charge over the Company's land and building. As at lune 30, 2025, the unutilized portion of the First Habib Medaraba facility is Nil (2024: Rs. 68.918
million).

International Accounting Standard (1A5) 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ requires that an entity shall classify a liability as current at the end
of the reporting period, if it does not have an unconditional right at the end of the reporting period to defer its settlement for at least twelve months
after that date.

In the pricr and current year, due to the factors explained in note 2 to these Anancial statements as at and for the year June 30, 2025 and the
Company's liquidity constraints and adverse financial position, the Company was in non-compliance with the covenants of its long-term financing
agreements, such as the maintenance of a current ratio of 1:1, During the year and as at the reporting date, these conditivns persist, and repayments
of long-term financings have been halted. Resulting in continued non-compliance with the covenants of its long-term financing agreements.
Consequently, the lenders have the right to demand immediate repayment of total amount of principal cutstanding under the event of default
clauses of the agreements.
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As at the reporting date, the Company Is in negotiations with the financial institutions for the restructuring of loans and expects that the same will
be finalized in near future as the restructuring process at advanced slage and approved by majority financial institution subsequent to the year end.
The term of the loaans is expected to be rescheduled for a period of 10 years. In continuation of negotiations the Board has approved the reschaduling
and restructuring in its meeting held of September 24, 2025 (refer note: 53).

This represents provision for Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC). During the year ended 2021, the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan
{SCP) has upheld the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015 to be constitutional and intravires allowing settlement of GIDC over a period of
forty-eight monthly installments. However, the Company has filed an appeal before the Honorable High Court of Sindh (HCS) on the grounds that
no burden of GIDC had been passed to its customers and thus, the Company is not able to pay GIDC under GIDC Act 2015. The Court vide its arder
dated September 22, 2020 has granted stay to the Company.

The Company without prejudice to the suit filed, has made a provision amounting to Rs. 282.238 million under the relevant accounting standards
and ICAP guidelines in this regard.

2025 2024
== [Rupees in '000°)
Balance as at July 01 182,189 277,958
Interast expense 4% 4,231
282,238 282,189

Less: Current portion {282,238) {282,189
Balarice as at June 30 - -

This represents loan obtained from a related party at a rate of 3 month KIBOR, repayable on December 31, 2027. The loan was obtained to meet the

financial needs of the Company.
o 28| orless o
Taxable temporary differences Yupeas in:00/)
Accelerated tax depreciation f
amartization 3,344,573 [G0,08E8) - 3,284,485 (227 326) . 3,057,159
Surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and eguipment 1,016,840 (43,644 3,078,803 4,046,000 {193,609) - 3,852,390
Right of use asset 52,935 {13,843} - 39,003 897 - 39,990
4,414,348 (123,574) 3,078,803 7368578 [420,038] - 6,545,540

Deductible temporary
differences
Unused tax credit and losses | (2821,262) 1,025,144 . (1,796,118} (1,251,820 . (3,047,938)
Ceferred liability- Gratuity (176,664) (26,132) 3,136 (199,660} 49,679 22,330 {127,6517)
Trade debts {116,108) (146332} - (262 440} 33,827 - {228613)
GIDC Provision [B2,865) {27.,089) - {110,054} {19 - {110,073)
Lease liabilities {60,967) 6,317 - (54, 650) 13,136 - [41,514)
Others (7.382) 6,991 - 1391) 351 - .

[3,265,348) 833,901 3,134 (2.423.313) (1,154,806 22,330 (3.555,789)

—Taases 71533 308193 T ASaEIes ISASeA T 43330 3395751
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25.1

25.2

253

5.4

2025 2024
Mote weee ([RUp@es in “000") ==
Defined benefit obligation — gratuity scheme 25 327,311 511,849
Amount recognised in statement of financial position
Balance as at July 01 511,949 452,985
Charge for the year 252 87,499 121382
Benefits paid (214,887) {54,379
Remeasuremnent gain recognized in other comprehensive income {57,258) (3,039)
Balance as at July 30 327,31 511,949
Charge for the year
Current service cost 58,015 54,082
Past service cost B27 1321
Gain / lozs on settelement (29,240)
Interest cost 57,897 55,979
87,499 121382
Historical information for defined benefit plans
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
[Rupees in'000")
Present value of defined
benefit obligations 327,311 511,945 453,985 365,914 305,193
Experience adjustment
on plan liabilities (57,257) {8,039 22987 17,073 5,608
Principal actuarial assumptions 2025 2024
Expected rate of increase in salary level 11.50% 13.75%
Valuation discount rate 12.50% 14.75%
Ayerage expected remaining working life of emplovees 8.1 years 3.4 years
Expected mortality rate SLIC 20:01- 2005 SLEC 2001- 2005
Setback 1 Year Setback 1 Year
Age-Based Age-Based

Rizk on account of un funded gratuity scheme

Final salary risk

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what was assurmed. Since the benefit Is calculated on the final salary
{which will closely refiect inflation and other macroeconomic factors), the benefit amount increases proportionately with the increase in salary.

Discount rate fluctuation

The plan labilities are calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to market vields (at the statement of financial position date) on
government bond. Accordingly, there is a risk that any increase or decrease in government bond yields will decrease or increase plan liabilities.

Withdrawal risk

The risk that the actual withdrawal experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability. The significance of the withdrawal risk varies with
the age, service and entitled benefits of the beneficary.

Mortality risk

The risk that the actual mortality experience is differant than the assumed mortality. This effect is more pronounced in schemes where the age and
service distribution iz on the higher side.
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25.6 Charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales - production of bars
Cost of sales — production of billets
Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

25.7 Sensitivity analysis

Present value of defined beneft obligations

Prasent value of defined benefit obligations

Note 2025 2024
s [Rupees in ‘000" ===
330 16,859 33,701
3322 24,211 26,725
341 12,069 23,626
35.1 34,360 37,331
87,499 121,383
2025
Discount rate Salary increase
+ 100 bps =100 bps +100bps - 100 bps
{Rupees in 000}
(275,886) 335,396 3135861  [275011)
2024
Discount rate Salary increase
+ 100 bps - 100 bps +100bps - 100 bps

(Rupees in *000) s seemseemsam e msanaes

(467 551) 563,504 564,275 (466,130}

258 Asof June 30, 2025, atotal of 304 employees (2024: 571 ) have been covered under the above scheme.

25.9 As per the recommendation of the actuary, the charge for the year ending June 30, 2026 amounts to Rz 69,291 million.

Balance as at July 01

Additions during the year
Accretion of interest

Payments made during the year
Termination

Balance as at June 30

Current portion

26.1  Maturity analysis

Gross lease llabilities - minimum lease payments:
Mot later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

Future finance charge
Present value of finance lease liabilities

Mote 2025 2024
—-- [Rupees in ‘000°) -
140,128 156,326
8 121,863 4,654
18 21,376 17,196
43,615) (38,048
{133,286)
106,466 140,128
(18,249) [34.310)
83217 ) 105,818
37,833 59,720
109,137 91,330
- 35,789
146,970 186,639
140,504) {46,710
106,466 140,128

26.2 The lease liabilities were recognized against right of use asset . The Company discounted the lease payments using incremental borrowing rate

ranging from 13% to 22% (2024 : 8% to 23%).

Balance as at July 01
Amortised during the year
Balance as at June 30

Current portion
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MNote 2025 2024
= [Rupees in 000" ) =
369,161 408,725
{32,833 [39,564)
336,328 369,181
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FrA

As -aforementioned in notes 21.2 to 21.4, the Government grant has been recorded as per the provisions of 145-20 due to the difference betwean
coupon and effective interest rates of the aforementioned financial liabilities,

i ) | AY LRI Note 2025 2024
=== [Rupees in '000°) ——

Creditors:
- Goods 768,689 1,295,599
= Services 72,129 30,330
Accrued liabilities 28.1 365,119 511,625
Workers' Welfare Fund 28.2 128,025 128,025
Levy 222,874 488,193
Withholding tax payable 21,164 20,781
1,578,000 2,474,553

This includes pravisions with respect to infrastructure cess amounting to Rs. 188.775 million (2024: Rs. 188.775 million) and tariff for 55GC Hs. 38227
million (2024: s 38.227 million).

This represents lability pertaining to inancial vears ended June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2018, The amount is still outstanding as the matter is pending
adjudication at the Honorable High Court of Sindh (HCS) due to the 18th amendment in the Constitution of Pakistan.

Note 2025 2024
—-- [Rupees in '000') ——
Leng term financing 588,690 174,025
Shart term borrowings 3,925,250 1,251,924
Murabaha 115,492 11,708
4,629,432 1,457,657
Redated party 18,925 I )
4,648,357 1457718
Conventional moede
Cash finance ENV R 770,155 391,487
Finance against trust receipts 0.2 9,208,247 7.903,905
Running finance 0.3 2,273,704 2,435,960
Short term loan 304 - 151,632
12,258,106 11,382,984
Islamic mode
Running finance i3 399,452 B12,008
Murabaha 305 343,918 544,644
Istisma 304 4,791,783 5,122,321
5,535,153 6,478,973
30.7 17,793,259 1?,261_9§EP

This represants working capital facilities availed from various conventional banks carrying markup/ profit of 1 month KIBOR plus 1% to 1.25% per
annum {2024: 1 month KIBOR + 1% per annum),

This represents working capital facilities availed from various conventional banks carrying markup/profit ranging from 6 month KIBOR plus 0.75% to
3 month KIBOR plus 1.5% per annum (2024: & month KIBOR plus 0.75% to 3 manth KIBOR plus 1.5% per annum ).

This represents working capital facilities availed from varicus [slamic banks carrying profit ranging from 1 month KIBOR plus 0.85% to 3 month KIBOR
plus 1.50% per annum (2024: 1 month KIBOR plus 0.85% to 3 month KIBOR plus 1.50% per annum).

This represents working capital facilities availed from various conventional banks carrying markup/profit ranging from 3 month KIBOR plus 1.25% per
annum {2024: 3 month KIBOR plus 1.25% per annum).

These represent Murabaha facilities amounting to Rs. 4,021 million (2024: Rs. 4,021 million million) obtained from various islamic banks for purchaze
of raw material. These carry profit at the rates ranging from relevant & month KIBOR plus 0.75% to 1% per annum (2024: 6 month KIBOR plus 0.75%

to 1% per annumy).

This represents working capital facilities availed from various Islamic banks carrying profit ranging from & month KIBOR plus 0.75% to 1.15% per
annum {2024: & month KIBOR plus 0.75% to 1.15% per annum).
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As at june 30, 2025, the Company has unutilized facilities for short term borrowings from Islamic and conventional banks amouwnting to Nil (2024: Rs.
853 million and Rs. 2,753 million} respectively. These facilities are secured by way of joint hypothecation charge over present and future current assets
of the Company with 25% margin.

The above faclities are secured by way of joint hypothecation charge over present and future current assets of the Company with 25% margin.

Contingencies

Sales tax

31.1.1 During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue {DCIR), Large Taxpayers’ Unit (LTU), Karachi passed an order on the

contention that the Company had violated the provisions of Rule 58H of Chapter Xl of the Sales Tax Special Procedure Rules, 2007 (the Rules) and
raised an alleged demand of Bs. 2,013.620 million for the tax pericds from July 2013 to December 2014, The Company filed an appeal against the
order before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue {ATIR) and had secured interim stay from the Honorable Sindh High Court {HCS),

Dwring the year ended June 30, 2018, the ATIR has decided the case in favour of the Company. During the year ended June 30, 2020, the Federal Board
of Revenue filed referance application before HCS against ATIR's order. Although the case is still pending adjudication, the Company based on the
mierit of the case and as per the advice of the legal advisor expects a favourable outcome on this matter and accordingly, no provision has been made
in these inancial statements.

31.1.2 The Federal Board of Revenue issued Sales Tax General Order (STGO) No.18 of 2006 on March 14, 2017 and 5TGO No.119/2017 on August 18, 2017,

wheraby the procedure for payments and claiming adjustments of advance sales tax was amended. Before the STGOs, sales tax was being paid by the
Company on the basis of Aules 5B(H) of the Rules. The Company has challenged both the STGOs before HCS restraining the tax department to
caloulate the sales tax Hability on the basis of the said STGOs and requesting continuation of the procedure of payment and adjustment of advance
tax on the basis of the Rules. HCS granted stay against both the said STGOs with the direction that impugned 5TGOs shall rermain suspended and the
Company shall be entitled for claiming adjustment of advance sales tax on the basis of the Rules. The financial exposure of the Company up to June
30, 2025 is Bs, 1,166.03 million {2024: Rs. 1,166.02 million). The management based on a legal advice is confident that the outcome will be in favour
of the Company. Accordingly, na provision has been made in these financial statements,

31.1.3 During the year ended June 30, 2020, the DCIR, LTU, Karachi izsued show-cause notice under Section 11(2) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 for alleged

non-charging of further tax on the supplies made to unregistered persons and raised an alleged demand of Rs, 305 million for the tax periods from
July 2015 to Juree 2017, The Company had filed a Constitutional Petition before HCS which issued an interim order, restraining any coercive action
against the Company. The stay will remain in field until further directions from HCS, The management, based on legal advice, is confident that the
eventual outcome will be in favour of the Company. Accordingly, no provision has been made in this respect in these financial statements.

31.1.4 During the year ended June 30, 2021, the DCIR, LTU Karachi issued show-cause notice under Section 11(2) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990, for alleged

non-charging of further tax on the supplies made to unregistered and raised an alleged demand of Rs. 1.723 billion by disallowing various expenses
for the tax pericds July 2084 to June 2020. The Company had filed a constitutional petition before the HCS which issued an interim order dated
December 22, 2020, restraining any coercive action against the Company. Subsequenitly, the HCS dimissed the petition and remanded back the case
to DCIR The management based on the legal advice, is confident that the eventual outcome will be in favour of the Company. Accordingly, ne
provision has been made in this respect in these inancial statemerits,

31.1.5 During the year ended June 30, 2025, the Deputy Commissioner inland Revenue {DCIR), Large Taxpayers' Office (LTO), Karachi passed an order under

section 11E of the Sales Tax Act and raised an alleged demand of Rs.1.375 billion on the contention that the difference in closing stock as per
Annexure J and closing stock as per FBR stock count constitutes sales which have not been accounted for by the Compnay .The Company is currently
coentesting the said order at the ATIR. Although the case is still pending adjudication, the Company, based an the merits of the case and as per the
opinion of its tax advisor, expects a favorable cuteome. Accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial statements.

31.1.6 During the year ended June 30, 2025, the Deputy Commissioner inland Revenue {DCIR), Large Taxpayers' Office (LTO), Karachi passed an order under

section 11E of the Sales Tax Act and raized an alleged demand of Re.54.7 millicn on the contention that the Company that have made inadmissible
input tax adjustment on account of goods and services having no direct relevance with taxable activity of the Company, the Company is currently
contesting the said order at the ATIR. Although, the case is still pending adjudication, the Company, based on the merits of the case and as per the
opinion of its tax advisor, expects a favorable cuteome. Accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial statements.

31.1.7 During the year ended June 30, 2025, the Deputy Commissioner Sindh Revenue Board (DCSAB) issued a show cause notice under section 43 and 47

of the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 and raised an alleged demand of As.224 million for short witholding of Sindh Sales tax. Subsequently, the
DCSAB issued an assessment arder . An appeal before Commissioner Sindh Revenue Board had been filed. Although, the case is still pending
adjudication, subsequerntly the Company, based on the merits of the case and as per the opinion of its tax advisor, expects a favorable sutcome.
Accordingly, no provision has been made in these inancial statements.
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Income tax

31.1.8 During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR), Large Tazpayer Unit (LTU}, Karachi passed an Order under
section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance)] and raised an alleged demand of Rs. 72.24 million by disaliowing various
expenses for the tax year 2015. The Company is currently contesting the said order at the Appellata Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR). Although the case
ie still pending adjudication, the Company, based on the merits of the caze and as per the opinion of its tax advisor, expects a favorable outcome.
Accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial staternents.

31.1.9 During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR), Large Tazpayer Unit (LTU}, Karachi passed an Order under
section 122{54) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and raised an alleged demand of Rs. 150.207 million for the tax year 2017, The Company filed an
appeal against the Order at the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) - [CIR-{Appeals)) and had secured an interim stay from the CIR (Appeals)
under Section 140 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Although the case is still pending adjudication, the Company based on the merits of the case
and as per the advice of the tax advisor expects a favorable outcome on this matter and accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial
statements.

31.1.18 During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) issued show-cause notice dated April 05, 2022 under
Section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby he had ralsed certain gueries refating to apportionment of commaon expenses, tax credit
under Section 65E and admissibility of provisions relating to return filed for tax year 2021 . In response, the Company filed explanation along-with
documentary evidence. Subseguent to the year end, ACIR issued an order under Section 122(54) of the Ordinance whereby tax demand of Rs.196.061
miillion has been raised. The Company is currently contesting the said order at the ATIR. Although the case is still pending adjudication, the Company,
based on the merits of the case and as per the opinion of its tax advisor, expects a favorable cutcome, Accordingly, no provision has been made in
these financial statements.

31.2 Commitments 2025 2024
— [Rupees in '000") -
31.2.1 Qutstanding letters of credit
- Material 157,140 2883937
- Capital expenditure - 34 BED
157,140 2,918,797
Qutstanding letters of guarantee 484,856 4B7.B56

31.2.2 Commitments for rentals payable under ljarah contracts in respect of vehicles with Islamic banks are as follows:

Mot later than one year - 25,243
Mote 2025 2024
== [Rupees in '000") -

Local

Gross sales 18,722,610 45 667 530

Less: sales tax (2,889,712} (7,112,742

Less: trade discounts {27,247) (49.481)
15,805,651 38,505,307

Export sales 50.1.1 276,963 270,430
16,082,614 38775737

32.1 FRevenue recognized during the year from contract liabilities as at the beginning of the year amounted to Bs. 335.727 million (2024: Rs. 411313

miillion).

Note 2025 2024

—-[Rupeas in "000") --—
Manufactured stock
Bars EER 15,871,556 36,185,691
Billets - 1,158
Export 33.2.1 135,052 187 422
16,006,608 36,374,311
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MNote
33.1 Cost of 5ales - Manufactured stock

Work in progress

Balance as at July 01 11
Cost of billets manufactured internally 3332
Billets sold

Balance as at June 30 11

Manufacturing overheads

Stores and spares consumed

Salaries, wages and other benefits 33.11
Cartage and transport

Fuel, power and water

Depreciation 718827
ljarah rentals

Repairs and maintenance

Insurance

Fent, rates and taxes

Consultancy charges

Vehicle running expense

Conveyance and travelling

Canteen expenses
Others

Cost of goods manufactured
Cost of bars used for own use

Finished goods
Opening stock 11
Closing stock 11

33.1.1 This includes Rs. 15853 million (2024: Rs. 33.701 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

33.2 Cost of billets manufactured internally

Raw material consumed A |
Stores and spares consumed

Salaries, wages and other benefits 3322
Depreciation TIB&2T

Store and spare written off
Fuel and power
Consultancy charges
Cartage

Repairs and maintenance
Rent, rates and taxes
Insurance

Conveyance and travelling
Canteen expenses

Vehicle running expense
Others
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2025

== (Rupees in '000") -

253,890 967,718
13,763,401 11,416,678
- {1.198)
(263,334) (253,890)
13,753,957 32,129,308
72,094 204,322
193,537 494,008
39,195 330,013
481,349 1,715,947
529,943 505,876

- 254

4,098 27,628
7,317 3,642

- 454

- 289

14,105 24,751
27,775 37,258
3,751 27,525
25,015 36,583
1,298,180 3,408,550
15,152,137 35,537,858
- (12,021}
15,152,137 35,525,837
2,067,571 2,737 425
11,248,152) (2,067.571)
718,419 659,854
15,871,556 36,185,691
8,792,427 23,399,734
702,096 1,922,656
523,413 551,341
551,637 373,840
2,478 2,506
2,014,143 4944124
154 260
26,599 40,419
55,140 30,928

236 715

3,504 6,000
42,563 38,635
28,414 34,5990
17,404 23,020
3,193 7,206
13,763,401 31,416,678
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33.2.1 Raw Material Consumed MNote
Balance as at July 01, 11
Purchases

Less: Cost of export
Less: Balance as at June 30, 11

33.2.2 This includes As. 24.211 million (2024: Rs,26.725 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

351

35.2

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 34.1

Carriage and transport
Advertisement and sales promotion

Depreciation 7.1.8
Depreciation on right of use asset 8.1
Utilities

Bundling and special order charges
Rent, rates and taxes

Vehicle running expense

Travelling and conveyance

Packing material

Repair and maintenance
Entertainment

Others

This includes Rs. 12.069 million (2024: Rs. 23,626 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 35.1
Depreciation 7.1.8
Depreciation on right of use asset 8.1
Amaortisation 9

Travelling and conveyance
Legal and professional charges
Research expenses

Vehicles running expenses
Security guard expenses
Insurance

Compuber consumablas

Fent, rates and taxes
Communication charges
Printing and stationery
Utilitles

Auditor's rermuneration 352
Repairs and maintenance
ljarah rentals

Mhers

This includes Rs. 34360 million (2024: Rs. 37.331 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
Auditor's remuneration
Annual audit fee

Review of half vearly financial statements and ather certifications
Dut of pocket expenses

2025 2024
=== [Rupees in "000") -
4,196,151 1,911,763
8,131,569 25,871,544
12,327,720 27,783,307
(135,052) (1B7,422)
(2,400,241) 14,196,151)
9,792,427 23,395,734
145,974 271,787
161,392 468,191
16,871 72,837
63,947 60,867
12,505 17,198
17,521 18,218
54,947 T6,110
2,045 2,085
11,562 21,999
2,100 25,240
10,956 31,605
36,802 35,767
855 7,032
8,404 5612
546,321 1,114,552
357,315 521,227
48,385 57,801
20,111 22,945
1,824 3413
5578 11,253
85,894 28,463
- 3,391
34,310 46,442
2,455 3,822
2,803 3,406
15,888 35,577
15,785 1,570
9,766 9,885
2,929 2,757
17,600 21,485
5,023 5,023
48,412 43,955
. 1,864
43,316 18,111
737,494 842,398
2,415 2415
1,155 1,155
1,453 1,453
5,022 5,023
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2025 2024
L hote = (Rupees in "000°) -
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 717 - 74,031
Exchange loss 600 55,386
Donations 6.1 4,656 51,073
Detention charges 54,679 18,724
Impairment loss 7 286,085
Overhead expenses 36.2 189,037 .
535,057 199,214
Danations include the following donees ta whom donations exceed 10% of total donation or Rs.1 million whichewver is higher:
Hunar Foundation - 1,524
Khama Ghar 738 2.035
Ladies Industrial Home 820
Mamal University - 4,000
The Citizen Foundation - 4,200
Mistah Quddoos 489 1,071
[zhar Ali Khan 600
Jehangir Shah 600 ]
3,247 12,830

36.1.1 Recipients of donations do not include any denee in which any director or his spouse had any interest except for denation paid to Hunar Foundation
amounting to Rs, Nil {2024 Rs, 1.52 million). Further, Mr. Abbas Akberali is also a director in Hunar Foundation.

36.2 These represents following overhead expense related to production plant located at Shershah which remained idle during the year.

Salarles, allowances and other benefits
Carriage and transpart

Utilitles

Depreciation

Repair and maintenance

Insurance

Vehicles running expenses
Conveyance and travelling

Other

Income from financial assets
Profit on saving accounts
Profit on term depasit reciepts

Income from non-financial assets
Gain on sale of property, plant and eguipment
Galn on settlement of trade debts
Scrap sales
Gain on termination of lease

Markup / interest

Leng term financing

Short term barrowings

Murabaha

Loan from related parties

Lease labilities

Gas Infrastructure development cess

Bank charges
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43,567
254
29,443
103,624
3,582 .
772
83s
8
6,947
189,037
172,197 105
1,196 1,720
173,393 1,825
7.7 361,842
18 7,000 .
4,282 1,331
46,283
592,800 3,156
623,302 973,087
3,336,610 3,432,739
78,215 252,541
18,864 51,626
26 21,376 17,196
49 4,231
4,078,426 4731820
21,571 40,596
4,009,997 4,772,416




FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2025

2025 2024
Mote
—=-[Rupees in '000") -
Minimum tax 381 220,104 485,058
Final tax levy 39.2 2,770 3,135
222,874 488,193

39.1 This represents portion of minimum tax paid under section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance (ITO, 2001}, representing levy in terms of requirements of
IFRIC 21185 37.

39.2  Asat June 30, 2025, the Company has levy amounting to Rs. 2,770 million. The Company based on the princple of conservatism and being prudent
has provided for these levies as an expense in the financial year due to anticipating low profitability in the near term. However, in the future, if

possibility arises, the same will be adjusted accordingly with tax Hability,

39.3 The provision of tax liability for the year contains minimum tax at 1.25% of the net turnaver for the year and final tax regime at 1% of export proceeds.

Current tax - .
Defarred tax (income) / expense (1,574,844) 715,327
(1,574,844) ' 715327
Tax reconciliation ) N
Loss before tax (5,386,203) 15.391,396)
Applicable tax rate 29% 29%
Tax at applicable tax rate (1,561,999) {1,563,505)
Tax effect taxable at reduce rate {39,735 (23,243)
Change in recognized deductible temporary differences due to
unavailability of future taxable profit and others 26,890 2,302,075
(1,574,844) 715,327

40.1 The return of income for the tax yvear 2024 has been filed by the Comparny. The said return, as per the provisions of Section 120 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 has been deermed to be an assessment order passed by the Commissioner of Inland Revenue.

40.2 Reconciliation of current tax charge as per tax laws for the year, with current tax recognised in the statement of profit or loss, |5 as follows:

Income tax under 145 12 - .
Income tax levy under IFRIC 21/1A5 37 222,874 458,193

Current tax liability as per income Tax Ordinance 222,874 488,193
Met Lass for the year (3,811,358 16,106,723)
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 297,011,427 297,011,427
sssemeass (RUPEES) ommmsnsan
Basic and diluted loss par share {12.83) [20.56]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2025

42 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Naote ~——— (Rupees in*000) ———

Managerial remuneration 10,830 6,500 123,366 141,096
Housing allowance 4,874 3,105 54,286 62,265
Utilities & comwevance 4,874 3,105 53,688 61,667
Medical 1,083 690 12,317 14,090
Giratuity 1,309 834 14,804 16,947
Bonus - - 400 400
Others 423 - - 33,189 13,189

22,970 14,634 292,050 329,654
Mumber 1 1 58 60

Note o (Rupeas in ‘)

Managerial remuneration 17,100 6,900 186,920 210920
Housing allowance 7585 3105 80,083 90,883
Utilities & conveyance 7595 3105 75,628 #6428
Medical 1710 &30 18,298 20,698
Gratuity 2065 B34 22250 25150
Bonus - . 1736 1736
Others 413 : : 97,306 97,306

5266 14,634 482,221 533,121
Mummber 1 1 71 73

421 The Chief Executive and the Chairman are provided with free use of Company maintained cars and club memberships with certain reimbursements
pertaining to business purposes in accordance with their entitlements. Certain executives are also provided with the Company maintained cars as
per entitlement.

42.2 Theaggregate amount paid to the six Mon-Executive Directars (2024: six Non-Executive Directors) as a fee for attending the meetings is As. 3.4 million
{2024: Rs. 4 milllon).

42.3 Other includes payment against car benefit allowance, drivers' salaries, maobile allowance, achievement of KPI, career merit points and gratuity
contribution ete.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note e (Riipees in ‘000'] -
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before taxation {5,386,203) 15,391.396)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation - owned fixed assets 718 1,330,368 1,037,545
Depreciation - right-of-use asset 8.1 32,616 40,147
Amaortization q 1.824 3413
Allowance for expected credit loss 12.1 (86,734} 379,205
Bad debts written off 121 - (3.997)
Unrealized exchange loss / {gain) 580 {19,109)
Provision for gratuity 252 87,459 121,382
{Gain) / loss on disposal of owned fixed assets 7.7 {361,842) 74,031
Impairment loss 36 286,085 .
Gain on settelement of trade debts 37 {7.000) .
Amortization of government grant 27 {32,833 [39,564)
Gain on disposal of right of use assets 37 {46,283) .
Finance costs 38 4,078,621 4,755,220
Finance east on leases 38 21,376 17,196
Operating profit before working capital changes {81,926) 974477
{Increase) | decrease in current assets:
Stares and spares 458,104 155,736
Stock-in-trade 3,150,289 [69.B77)
Trade debts 812,202 2248233
Leans and advances 22,608 (14.627)
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 12,609 (3.268)
Other receivables 340,293 (777.397)
{Decrease) / increase in current liabilities:
Trade and other payables {411,669) {2,309,026)
Contract liabilities {101.579) [41.822)
Cash generated from operations 4,200,931 156,329
Cash and bank balances 17 3,905,295 195,444
Running finance 30 {2,679,156) 13,247.968)
1,226,139 13.052.524)
{Rupees in"000°)
Balance as at July 1, 2024 4002484 140,128 144613989 124,922 5274 18.BBG,7I7
Rieceived during the year : . 651,745 F . 651,746
Addition of lease Babilities E 7452 - - - TA82
Paid during the year {178,380} (41,154} . . {15} {219.562)
Reversal of long term loan 151,632 . [151.632) - - .
Balance as at June 30, 2025 3975727 106,466 15114103 124,922 5255 19326473

*The balance of short term berrowing in the statement of financial position includes the balance of running finance which is the part of cash and cash
equivalents.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2025

Thie Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks Le. market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and operational risk. The Company's overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's
financial performance. The Company's nsk management function continues to monitor the developing situation and proactively manage any risk
arising thereof.

The Board of Diractors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:
Market risk
Market rizk is the risk that the value of the financial nstrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates or

the price risk due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand
of sacurities and liguidity in the market The Company £ exposed to interest rabe risk and currency rishk.

46.1.1 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in the market Interest
rates. The Company interest rate risk arises from long-term financing, shori-term barrowings, murabaha, loan from related party, lease liabilities and
term deposit receipts having floating rates. Change in benchmark interest rate by 1% may have a positive or negative impact of approximately Rs 219
milllion (2024: Rs. 220 million) in statement of profit or loss, The analysis is made based on the assumption that all other variables remain constant.

46.1.2 Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. It
miainly arizas where receivables and payables exist due to transactions in foreign currency. The Company's exposiire to the risk of changes in foreign
exchange rates relate primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expenses are denominated in a different currency from the
Company's functional currencyl.

2025 2024
weeemees (Rupees in 000 —--—m
us Dollar Us Dollar
Trade and other paybles 2,038 3,896
[Rupees) ==
The following significant exchange rates have been applied at the reporting dates: 284.1 2788

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in the US Dollar and Euro exchange rate, with all other variables
held constant, of the Company's loss before taxation:

Change in Effect on loss
Dollar rate (%) before tax
June 30, 2025 +10 58
10 ) (58)_
June 30, 2024 +10 109
10 {109)

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit / boss for the year and assets and liabilities of the Company,
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities or have
similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, pelitical or
other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative s2nsitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular
industry.

The Company seeks to minimize the credit risk exposure through having exposures only to customers considered credit worthy and obtaining
securities where applicable. The carrying amount of inancial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2025

2015 2024

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows: Mote SR |- TR 1] ) [—
Investments 15 14,389 14,289
Trade debts 12 1,564,494 2,345,962
Security deposits 0 &4 152,861 178614
Other receivables 16 1,445 E074
Bank balances 17 3,865,696 134,837

5,598,885 2685776

46.2.1 Credit quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings or to historical
information about counterparty default rates as shown below:

Days past due
2025 Total Current 1-900ays  91-180Days  Over180Days
{Rupeess in"00F)
Expected credit loss rate 27.26% 0.49% 4.55% 23.85% 84.37%
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at default 2,150,682 884,961 548,576 79,574 637,571
Expected credit loss 586,188 4367 24,956 18,975 537820
o Total Curent 1-9Days  91-180Days  Over180Days
(Rupees in 000
Expected credit loss rate 22.26% 019% 1.46% 17590% 72.29%
Estimiated total gross
carrying amount at default 3022884 L2577 T37.866 344,860 827,572
Expected credit loss 672922 2,122 10807 61,723 593,270
Bank balances Mote 2025 2024
=== [Rupees in'000°) —-
Ratings
Al 3,835,981 126633
A-1 1,841 3450
A2 - 946
A-3 4,060 3808
Unrated 23,814 -
17 3,865,696 134,837
Inwestments
Ratings
Al 14,28% 14,289
Ab4 100 .
15 14,389 14,289

46.3 Liquidity risk
Ligquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in raising funds to meet commitments associated with the financial instruments.
The managemant is closely monitoring the Company's liquidity and cash flow position through its treasury function and ensures availability of funds
by maintaining credit facilities available from financial institutions. The liguidity management also involves monitoring of liquidity ratios and
maintaining debt financing plans.

Table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2025

Lessthan o1z o5 Morethan Toml
w0 ‘3months. Monehe Years e '
(Rupees in 000
Financal liabilities
Interest bearing
Current porton of long term finandng 3,976,012 - - - 3,976,012
Loan from related parties - - 124,522 - 124522
Long-term lease liabilities 3999 14,268 88,199 - 106,456
Shorl-term barrowings 17,793,260 - - - 17,793,260
Trade and ather payables 1,333,962 - - - 1,333,962
Unclaimed dividend 5155 - - - 5.255
Accrued mark-up 4,648,357 . - - 4,648,357
27,760,845 14,268 213171 2 27,988,234
Less than 3012 to5  Morethan :
e 3months. Months Years. Syears o
[Rupees in ‘000
Finandal liabilities
Interest bearing
Long-term financing 4,002484 . - - 4,002,484
Loan from related parties - - 124,922 - 124,922
Long-term lease liabilities 7,506 26,804 105,818 : 140,128
Short-term borrowings 13,181,019 4,680,938 - - 17,861,957
Mon-interest bearing
Trade and ather payvables 1,965,579 B - - 1,965 579
Unelaimed dividend 5274 . - - 5274
Acernased mark-up 1457718 B - - 1,457,718
20,619,579 4,707,742 230,740 : 25,558,062
Capital risk management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
adequate returns te shareholders and to benefit other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The
Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to itin the light of changes in economic conditions.In order to maintain or adjust the
capilal structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The capital structure of the Company consist of net debt consistent with other companies in the industry, the Company monitors the capital on the
basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Met debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and bank
balances with lenders. Total capital is calculated as sum of equity shown in statement of financial position and met debt. During the year, the
Company's strategy was to minimize leveraged gearing. The Company finances its expansion projects through borrowings and management of its
working capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of inance to minimize risk. As of the date of statement of
financial position, the Company was financed through equity and debt.
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note e (Riipees in ‘000'] -

Gearing ratio

Long term financing 21 3,975,727 4,002 484
Trade and other payables 28 1,578,000 2,474,553
Contract liabilities 335,726 437305
Lease |iabilities 26 106,466 140,128
Accrued mark-up 29 4,648,357 1,457,718
Short-term borrowings 30 17,793,259 17,861,957
Cash and bank balances 17 (3,905,295) {195,444)
Met debt 24,532,240 26,178,701
Share capital 19 1,970,114 I 2970,114
Reserves {1,433,514) 2,037,724
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 20 8,912,968 9.218,163
Total equity 10,449,568 14,226,001
Equity and net debt 34,981,808 40,404,702

- Jom T BSH

46.5 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderty transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

The earrying values of all inancial assets and kabilities reflacted in the financial statements approximate fair values,

The following table shows assets recognized at fair value, analyzed between those whose fair value s based on:

Level 1; Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or llabilities;

Level 2: Those involving Inpaits other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

. Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based onobservable market data.
46.6 Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values
{a} Currently, no assats are classified in level 1.
(b} Assets included in feve! 2 comprise of property, plant and equipment.
(€] Currently, no assets are classified in level 3.

46.8.1 There wera no transfers amongst the levels durinig the year.

2025
Leved 1 Leval 2 Level 3 Tatal
[Rupees in"000)
Property, plant and equipment - 25,261,987 - 25,263,987
2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Tatal
[Rupees in"000)
Property, plant and equipment - 27,327 689 . 273XTAES
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2025

47.1 Financial assets MNote 2025 2024
At amortised cost PR 0 o
Investment 15 14,389 14,289
Trade debts 12 1,564,494 2,349 962
Security deposits 100& 14 152,861 178614
Other receivables 16 1,445 8074
Cash and bank balances 17 3,905,295 195,444

47.2 Financial liabilities

At amortised cost

Current portion af long term financing 21 4,002,484 4,002,484
Loan from related parties 23 124,922 124,922
Lease liabilities 26 106,466 140,128
Trade payable 28 1,333,962 1,965,579
Interest / mark up accrued 25 4,648,357 1457718
Short term borrowing 30 17,793,259 17,861,957

5,255 5274

Related parties comprise of associated companies, directors and key management persannel of the Company. Details of transactions with related
parties during the year, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follaws:

2025 2024
Mame of related party Relationship Transactions during the year === [Rupees in "000") ===
Transaction with directors
Mr. Abbas Akberali Director Payment of interest to related party - 17,485
Mr. Hadi Akcbesali Directar Payment of interest to related party - 25,506
M. Abbas Akberali Directar Principal Repayment to related party - 83333
Mr. Hadi Akcberali Directar Principal Repayrment to related party - 62,196
Mr. Hadi Akberali Director Loan received from related party - 142118
Mr. Abbas Akberali Directar Sale of bars - 3036
Transactions with associates
Habsiob Bakenies Associate Ertertainment expensea 910 975
Hobnob Bakeries Associate Sale of fixed avets 2,600
Hunar Faundation Associate Danation - 1524
Transactions with shareholder
Ms. Salsabil Akberali Sharehalder Payment of rent and security deposit of rented office 21,299 G447

48.1.1 Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have arrangement / agreement in place:

1 Pararrount Steel Company Associate | common directorship ) .

2 Hobnoh Bakeries Azsociate (comimon directorship)

3 Amreli Holding (Pvt) Ltd Assadiate (common directorship)

4 Hi-Tech Special Economic Zone (Pyt] Ltd Assodate [common directorship)

5 The Hunar Foundation Assodate [commen directorship)

& Amreli Global Enterprises | Private ) Limited Assodate [common directorship) -

7 Amreli Foundation Associate (common dectorship) .

8 Ms. Salsabil Akberali Shareholder 042%

9 r. Hadi Akberali Dérector 12705

2025 2024

Year end balances - (Rupees in ‘000") —-
Loan fram Mr. Hadi Akberali 124,922 124,922
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2025

48.1.2 None of the key management personnel had any arrangements with the Company other than the employment contract.

48.1.3 All the transactions with related parties are entered in accordance with the terms of agreement as approved by Board of Directors of the Company.

2025 2024

49.1 Billets — (Metric Ton) -—

Plant - name plate capacity 600,000 600,000

Avallable capacity 492,000 = 492,000

Actual production 70,515 2 167,043
49.2 Bars

Plant - name plate capacity 605,000 605,000

Avallable capacity 605,000 5 605,000

Actual production 67,251 168,538

49.3 The variance in production is attributable to the unavailability of working capital due to limitations caused by ongoing restructuring which also
resulted in termporary shutdown of Shershah rolling mill (refer note 2.

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment. Total sales of the Company relating to customers in
Pakistan were 38 28% during the year ended June 30, 2025 (June 30, 2024 39.30%).

All non=current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2025 and 2024 are located in Pakistan.

Revenue from export sales represents 1.7% {(June 30, 2024: 0.7% } of the total net revenue of the Company.

Sales to bwenty major customers of the Company are around 13% during the year ended June 30, 2025 (June 30, 2024: 15%),
50.1 Geographical information

The Company’s gross revenue from external custormers by geographical location is detailed below:

MNote 2025 2024

- [Rupees in ‘000°) -
Domestic sales 32 18,722,610 45,667,530
Expart sales 12 276,963 270,430
18,999,573 45,937,960

50.1.1 Region wise export sales are as under:
Indenesia 42,456 132,584
China 185,058 137,844
Thailand 49,449 .

276,963 270,430

The total number of employees and average number of employees at year end and during the year respectively are as follows:

L1 118211+ 11§ R
Total number of employees’ as at June 30 345 G62
Average number of employees’during the year 394 727
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUME 30, 2025

2025 2024
= [Rupees in 000" ) =

The total number of employees and average number of employees at year end and during the year respectively are as follows:
Statement of Financial Position

Shariah complaint

Leng-tarm borrowing 1,494,910 1,658,138
Short-term borrowing 5,535,154 6,478,974
Accrued profit 1,486,372 508,742
Imvestment 14,289 14,289
Bank balances 1,756 104,031

Mon-5hariah complaint
Accrued interest 3,161,985 948,977

Statement of comprehensive income

Shariah complaint income

Revenue earned business 16,082,614 38,775,737
Prafit earmed from banks 1.530 1,825
Gain on disposal of property, plant & eguipment 361,842

Scrap sales 4,282 1,330

Mon-5hariah complaint income
Profit earmed from banks 171,863
Gain on termination of lease 46,283 ]

Relationship with Sharlah-compliant financial institutions

Islamic banks
The Company has facilities with Islamic Banks for short-term and long-term amounting to Rs. 7,700 million and As. 2,430 million, respectively.

Takaful Operator
The Company has Takaful relationship with Salaam Takaful Limited.

Subsequent to the reporting date, the Board of Directors of the Company, in itz meeting held on September 24,2025, approved the rescheduling and
restructuring of the Company's overall financing facilities aggregating up to PKR 22.6 billion, availed from various banks and financial institutions (tha
"Fimanciers") and conversion of short term loan of As. 11 billion into long term facilities {conventional and lslamic). The Board also approved the terms
sheet, the Master Restructuring Agreement (MBA), the Master Collection Agreement, and related ancillary documentation that is being agreed upon
between the Company and the Financiers.

54.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.

54.2 Corresponding figures have been reclassified wherever necessary to reflect more appropriate presentation of events and transactions for the
purpose of comparison and better presentation.

These financial staterments wera authorized for issue on 24 Septembeer 2025 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Chief Executive Officer Director Chle.f Financial Officer
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E-DIVIDEND MANDATE FORM

Mandatory Credit of Dividend into Bank Account

To: Date;

The undersigned being member of AMRELI STEELS LIMITED (the Company), hereby authorize the Company that all my cash dividend amounts declared
by the Company, from time to time, be credited into the bank account as per following details:

Mame of the shareholder

Folio Mo. / CDC Participants 1D & Sub Acc, No/CDC 1AS Account

CMIZ/NICOP No. [Please attach copy)

Fassport No.[in case of Foreign Shareholder] (Please attach copy)

Landline Phome No.

Cellphone Mo,

Email Address.

Title of Bank Account

Bank Account Number

Bank's Name

Branch Mame and Address

International Bank Account Mumber (IBAN) {24 digit)
b y

Itis stated that the above mentioned information s correct that | will intimate the change in the above mentioned information to the Company and the
concermed Share Registrar as soon as these oceur,

Signature of the member/shareholder
(Flease affix company stamp in case of corporate entity}

MNOTE:
1. Please provide complete IBAN after consultation with your bank branch. in case of any error or omission in IBAN, the Company will
ot be held responsible in any manner for any loss or delay in your cash dividend payment.
2 In case of physical shares, a duly filled-in e-Dividend Mandate Form shall be submitted with the Company’s Share Registrar. While for

shares held in COC, E-Dividend Mandate Form shall be submitted directly to member's broker/participant/CDC as required by the
Central Depository Compary of Pakistan Limited vide its Circular No. 16 of 2017 issued on 31 August 2017,
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The Company Secetary

Amreli Steels Limited
A-18, 5..TE, Karachi.
e SiWo —oo JResidentof ____ being members) of
Armreli Steeds Limited (the Companyl, holding__ ordinary shares as per Registered Folio Mo,/ COC PaticpantliDNa. ____and
SubAccountMo.  hersbyappoint e Al __as my / our proxgy to attend, act and vote onmy

/ our behalf at the 415t Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 2Bth day of Octeber 2025 and at amy adpourmment thereof,

Signedthis___ dayof 2025
Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Shareholder
WITNESS:
-1} -2
Signature: _ _ _ __ Sagreatuine: R _ _
Marmie i i Narne:
CMiC/PassportMo. CNIC/ Passport Mo
Address S Address:
NOTE:

L The proy form, duly completed and signed, must be recenved at the Registered Office of the Compary, A-18, SLTE Karachi, not less than 48 hours

bedfore the time of holding the meeting.
2 All rmemibers are entithed to attend and vote at the Meeting.
3 If & meember appaints more than one prosy for the annual general meeting and mare than one instruments of prosy are deposited by the

rmemiber with the Companmy, all such instrurments of prosy shall be rendered mvalid.
4 Memibers ane reguested to notify any changes in their address mmediately.
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Date:

The Share Registrar

Amreli Steels Limited

THE Associates (Pvt) Limited

Plet Mo32-C, Jami Commercial Street-2
DH.A, Phase-VIl, Karachi.

Email: sfe@thk.com.pk

Subject: Request for Hard Copy of Annual Report of Amreli Steels Limited {the “Company”)
Dear Sir,

As notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ["SECP"] vide its 5.R.0. 389{1)/2023 dated 21 March 2023 allowed the Companies to
transmit annual audited financial statements/ notice of general meeting(s)/ annwal report to the members for future years commencing from the financial
year 2023 through OR enabled code and weblink instead of transmitting the same through CD/DVD/USE, at their registered addresses, except for those who
opt for a hardeopy of the Annual Audited Accounts by filling out the details below and sending it to the Company's share reglstrar and Company Secretary.

|, being a registered member of Amreli Steels Limited, with my particulars as mentioned below, hereby regueast that my name be added to the list of
members of the Company who opt for delivery of a hardcopy of the Annual Audited Accounts of the Company at their registered addresses instead of
providing the same through QR enabled code and weblink on registered email.

Mame of Member{s)

COC Participant 1D & Sub-Account No.

CHICANICOP/ Passport/NTN Mo.please attach copy)

Address of Shareholder

Land Line Telephone Mo (if any)

Cell No. (if any]

Ermail Address
LW o
Yours truly,

Member's Signature [Please affix company stamp in case of corporate entity}

Copy to:

The Company Secretary

Amreli Steels Limited

A8, SITE,

Karachi

Email: investor-relations@amrelisteels com
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